Public Document Pack

ENFIELD

Council

PLANNING COMMITTEE Contact: Jane Creer / Metin Halil
Committee Administrator
Direct : 020-8379-4093 / 4091
Tuesday, 26th April, 2016 at 7.30 pm Tel: 020-8379-1000
Venue: Dugdale Centre, Rooms 2 & 3, Ext: 4093 /4091
Thomas Hardy House, 39 London Road,
Enfield, EN2 6DS
E-mail: jane.creer@enfield.gov.uk
metin.halil@enfield.gov.uk
Council website: www.enfield.gov.uk

MEMBERS

Councillors : Dinah Barry, Lee Chamberlain, Jason Charalambous, Dogan Delman,
Christiana During, Christine Hamilton, Ahmet Hasan, Jansev Jemal, Derek Levy
(Vice-Chair), Anne-Marie Pearce, George Savva MBE and Toby Simon (Chair)

N.B. Any member of the public interested in attending the meeting
should ensure that they arrive promptly at 7:15pm
Please note that if the capacity of the room is reached, entry may not be
permitted. Public seating will be available on a first come first served basis.

Involved parties may request to make a deputation to the Committee by
contacting the committee administrator before 12:00 noon on 25/04/16
AGENDA - PART 1

1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
Members of the Planning Committee are invited to identify any disclosable
pecuniary, other pecuniary or non pecuniary interests relevant to items on the
agenda.

3. MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 22 MARCH 2016.
To receive the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on Tuesday

22 March 2016.
(TO FOLLOW)


mailto:jane.creer@enfield.gov.uk
mailto:metin.halil@enfield.gov.uk
http://www.enfield.gov.uk/

10.

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PLANNING, HIGHWAYS AND
TRANSPORTATION (REPORT NO. 232) (Pages 1 - 2)

To receive the covering report of the Assistant Director, Planning, Highways
& Transportation.

4.1  Applications dealt with under delegated powers. (A copy is available in
the Members’ Library.)

P13/03636PLA - 36 WALSINGHAM ROAD, ENFIELD, EN2 6EY (Pages 3 -
48)

RECOMMENDATION: That subject to the completion of a S106 Agreement
to secure the obligations as set out in the report, the Head of Development
Management / a Planning Decisions Manager be authorised to grant
planning permission subject to conditions

WARD: Grange

15/04043/FUL - KEBLE PREPARATORY SCHOOL, WADES HILL,
LONDON, N21 1BG (Pages 49 - 70)

RECOMMENDATION: Refusal
WARD: Winchmore Hill

15/04736/FUL - 2A/2B PARK AVENUE, LONDON, N18 2UH (Pages 71 -
108)

RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to conditions and S106 Agreement
WARD: Edmonton Green

16/00349/RE4 - GARAGES ADJACENT TO 1, 13, 24 & 38 PADSTOW
ROAD, ENFIELD, EN2 8BU (Pages 109 - 150)

RECOMMENDATION: Approval in accordance with Regulation 3/ 4 of the
Town and Country Planning General Regulations 1992, subject to conditions
and unilateral undertaking.

WARD: Highlands

15/05117/FUL - CONSERVATIVE CLUB, 278 BAKER STREET, ENFIELD,
EN1 3LD (Pages 151 - 166)

RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to conditions.
WARD: Chase

16/00103/HOU - 64 ELMHURST ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 5TB (Pages 167 -
176)

RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to conditions.
WARD: Turkey Street



11.

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

If necessary, to consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the
Local Government Act 1972 excluding the press and public from the meeting
for any items of business moved to part 2 of the agenda on the grounds that
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in those
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended by the Local
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006).

(There is no part 2 agenda)



This page is intentionally left blank



COMMITTEE: AGENDA - PART 1 ITEMm 4
PLANNING COMMITTEE
26.04.2016

REPORT OF:
Assistant Director, Planning,
Highways and Transportation

Contact Officer:

Page 1 Agenda Item 4

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2015/2016 - REPORT NO 232

SUBJECT -

MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS

Planning Decisions Manager
Sharon Davidson Tel: 020 8379 3841

4.1

APPLICATIONS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS INF

4.1.1 In accordance with delegated powers, 320 applications were determined

between 18/03/2016 and 15/04/2016, of which 235 were granted and 85
refused.

4.1.2 A Schedule of Decisions is available in the Members’ Library.

4.2

Background Papers

To be found on files indicated in Schedule.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS AND APPLICATIONS TO DISPLAY
ADVERTISEMENTS DEC

On the Schedules attached to this report | set out my recommendations in
respect of planning applications and applications to display advertisements. |
also set out in respect of each application a summary of any representations
received and any later observations will be reported verbally at your meeting.

Background Papers

(1)

(2)

Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 states that the
Local Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the
development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any
other material considerations. Section 54A of that Act, as inserted by
the Planning and Compensation Act 1991, states that where in making
any determination under the Planning Acts, regard is to be had to the
development, the determination shall be made in accordance with the
plan unless the material considerations indicate otherwise. The
development plan for the London Borough of Enfield is the London
Plan (March 2015), the Core Strategy (2010) and the Development
Management Document (2014) together with other supplementary
documents identified in the individual reports.

Other background papers are those contained within the file, the
reference number of which is given in the heading to each application.



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 3

Agenda Item 5

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date : 26 April 2016

Report of Contact Officer:
Assistant Director - Planning, | Andy Higham
Highways & Transportation Andy Bates

Mr S. Newton

Ward: Grange

Application Number : P13-03636PLA

Category: Householder
Developments

LOCATION: 36, WALSINGHAM ROAD, ENFIELD, EN2 6EY

PROPOSAL: Subdivision of site and erection of 1 x 2 storey 4 -bed dwelling

incorporating access to Walsingham Road.

Applicant Name & Address: Agent Name & Address:
Kevin Fitzgerald Andy Meader
36, WALSINGHAM ROAD, Pegasus Group
ENFIELD, Abbey House
EN2 6EY Grenville Place

Bracknell

Berkshire

RG12 1BP

RECOMMENDATION:

That subject to the completion of a S106 Agreement to secure the obligations as set out
in the report, the Head of Development Management / the Planning Decisions Manager
be authorised to GRANT planning permission subject to conditions.

NOTE TO MEMBERS:

The Report has been amended at paragraph 6.2.33 to demonstrate how matters of
archaeology are being addressed by condition and at Section 6.9 to reflect the

introduction of the Enfield CIL on 1 April.







1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

2.1

2.2.

2.3.

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

Page 5

Site and Surroundings

The application site comprises of a piece of garden land to the side of N0.36
Walsingham Road, on the juncture of Walsingham and Uvedale Roads. The site
comprises an irregular shaped plot, close to a sharp bend at the junction of Uvedale
Road, together with a narrow strip of land extending to the north west (the
embankment), adjacent to a public footpath linking properties on Uvedale
Road/Walsingham Road to Town Park.

The properties along the northern boundary of the site fronting Essex Road (Nos.26-
40 (even)) are within the Enfield Town Conservation Area and all of the
aforementioned properties (except for Nos.30 & 40) are covered by an Article 4(2)
Direction removing permitted development rights for certain types of development.

The currently separated garden, falls within the Enfield Town Conservation Area and
Article 4 Direction area whilst the embankment is excluded. The garden is included in
the conservation area as it historically formed part of the rear garden of 28 Essex
Road.

Proposal

Permission is sought for the subdivision of the site and erection of a detached 4-bed
single family dwelling incorporating access to Walsingham Road.

The proposed dwelling would have a maximum width of 10.3m, a maximum depth of
12.9m, it will be 4.9m to eaves level, and approximately 7.4m to the ridge of a pitched
roof. The front roof plane will contain a projecting gable feature and two dormer
windows and the rear roof plane will contain three dormer windows.

The ground floor will accommodate a lounge, dining room, kitchen, wc, utility room
and an integral single-vehicle garage. The first floor will contain four bedrooms, a
bathroom and ensuite.

Relevant Planning Decisions

An application (ref: TP/87/0161) for the erection of detached 4-bedroom house with
integral garage on land forming part of side garden of house was granted planning
permission in July 1987. This dwelling is known as 36A Walsingham Road and is
sited to the south-east of No.36.

An application for the demolition of garage and erection of a 2-storey side extension
with basement garage (ref: TP/05/1527) was refused planning permission because of
concerns of the roof design. A revised scheme (ref: TP/05/2172) was subsequently
approved.

An application for the subdivision of site and erection of a detached 4-bed single
family dwelling to side incorporating detached garage at front and vehicular access to
Walsingham Road (ref: TP/10/0818) was refused in November 2010 for the following
reasons:

1. The development would result in the loss of an important garden element
intrinsic to the character of the Conservation Area and would neither preserve
or enhance the setting of the Conservation Area but rather detract from the
character of the Enfield Town Conservation Area.



3.4.

4.1.

4.1.1.

4.1.2.

Page 6

2.  The proposed development due to the position and design of the access
arrangements would result in vehicles movements crossing the footway which
as a result of poor sight lines would give rise to conditions prejudicial to the free
flow and safety of pedestrians and vehicles using the adjoining highways.

Planning permission (ref: P12-02849PLA) was granted for the demolition of existing 2
storey extension and garage, erection of 2 storey side/front extension to both sides
and single storey rear extension with construction of hard standing to form carriage
drive with vehicular access in July 2013. This scheme is currently being
implemented.

Consultations

Statutory and non-statutory consultees

Conservation Officer

The Conservation Officer has confirmed that following a review of the submitted
Heritage Statement and the Drury McPherson report, the following comments are
provided:

¢ No objections to the proposed development in principle, however objections are
raised in relation to the proposed materials;

e Fully concur with the findings published by Drury McPherson Partnership in their
report dated 27 May 2014;

e The report goes as far as suggesting that the above site should be omitted from
the boundaries of the conservation area;

e Itis my opinion that the proposals will conserve and enhance the conservation
area, by virtue of the fact that they will obscure the view through the CA from
Walsingham Road to Tower Point;

¢ | would argue that the significance of the designated heritage asset and its setting
will remain unaffected by the proposals. Setting is defined as ‘the surroundings in
which a place experienced’. Special regard must be had by the decision-maker
to the assessment of the impact of any development on the desirability of
preserving the setting of a non-designated heritage asset. The predominant
guidance on development within the setting of heritage assets is contained within
the English Heritage document The Setting of Heritage Assets (2015);

¢ | would assert that the proposed building should make use of high quality
materials. uPVC/ synthetic substitutes for natural materials (reconstituted stone/
composite roof tiles etc.) are not accepted in sites in the setting of conservation
areas. In addition, if minded to approve, | would strongly recommend that further
details of the proposed windows/doors/eaves/chimney/ brickwork (including bond,
mortar, brick type) be submitted to the local authority for approval in writing prior
to the commencement of works;

¢ | would also not support the use of obscure glazing to the flank elevation. | would
recommend that this should be substituted with sandblasted glass.

Traffic and Transportation

No objections are raised for the following reason:

On balance the low traffic speeds and self-enforcing nature of the residential street
environment in terms of highway safety, and the good visibility which can be



4.1.4.

4.1.5.

4.1.6.

4.2.

4.2.1.

4.2.2.

Page 7

improved through the addition of a condition requiring landscaping alterations, means
the scheme does not have an unacceptable highway safety impact with regards
vehicles using the access solely for the new house

Tree Officer

4.1.3. No objections are raised.

English Heritage (GLAAS)

It has been advised that the site lies within the Ermine Street Archaeological Priority
Area connected with the Roman settlement close to Leighton Road. There is a
possibility that groundworks could affect important remains connected with the
Roman settlement and a condition is recommended to enable reasonable access by
the Enfield Archaeological Society and record features of interest.

Conservation Advisory Group

No objections have been raised because it was the opinion of the group that there
would be no harm to the character and appearance of the conservation area as a
result of the proposals.

Ecology

The status of the submitted Phase 1 Habitat Survey and its conclusions was re-
evaluated, with the following comments provided, inter alia:

“since it has been established that the site does not host protected species nor does
it host priority habitats, the proposed development would be in accordance with
planning policy in relation to ecology and biodiversity. As such, subject to a condition
to protect nesting birds and a condition to enhance the ecological value of the site
post development, there is no reason on ecology grounds for not permitting the
development”

Public Response

Letters were sent to the occupiers of 74 adjoining and nearby properties in addition to
the posting of site and press publicity. Seventy letters of objection (inclusive of pro
forma letters, and letters from the Friends of Town Park and the Essex Road
Residents Association), together with twelve letters of support have been received. It
should be noted that the total number of responses received (82) includes those
received (54) prior to the application first being reported to Members in June 2014.

The letters of objection have raised some or all of the following points:

Impact on Conservation Area / Street scene

e A similar plan was refused in 2010.

e Alarge house would be built on an important part of the conservation area, which
the local authority has a duty to protect.

e The development would destroy an important part of the conservation area,
ruining views into and out of the region.

e The current gardened area is critical to the conservation area.

¢ Reuvisions to landscaping and removal of garage at front is meaningless.



Page 8

The whole of the site is within the conservation area.

Overdevelopment

An Article 4 is in place on the majority of house in Essex Road to stop people
building up at the rear of their houses, blocking views into and out of the
conservation area. The development will spoil the very features the conservation
area was put in place to protect and block out views of the skyline and other
green garden areas.

e The design is not of a sufficiently high standard

e The statutory test and policy requirements are not satisfied.

e Detrimental to the character of the conservation area.

e |t neither enhances or preserves the setting of the conservation area but
seriously detracts from its character.

e The clear and very recent message from the courts is that the desirability of
preserving the setting of heritage assets is not merely a balancing exercise.

¢ The introduction of a driveway on the grass verge has a detrimental effect on the
character of the conservation area.

e The proposal does not shield the view of Tower Point, this is a false statement. A
large tree, which does, will be lost to the proposal.

¢ Any new house will be substantially higher than the other surrounding houses
and those within the conservation area. Properties near Town Park are scaled
down and are smaller two storey with dormers or are bungalows.

o Due to expansion of N0.36 it will look even more squeezed in, out of proportion,
and due to the land elevation will be intrusive and dominate the area, changing
the character completely.

e There has been no consultation to change the conservation area boundaries.

¢ The garden being overgrown is not a reason to build over it.

e The Pegasus Report is confused and misleading.

e The parcel of land has trees which screen the Essex Road properties. This offers
a leafy green end to the vista down Uvedale Road.

o Tower Point is only visible from a select area of Walsingham road and is not as
prominent as everyone is making out.

e The council previously considered this part of land significant and in changing its
view was criticised by the High Court Judge and the council lost on all 7 points
with costs awarded against.

¢ The scheme assessed is exactly the same as rejected by the High Court.

82% of the proposed house is in the conservation area.

o Development of any sort on this piece of garden land would spoil the very
features the conservation area was put in place to protect and block out views of
the skyline and other green garden areas.

e There will be substantial harm to this parcel of land.

Amenity

e Overshadowing

e Overlooking

o Daylight / sunlight / noise issues

e Loss of privacy

e Loss of views

o Flank wall of existing building is hidden by trees and the proposed wall will be 1m

from boundary with No.32 Essex Road, casting a shadow, being totally dominant
and reducing amenity, ruining the sunny aspect of the garden and views out of
the conservation area.



Page 9

Biodiversity

The area is a haven for wildlife.

Highway Safety

Dangerous for pedestrians and children with cars blindly reversing out.
Overlooking into rear garden of Nos.26, 28 and 34 Essex Rd.

No turning circle within the site resulting in cars reversing out blindly.

Hazard for pedestrians.

Dangerous corner.

Loss of valuable parking spaces.

This corner of Walsingham Road is one of 3 primary routes into Town Park.
Sightlines are crucial and the creation of an additional driveway in close proximity
to the entrance would create a further hazard.

Proposed driveway is steeply elevated with low walls obscuring the pavement.
This is a hazard.

Carriage drive is shown incorrectly.

Other Matters Raised

Between 2010 and the present day there has been no significant changes in
planning policy which can support a staggering U-turn, raising concerns in
respect of the lawfulness of the Council’s decision making process.

Relying on the presumption in favour of sustainable development demonstrates
that planning policy is being incorrectly applied.

The reason for securing a legal agreement to act as a public benefit to outweigh
the less than substantial harm to the setting of the conservation area is unlawful.
The decision to override the professional advice of CAG raises serious questions
in respect of the Council’s ability to discharge their duty under the S72 of the
Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

Elements of the Character Appraisal have been overlooked. No reference to sub
area 5 (Town Park), only to sub area 2 (the New Town).

S106 agreements should only be relied upon where they are necessary to make
the development acceptable in planning terms. The Council’s questionable
approach is to rely on the contributions to justify the harm to the conservation
area as a public benefit that outweighs the harm that results.

Until it is clearly stated what the harm is, it is difficult to understand the correlation
between the harm and public benefit.

Members are being asked to permit a development that doesn’t comply with the
development plan on the basis that it will secure S106 contributions. The
council’s reasoning is contrary to s.38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004 and regulation 122 of the 2010 CIL Regs.

The driveway was included in a separate application to extend the existing
dwelling. It has been implemented in breach of numerous planning conditions.
The proposed development is crucially located close to the pedestrian path that
leads directly to Enfield Town Park. The applicant has ensured that an earlier
consent granted in 2013 for an extension to number 36 includes the driveway that
will form the main vehicular access to the new dwelling. In turn, there are various
breaches of the 2013 Permission that have not been resolved and have a direct
bearing on highway safety. Despite this, Members are being asked to approve
this application without debating highway safety.



4.2.3.

Page 10

o The Committee Report also fails to address why the Council has not considered
paragraph 53 of the NPPF which directs Councils to consider resisting
inappropriate development of residential gardens. The proposal is for a large
detached property in a cramped location at the edge of the conservation area. If
permitted it will result in the loss of an open area at the entrance to Enfield Town
Park.

e There is an existing shortage of school places / GP’s / dentists and no a & e.

e A four bed new build serves no purpose.

¢ Do not understand why the application has been re-submitted having been
thrown out by the courts.

e Approval of this scheme would give the impression that council employees are
now working on behalf of developers.

The letters of support have raised some or all of the following points:

Impact on Conservation Area / Street scene

e Letters have been received requesting objections to the new house however,
although understanding of the concerns to maintain the character of the area,
there is a shortfall of residential units.

e Do not support town cramming however the development site would not result in
such development.

e The plot is of a sufficient size to accommodate a hew dwelling and would relate
well to the surrounding residential properties.

e Can understand why the developers considered that this part of the site should
be removed from the conservation area as it does not have an obvious
association with it as it does not now form a rear garden of one of the properties
of Essex Road.

e The proposal would make a positive contribution to the conservation area and
would not result in significant harm.

e It would shield views of Tower Point from Walsingham Road and Uvedale Road;
Tower Point provides an unsympathetic form of architecture of no merit, which
dominates and detracts from the skyline and conservation area. The character
Appraisal also refers to this building as being a negative feature.

e The proposal will screen views to some extent of the rear building facades of the
properties fronting Essex Road which are of limited architectural merit,
especially as some have had the intervention of rear extensions which have
altered and disturbed the original symmetry and rhythm of the rear building
lines.

e Views of the site from Essex Road and Town Park would be limited as the new
house built on the entrance to the park blocks views of the site and the site can
only be glimpsed from limited gaps between the buildings on Essex Road.

¢ Some of the land would be lost to built development but garden space would
remain for the existing and provided for the new house.

e There is a variety of housing types in Walsingham and Uvedale Roads which
add to the interest of the street. The new dwelling would not be out of keeping.

e The design and form would not be unduly dominant and the ridgeline will not
extend above the adjoining neighbours.

e The use of front dormers reduces the scale of the building.

e The design reflects those on Walsingham Road and Uvedale Road which
seems more appropriate than trying to reflect the houses in the conservation
area.

e The frontage of the building is located on Walsingham Road, thereby forming
part of its street scene.



5.1.

5.2.

Page 11

e Building on open land does have an impact on the environment as generally
open views are nicer than built development however this needs to be balanced
against the need for new housing and that new development can be
sympathetically designed to fit in with and preserve and enhance the existing
environment.

e The development will preserve and enhance the conservation area by improving
views into the conservation area by reducing views of Tower Point.

e The land has become vacant and derelict. With the current need and demand
for housing, this is an acceptable and sensible application.

e Overdevelopment of land is dependent on acreage and not on the opinion of
residents who do not live in our roads.

e It would be nice to see a family house opposite my house.

e The new house will enhance the area

Highway Safety

e The impact on pedestrian and road safety would be minimal as the comings and
goings generated would be minimal.

e Anyone who lives near this corner knows that the only time it is busy is between
8am to 9am and 5pm to 6pm.

e Cyclists would be the hazard to people using the walk.

Amenity

e Conditions should be imposed for appropriate landscaping, obscure glazing for
the flank window and no additional flank windows as first floor level.

o While development will run along rear gardens of N0s.26 & 28 Essex Road, given
change in levels, orientation of the site and depth of gardens, the proposal will
not result in an unacceptable loss of light or on balance be detrimental to the
visual and residential amenities to residents of Essex Road.

e Due to distancing levels, the scheme will not appear over dominant or
overbearing.

Other Matters Raised

o Reasons given for objecting are weak and vindictive.
e Literature against the development has been printed for residents in Private
Road, Park Crescent and Park Avenue to sign. This does not affect them.

Relevant Policy

The National Planning Policy Framework (“NPPF"), published in March 2012, advises
at para. 14 that a presumption of sustainable development is at the heart of the
NPPF. For decision taking this means that unless material considerations indicate
otherwise, developments which accord with the development should be approved
without delay. Where a development plan is absent, silent or relevant policies are out
of date, permission should be granted unless: any adverse impacts of doing so would
significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the
policies in the NPPF taken as a whole; or specific policies in the NPPF indicate
development should be restricted (e.g. designated heritage assets).

The policies listed below are up-to-date and considered to be consistent with the
NPPF and therefore it is considered that due weight should be given to them in
assessing the development the subject of this application.



5.3.

5.4.

Page 12

The London Plan

Policy 3.3
Policy 3.4
Policy 3.5
Policy 3.6
Policy 3.8
Policy 3.9
Policy 3.11
Policy 3.12
Policy 3.13
Policy 3.14
Policy 5.1
Policy 5.2
Policy 5.3
Policy 5.5
Policy 5.6
Policy 5.7
Policy 5.8
Policy 5.9
Policy 5.10
Policy 5.11
Policy 5.13
Policy 5.14
Policy 6.3
Policy 6.9
Policy 6.12
Policy 6.13
Policy 7.1
Policy 7.2
Policy 7.3
Policy 7.4
Policy 7.6
Policy 7.8
Policy 7.14
Policy 7.15
Policy 7.19

Core Strateqy

CP2:
CP3:
CP4:
CP5:
CPo:
CP20:
CP21:
CP22:

Increasing housing supply

Optimising housing potential

Quality and design of housing developments
Children and young people’s play and informal recreation facilities
Housing choice

Mixed and balanced communities

Affordable housing targets

Negotiating affordable housing

Affordable housing thresholds

Existing housing

Climate change mitigation

Minimising carbon dioxide emissions
Sustainable design and construction
Decentralised energy networks
Decentralised energy in development proposals
Renewable energy

Innovative energy technologies

Overheating and cooling

Urban greening

Green roofs and development site environs
Sustainable drainage

Water quality and wastewater infrastructure
Assessing the effects of development on transport capacity
Cycling

Road network capacity

Parking

Lifetime neighbourhoods

An inclusive environment

Designing out crime

Local character

Architecture

Heritage assets and archaeology

Improving air quality

Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes
Biodiversity and access to nature

Housing supply and locations for new homes

Affordable housing

Housing quality

Housing types

Supporting community cohesion

Sustainable energy use and energy infrastructure

Delivering sustainable water supply, drainage and sewerage infrastructure
Delivering sustainable waste management

CP24: The road network

CP25:
CP26:
CP28:
CP30:
CP31:

Pedestrians and cyclists

Public transport

Managing flood risk through development

Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open environment
Built and landscape heritage



5.5.

5.6.

Page 13

CP32: Pollution

CP34: Parks, playing fields and other open spaces
CP36: Biodiversity

CP46: Infrastructure contributions

Development Management Document

DMD2 Affordable Housing for Development of Less than 10 Units
DMD3 Providing a Mix of Different Sized Homes

DMD6 Residential Character

DMD7 Development of Garden Land

DMD8 General Standards for New Residential Development
DMD9 Amenity Space

DMD10 Distancing

DMD13 Roof Extensions

DMD37 Achieving High Quality Design-Led Development
DMD38 Design Process

DMD44 Preserving and Enhancing Heritage Assets
DMD45 Parking Standards

DMDA47 New Roads, Access and Servicing

DMD48 Transport Assessments

DMD49 Sustainable Design and Construction Statements
DMD50 Environmental Assessment Methods

DMD51 Energy Efficiency Standards

DMD53 Low and Zero Carbon Technology

DMD54 Allowable Solutions

DMD55 Use of Roof Space / Vertical Surfaces

DMD56 Heating and Cooling

DMD57 Responsible Sourcing of Materials

DMD58 Water Efficiency

DMD59 Avoiding and Reducing Flood Risk

DMD60 Assessing Flood Risk

DMD61 Managing Surface Water

DMD65 Air Quality

DMD68 Noise

DMD69 Light Pollution

DMD70 Water Quality

DMD72 Open Space Provision

DMD73 Children’s Play Space

DMD78 Nature Conservation

DMD79 Ecological Enhancements

DMD81 Landscaping

Other Relevant Policy/Guidance and Considerations

National Planning Policy Framework

National Planning Practice Guidance

LBE S106 SPD

Enfield Strategic Housing Market Assessment (2010)

Monitoring Report and Housing Trajectory 2015 (2016)

Enfield Town Conservation Area Character Appraisal (2015)

Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010

Historic England: The Setting of Heritage Assets: Historic Environment Good Practice
Advice in Planning: 3



6.1.

6.1.1.

6.1.2.

6.1.3.

6.1.4.

6.1.5.

6.1.6.

6.2.

6.2.1.

Page 14

Analysis
Principle

In broad terms, the proposal would be consistent with the aim of the London Plan and
with policies within the Core Strategy which seek to contribute to the strategic
housing needs of Greater London and the Borough. In addition, regard must also be
given to all other relevant planning considerations which include seeking to ensure
that the appropriate regard is given to heritage matters, an acceptable design, no
undue adverse impact on neighbour amenity, and acceptability in highways terms

Although the proposal may meet with the broad aim above, consideration must also
be given to a previously refused application to subdivide the plot and erect a
detached 4-bed dwelling house (ref: TP/10/0818, the “2010 scheme”). The plans
considered for that scheme are attached at Appendix 1 of this report.

Since the 2010 scheme, the National Planning Policy Framework (“NPPF”) was
introduced in March 2012 and the National Planning Practice Guidance (“NPPG”) in
March 2014. At the heart of the NPPF is the presumption in favour of sustainable
development as described in paragraphs 11-16 of the NPPF. A key aim of the NPPF
is to encourage sustainable development, within the statutory context of determining
planning applications in accordance with the development plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise (s 38(6) PACPA 2004 and s 70(2) TCPA 1990).

The NPPG advises that the conservation of heritage assets in a manner appropriate
to their significance is a core planning principle. It also advises that conservation is
an “active process of maintenance and managing change”. Heritage assets are
considered to be an irreplaceable resource and effective conservation delivers wider
social, cultural, economic and environmental benefits.

Section 72 (general duty as respects conservation areas in exercise of planning
functions) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
(“Listed Buildings Act”) confirms that, in respect of buildings or other land in a
conservation area, special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or
enhancing the character or appearance of that area. ‘Preserving’ in this context
means doing no harm (as explained by the HL in South Lakeland DC v S of S [1992]
2 AC 141 at p.150)

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 confirms that
regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any determination to
be made under the planning Acts the determination must be made in accordance
with the plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

Heritage Considerations
Statutory Background and the NPPF

Sections 66 and 72 of the Listed Buildings Act confirm that special attention shall be
paid to the desirability of preserving a listed building or its setting (s.66) and
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of that area (s.72). The Court
of Appeal in Barnwell Manor Wind Energy Ltd v East Northamptonshire District
Council [2014] EWCA Civ 137, concluded that where an authority finds that a
development proposal would harm the setting of a listed building or the character and
appearance of a conservation area, it must give that harm “considerable importance
and weight”.




6.2.2.

6.2.3.

6.2.4.

Page 15

Justice Lindblom reconfirmed the Barnwell judgement and the considerations to be
undertaken by a planning authority in The Forge Field Society & Ors, R v Sevenoaks
District Council [2014] EWHC 1895 (Admin) by observing at para.49 that:

“when having to give considerable importance and weight to any harm it did not
mean that an authority’s assessment of likely harm to the setting of a listed building
or to a conservation area is other than a matter for its own planning judgement. It
does not mean that the weight the authority should give to harm which it considers
would be limited or less than substantial must be the same as the weight it might give
to harm which would be substantial. But it is to recognize...that a finding of
harm...gives a strong presumption against planning permission being granted. The
presumption is a statutory one. It is not irrebuttable. It can be outweighed by material
considerations powerful enough to do so. But an authority can only properly strike the
balance between harm to a heritage asset on the one hand and planning benefits on
the other if it is conscious of the statutory presumption in favour of preservation and
demonstrably applies that presumption to the proposal it is considering”

In R. (on the application of Hughes) v South Lakeland DC [2014] EWHC 3979
(Admin), the court addressed the correct approach to assessing development
proposals in a conservation area as well as covering the approach to heritage in the
NPPF. Judge Waksman QC addressed relevant guidance at paras 131-135 NPPF.
He explained that in a para.134 case, harm to a designated heritage asset was to be
given more weight than it would if it were simply one of a number of factors to be
considered. Where non-designated heritage assets were being considered the harm
was to be taken into account as part of a ‘balanced judgment’ (paras 50-53 see
NPPF para. 135).

In Pugh v Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government [2015] EWHC 3
(Admin), Gilbart J considered at paras.49 and 50 that:

“the significance of a heritage asset still carries weight at the balancing stage
required by paragraph 134, and to the extent that Kenneth Parker J in Colman v
Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government & Ors [2013] EWHC 1138
and Jay J in Bedford Borough Council v SSCLG [2013] EWHC 2854 suggest
otherwise, | prefer the approach of Judge Waksman QC. Thus, the value and
significance of the asset, whatever it may be, will still be placed on one side of the
balance. The process of determining the degree of harm, which underlies paragraph
132 of NPPF, must itself involve taking into account the value of the heritage asset in
guestion. Not all effects are of the same degree, nor are all heritage assets of
comparable significance, and the decision maker must assess the actual significance
of the asset and the actual effects upon it.

But one must not take it too far so that one rewrites NPPF. It provides a sequential
approach to this issue. Paragraphs 126-134 are not to be read in isolation from one
another. There is a sequential approach in paragraphs 132 -4 which addresses the
significance in planning terms of the effects of proposals on designated heritage
assets. If, having addressed all the relevant considerations about value, significance
and the nature of the harm, and one has then reached the point of concluding that
the level of harm is less than substantial, then one must use the test in paragraph
134. It is an integral part of the NPPF sequential approach. Following it does not
deprive the considerations of the value and significance of the heritage asset of
weight: indeed it requires consideration of them at the appropriate stage. But what
one is not required to do is to apply some different test at the final stage than that of
the balance set out in paragraph 134. How one strikes the balance, or what weight



6.2.5.

6.2.6.

6.2.7.

6.2.8.

Page 16

one gives the benefits on the one side and the harm on the other, is a matter for the
decision maker. Unless one gives reasons for departing from the policy, one cannot
set it aside and prefer using some different test”

In Jones v Mordue [2015] EWCA Civ 1243, the CA indicated that, generally, a
decision maker who works through the relevant paragraphs (para 131-134 NPPF) in
accordance with their terms will have complied with a s66/72 duty. Recently, the High
Court in Forest of Dean DC v S of S and Gladman [2016] EWHC 421 have indicated
that where there is a finding of less than substantial harm to a designated heritage
asset, the harm has to be weighed against the public benefits of a the proposal in the
ordinary unweighted way because it is a policy indicating development should be
restricted so that the presumption in para 14 of the NPPF is disapplied by virtue of
footnote 9 of the NPPF.

Section 12 of the NPPF (Conserving and enhancing the historic environment)
advises LPAs to recognise heritage assets as an “irreplaceable resource” and to
“conserve them in a manner appropriate to their significance” (para. 126).

When determining planning applications, LPAs are advised to take into account of:
¢ “the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets
and putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation;

¢ the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to
sustainable communities including their economic vitality; and

o the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local
character and distinctiveness” (para.131)

Paragraphs 132 -134 NPPF provide:

132 “When considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance of
a designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset’s
conservation. The more important the asset, the greater the weight should be.
Significance can be harmed or lost through alteration or destruction of the heritage
asset or development within its setting. As heritage assets are irreplaceable, any
harm or loss should require clear and convincing justification. Substantial harm to or
loss of a grade Il listed building, park or garden should be exceptional. Substantial
harm to or loss of designated heritage assets of the highest significance, notably
scheduled monuments, protected wreck sites, battlefields, grade | and II* listed
buildings, grade | and II* registered parks and gardens, and World Heritage Sites,
should be wholly exceptional.

133 Where a proposed development will lead to substantial harm to or total loss of
significance of a designated heritage asset, local planning authorities should refuse
consent, unless it can be demonstrated that the substantial harm or loss is necessary
to achieve substantial public benefits that outweigh that harm or loss, or all of the
following apply:

-the nature of the heritage asset prevents all reasonable uses of the site; and

-no viable use of the heritage asset itself can be found in the medium term through
appropriate marketing that will enable its conservation; and

-conservation by grant-funding or some form of charitable or public ownership is
demonstrably not possible; and

-the harm or loss is outweighed by the benefit of bringing the site back into use.



6.2.9.

6.2.10.

6.2.11.

6.2.12.

6.2.13.

Page 17

134 Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the
significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the
public benefits of the proposal, including securing its optimum viable use.

Paragraph 135 provides guidance in relation to non-designated heritage assets. The
development proposal must also be assessed against the significance of the heritage
asset, and “a balanced judgement will be required having regard to the scale of any
harm or loss and the significance of the heritage asset”.

In addition, at paragraph 137, LPAs are also advised to look for opportunities for new
developments within conservation areas and within the setting of heritage assets to
better reveal their significance. Where a proposal preserves those elements of the
setting that make a positive contribution to or better reveal the significance of the
asset should be treated favourably.

The NPPF provides a glossary of terminology at Appendix 2 which Members may
find useful. The relevant heritage terms include:

e ‘“Heritage Asset: A building, monument, site, place, area or landscape identified
as having a degree of significance meriting consideration in planning decisions
because of its heritage interest. Heritage asset includes designated heritage
assets and assets identified by the local planning authority (including local listing).

e Setting of a heritage asset: The surroundings in which a heritage asset is
experienced. Its extent is not fixed and may change as the asset and its
surroundings evolve. Elements of a setting may make a positive or negative
contribution to the significance of an asset, may affect the ability to appreciate
that significance or may be neutral

¢ Significance (for heritage policy): The value of a heritage asset to this and
future generations because of its heritage interest. That interest may be
archaeological, architectural, artistic or historic. Significance derives not only from
a heritage asset’s physical presence, but also from its setting.”

Paragraph 20 of the NPPG provides some guidance on the term “public benefit”:

“Public benefits may follow from many developments and could be anything that
delivers economic, social or environmental progress as described in the National
Planning Policy Framework (Paragraph 7). Public benefits should flow from the
proposed development. They should be of a nature or scale to be of benefit to the
public at large and should not just be a private benefit. However, benefits do not
always have to be visible or accessible to the public in order to be genuine public
benefits.

Public benefits may include heritage benefits, such as:

e sustaining or enhancing the significance of a heritage asset and the contribution
of its setting

e reducing or removing risks to a heritage asset

e securing the optimum viable use of a heritage asset in support of its long term
conservation”

A “benefit” is not limited solely to heritage benefits but to all material planning benefits
arising from a particular scheme, providing that they meet with the relevant policy
tests for conditions and obligations.



6.2.14.

6.2.15.

6.2.16.

6.2.17.

6.2.18.

Page 18

The NPPG advises that the extent and importance of setting is often expressed by
reference to visual considerations. Although views of or from an asset will play an
important part, the way in which the asset is experienced is also influenced by other
environmental factors such as noise, dust and vibration from other land uses in the
vicinity, and by our understanding of the historic relationship between places.

The NPPG also advises that the conservation of heritage assets in a manner
appropriate to their significance is a core planning principle. It also advises that
conservation is an “active process of maintenance and managing change”. Heritage
assets are an irreplaceable resource and effective conservation delivers wider social,
cultural, economic and environmental benefits.

Significance, as advised within the NPPF derives not only from a heritage asset’s
physical presence but also from its setting. When assessing significance, it is advised
that great weight should be given to the asset’s conservation and the more important
the asset, the greater the weight to be applied. Where a development leads to less
than substantial harm to the significance of the heritage asset, the harm should be
weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, including its optimum viable use.
The NPPG advises that what matters in assessing if a proposal causes substantial
harm is the impact on the significance of the heritage asset. It does also advise that
‘substantial harm’ is a high test, so may not arise in many cases.

Local Plan

Planning law requires that planning applications are determined in accordance with
the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise, as
confirmed at s.38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (“the 2004
Act”) and s.70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (“T&CPA 1990"). The
Local Plan, as confirmed at s.38(2) of the 2004 Act, comprises of: the Spatial
Development Strategy for Greater London Consolidated with Alterations Since 2011
(March 2015)(“London Plan”), the Enfield Plan Core Strategy 2010-2015 (“Core
Strategy”) and the Development Management Document (“DMD”).

London Plan policy 7.8 (Heritage Assets and Archaeology) advises that at a strategic
level, London’s heritage assets and historic environment should be identified

Strategic

A. London’s heritage assets and historic environment, including listed buildings,
registered historic parks and gardens and other natural and historic landscapes,
Conservation Areas, World Heritage Sites, registered battlefields, scheduled
monuments, archaeological remains and memorials should be identified, so that
the desirability of sustaining and enhancing their significance and of utilising their
positive role in place shaping can be taken into account.

B. Development should incorporate measures that identify, record, interpret, protect
and, where appropriate, present the site’s archaeology.

Planning decisions

C. Development should identify, value, conserve, restore, re-use and incorporate
heritage assets, where appropriate.



Page 19

D. Development affecting heritage assets and their settings should conserve their
significance, by being sympathetic to their form, scale, materials and architectural
detail.

E. New development should make provision for the protection of archaeological
resources, landscapes and significant memorials. The physical assets should,
where possible, be made available to the public on-site. Where the
archaeological asset or memorial cannot be preserved or managed on-site,
provision must be made for the investigation, understanding, recording,
dissemination and archiving of that asset.

LDF preparation

F. Boroughs should, in LDF policies, seek to maintain and enhance the contribution
of built, landscaped and buried heritage to London’s environmental quality,
cultural identity and economy as part of managing London’s ability to
accommodate change and regeneration.

G. Boroughs, in consultation with English Heritage, Natural England and other
relevant statutory organisations, should include appropriate policies in their LDFs
for identifying, protecting, enhancing and improving access to the historic
environment and heritage assets and their settings where appropriate, and to
archaeological assets, memorials and historic and natural landscape character
within their area.

6.2.19. Core Policy 31 (Built and Landscape Heritage) confirms that the Council will
implement national and regional policies and work with partners to “pro-actively
preserve and enhance all of the Borough's heritage assets”. This is to be achieved by
the following:

¢ Reviewing heritage designations and their boundaries where appropriate, and
continuing to maintain non-statutory, local lists and designations based on
formally adopted criteria;

e Ensuring that built development and interventions in the public realm that impact
on heritage assets have regard to their special character and are based on an
understanding of their context. Proposals within or affecting the setting of heritage
assets will be required to include a thorough site analysis and character appraisal
which explicitly demonstrates how the proposal will respect and enhance the
asset;

o Identifying opportunities for the repair and restoration of heritage assets and
working with owners of heritage assets on English Heritage's Heritage at Risk
Register to find viable solutions to secure the asset’s long-term future. Where
necessary, the Council will make full use of its legislative powers to ensure their
preservation;

e Ensuring developments in areas of archaeological importance take into account
the potential for new finds by requiring consultation with English Heritage and on-
site investigations, including the appropriate recording and dissemination of
archaeological evidence;

e Supporting appropriate initiatives which increase access to historic assets,
provide learning opportunities and maximise their potential as heritage
attractions, particularly at Forty Hall and the Area of Special Character in the
north west of the Borough; and

e Finding new ways to record and recognise Enfield’s intangible heritage resources
and, where possible, open up wider public access to them.



Page 20

6.2.20. The DMD was adopted by the Council in November 2014. Policy DMD44 (Preserving
and Enhancing Heritage Assets) confirms the following:

6.2.21.

6.2.22.

1.

Applications for development which fail to conserve and enhance the special
interest, significance or setting of a heritage asset will be refused

Development affecting heritage assets or their setting should seek to
complement the asset in all aspects of its design, materials and detailing

All applications affecting heritage assets or their setting should include a
Heritage Statement. The applicant will also be required to record and
disseminate detailed information about the asset gained from desk-based and
on-site investigations. Information should be provided to the Local Planning
Authority, Historic Environment Record and English Heritage. In some
circumstances, a Written Scheme of Investigation will be required.

Enfield Town Conservation Area Character Appraisal

Part of the site (approximately 57% of the curtilage of the proposed dwelling) falls
within the Enfield Town Conservation Area and in particular, within a sub area
defined as “the New Town”. The special interest for this character area is
summarised at para. 2.7.10 of the Character Appraisal:

This is a contained area, with clearly defined boundaries, all of which was laid out
and built between the 1860s and 1890s;

There is clear separation by use, date and built form from its setting area;
Most houses are in London stock brick, providing visual unity, but each street
retains its own character deriving from scale, plot size and views;

All streets have a range of good quality architectural details and features;

The relationship with Town Park (particularly the views from Essex Road)
provides views of exceptional quality as a setting for the buildings on the west
side of the area;

Mature street trees and garden trees complement the townscape and provide
focuses, vistas and a backdrop to the buildings.

The Problems and Pressures of this character area are identified at para. 2.7.11 of
the Character Appraisal. The principle issues are identified as:

The visual intrusiveness of Tower Point has been exacerbated by the colour and
reflectivity of the re-cladding, and the design of the glazed balcony additions to
the elevations.

Sydney Road is affected by the poor design and condition of modern buildings
from the 1960s-1970s along one side.

The proximity of the shopping centre and the pressure for car parking space at
busy times impinge on the northern end of Sydney Road. Raleigh Road is better
protected, because there is no entry from Cecil Road.

The problem of loss of character over many years through incremental change
under permitted development rights, to which smaller properties are especially
vulnerable, is widespread in this character area and is particularly noticeable in
Raleigh Road. Doors, windows and property boundaries have all suffered from
unacceptable change over many years. An Article 4 (2) direction was adopted in
2006 to control further change, but detailed monitoring is needed to ensure that it



6.2.23.

6.2.24.

6.2.25.

6.2.26.

Page 21

is operating efficiently and that original or traditional features, materials and
designs are re-instated where possible.

e Front-garden car-parking detracts from the character of the larger properties,
where it has sometimes been carried out without due regard to sensitive detailing
and planting. Again, an Article 4 (2) direction is now in operation to help manage
future change.

e The insertion and addition of garages and hard-standings, both in new
development and in existing properties, is changing the character of the street by
widening accesses from the highway and creating footway crossings;

e The Sydney Road car park is badly designed and laid out, with poor quality hard
landscaping, boundaries and signage. It breaks the rhythm of the street’'s semi-
detached villas.

e The fine view of Town Park from Essex Road has been compromised by the ball-

park area (Figure 18), whose bright blue colour and rectilinear form intrudes on
the open green space in the centre of vision.

The factors for consideration will be:

The significance of the asset

Proximity

Visibility

Compatibility of the proposal with the context and setting of the asset
The sensitivity to harm of the asset

The above factors must be considered against the identified special interest and
setting of the Conservation area.

Heritage Assessment

There are no listed buildings in proximity of the site. Number 4 Essex Road, a locally
listed building, is sited approximately 140m to the east, however this is considered
too far removed from the application site (and is not visible) to be of any
consequence to the assessment of the current application. The only designated
heritage asset to be given any consideration therefore is the conservation area, with
particular regard given to the statutory requirement to give special attention to
preserving or enhancing its character or appearance (s.72).

Although part of the application site is within the conservation area, it is not visible
from Essex Road, neither can it be experienced from Essex Road or from the wider
conservation area. Moreover, there are no views into the site from Walsingham and
Uvedale Roads due to the elevated ground level of the site and the existence of
boundary fencing. Paragraph 6.2 of the submitted Heritage Statement considers that
the " historic significance of the site is very limited due to the peripheral location and
the fact that there is no relationship between the site and the Conservation Area as a
whole, other than previously forming part of the curtilage of one of the properties
fronting on to Essex Road. The site does not contribute to the significance, character
or appearance of the Enfield Town Conservation Area in its own right, nor does it
have an important role in the setting of this part of the Conservation Area, appearing
as part of the Walsingham Road frontage, rather than having a relationship with the
properties on Essex Road”. The above is further supported at para.3.3 of the Drury
McPherson report.



Page 22

6.2.27. The view towards the conservation area from Walsingham and Uvedale Roads is not
identified within the Character Appraisal as a “key view” (see image below, the key
view identified is that into Town Park), as also confirmed in the submitted Heritage
Statement (para.6.3). The view from these roads is only of the rear of the dwelling
houses fronting Essex Road, which are of no particular architectural or historical
merit. Notwithstanding this, standing outside the existing widened footway crossing,
the rear of N0.32 Essex Road becomes visible beyond two trees (two semi mature
trees (a sycamore and an ash) in close proximity to each other and identified as T3
on the submitted plans) at the bottom of the garden of No.34 Essex Road. These
views, and the aforementioned trees, remain unaffected by the proposed
development because the front building line of the proposed dwelling is in common
alignment with the existing dwelling at 36 Walsingham Road. Views to the rear of
other dwellings fronting Essex Road are prohibited from existing trees along the
fence line separating the application site from the existing dwelling at 36 Walsingham
Road. These trees will be removed as a result of the development however the
development will not result in any further loss of views into the conservation area
from this vantage point.

¢
t

an “‘"‘

OWOH HOIZT Y

"ok d o MR

-
'E
1
(=

ARL-TT® mAR
_Ahdd

Enfield Town Conservation Area Character Appraisal:

the new town - tawnscape analysis

— Comservaiion area Brnadary -

Negalfie arvs

—— Key view

Lacally fisted bnilding - ; : i o
et o B ares — Pover prem

Figure 19: Townzscape analyziz (the New Town)

6.2.28. The level of distancing between the rear of the rear of the Essex Road dwellings and
their common boundary with the application site is such that a sense of openness



6.2.29.

6.2.30.

Page 23

and spaciousness is retained. Moreover, as mentioned above, due to the higher
ground elevation of the Essex Road dwellings (and the application site) to the ground
level of Walsingham Road itself, only the first floor and roofs are visible above fence
lines. As considered within the Drury McPherson report, the submitted Heritage
Statement and supported by Council’s Conservation Officer, the application site
makes no contribution in its own right to the significance of the conservation area.

Paragraph 2.7.7 of the Character Appraisal considers that gardens have
“considerable” importance because front gardens are not deep therefore views
through gaps to back gardens or across and into long corner plots are “extremely
important”. From Essex Road, the only potential view of the proposed dwelling house
will be between Nos.32 and 34. Whilst these two dwelling houses are part of
separate pairs of semi-detached dwellings, they are linked by respective extensions
at their rear / side. Beyond this, above the front walls of the aforementioned
extensions, are views of trees at the bottom end of the garden, approximately 50m
distant from the back edge of the pavement (the proposed dwelling house would sit
a further 1m to 2m beyond the rear boundaries). When the trees are not in leaf, due
the distances involved and the presence of the aforementioned extensions, there
may be some glimpses only of the very top of the flank wall / roof of the proposed
dwelling. Any potential view would be so minor that it would not have any effect on
the ability of a casual observer to appreciate the significance of the conservation area
(for example, the built form, architectural detailing of dwellings, views towards Town
Park). Moreover, due to the distances involved and the narrow gap between Nos.32
and 34 Essex Road, any observer would have to knowingly look for the development.
During the Spring / Summer months, any potential glimpses of the proposed dwelling
should be obscured by the trees in leaf at the bottom of the gardens. Having regard
to the above, it is therefore considered that the proposed development would not
harm the importance of views into rear gardens. Having regard to the above, it is
considered that the proposed development will not harm the significance of the
conservation area.

It is acknowledged that the built form, materials and architectural detailing will differ
from those dwellings fronting Essex Road, however, this is not necessarily harmful. It
is also acknowledged that in refusing the 2010 application, the officer considered that
the proposed dwelling should “take as a guide those dwellings within the
Conservation Area not those directly outside” (para.6.1.4). However, unless all
elements (style, design, materials, workmanship) are an exact replica of those
dwellings, the proposed dwelling would risk being a pastiche of the Essex Road
dwellings. Given the significant level of distancing involved between the proposed
dwelling and those on Essex Road, this potentially allows for a built form and pallet of
materials that differs from those dwellings within the conservation area. Moreover, to
replicate the dwellings on Essex Road would result in a dwelling which would be
completely out of keeping and character with the street scene to which it should
relate, Walsingham Road. Heritage advice contained within the Drury McPherson
report and supported by Council’'s Conservation Officer confirms that in relation to
design, “this should relate, in terms of volume, height and use of materials, to the
streetscape of Walsingham Road, which provides its context” (para.4.3). This is
reinforced at 7.11 of the submitted Heritage Statement. Although the Drury
McPherson report and the submitted Heritage Statement considers the proposed
palette of materials to be appropriate, officers are of the opinion that an improvement
could be made in the replacement of the proposed uPVC fenestration with traditional
timber joinery. Having regard to the above, it is considered that subject to securing
details of the materials proposed (the applicant has agreed to provide wooden
fenestration), the proposed development will not harm the significance of the
conservation area.



6.2.31.

6.2.32.

6.2.33.

6.2.34.

6.2.35.

6.2.36.

6.2.37.

6.3.

Page 24

The proposed development, due to it not being visible from Town Park and the level
of distancing to Essex Road, will not cause any harm to the relationship between
Town Park and its views from Essex Road.

When assessed against the “problems and pressures” of this part of the conservation
area, the proposed development would not further exacerbate any of the identified
issues. Standing opposite the widened crossover, views into the conservation area
over the embankment are terminated by Tower Point in the background. The
proposed dwelling would largely block this view, thus contributing to enhancing the
setting of the conservation area, a view supported at para.7.15 of the submitted
Heritage Statement.

Archaeology

As advised in the supporting paragraphs to DMD44 (“Conserving and Enhancing
Heritage Assets”), many heritage assets remain undiscovered. They also contain
information about our past which can easily be damaged and never replaced. In
relation to archaeology, as advised by Historic England (GLAAS), due to the site
sitting within the Ermine Street Archaeological Priority Area, important Roman
remains connected with the Roman settlement close to Leighton Road could be
affected. Historic England has suggested a condition to enable reasonable access by
the Enfield Archaeological Society to record findings. This is reflected in proposed
condition 22.

Summary of Heritage Considerations

The site, although within the conservation area due to historical boundary lines, is
clearly isolated from the wider conservation area and is not experienced from within
the conservation area.

Due to the level of distancing to those elements which are considered to form the
special interest of the Conservation area and the open spacious gap which would still
be retained between the dwellings on Essex Road and the proposed dwelling, the
development will not harm the significance of the conservation area (and/or sub
area).

The development is considered to continue to conserve the setting of the
conservation area and from some vantage points, to enhance the setting by blocking
views toward Tower Point, an identified negative feature of the conservation area.
Moreover, by condition proposed, any archaeological findings will be recorded.

Having regard to the statutory requirement to give special attention to the desirability
of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of a conservation area (s.72)
the proposal has been assessed against the identified heritage asset as set out
above. It is considered that the development proposals will not lead to any harm to
the significance of the designated heritage asset (conservation area) and will
continue to preserve and enhance it having regard to Policy 7.8 of the London Plan,
Core Policy 31, Policy DMD44 of the Development Management Document, and with
section 12 of the NPPF. The development proposals must therefore now be
assessed against any other material considerations, in accordance with s.38(6) of the
of the 2004 Act and s.70(2) of the T&CPA 1990.

Impact on Character of Surrounding Area



6.3.1.

6.3.2.

6.3.3.

6.3.4.

6.3.5.

6.3.6.

Page 25

Design

There is clear guidance on the approach to the matter of design. The NPPF (section
7) confirms that the Government attaches great importance to the design of the built
environment, with good design being a key aspect of sustainable development but
Paragraph 59 of the NPPF confirms that design policies should “avoid unnecessary
prescription or detail and should concentrate on guiding the overall scale, density,
massing, height, layout, materials and access of new development in relation to
neighbouring buildings and the local area more generally”. Paragraph 60 further
advises that “decision should not impose architectural styles or particular tastes...
[nor] stifle innovation, innovation, originality or initiative through unsubstantiated
requirements to conform to certain development forms or styles...[although it is]
proper to seek to promote or reinforce local distinctiveness” while paragraph 61
advises that “...decisions should address...the integration of new development into
the natural, built and historic environment”.

London Plan policy 7.1 (“Lifetime neighbourhoods”) advises that the design of new
buildings and the spaces created by them should “help to reinforce or enhance the
character, permeability, and accessibility of the neighbourhood” while policies 7.4, 7.5
and 7.6 confirm the requirement for achieving the highest architectural quality, taking
into consideration the local context and its contribution to that context. Design should
respond to contributing towards “a positive relationship between urban structure and
natural landscape features...” Policy DMD 37 (“Achieving High Quality and Design
Led Development”) confirms the criteria upon which application will be assessed.
However, it also recognised there is a degree of subjectivity in this assessment of
acceptable design.

Although sitting mostly within the conservation area, the proposed dwelling has not
been designed to reflect the style and type of housing within the conservation area.
As discussed above, it is considered entirely appropriate that the proposed dwelling
should be more reflective of the housing on the street to which it relates, Walsingham
Road. Details of materials will be secured by condition.

The relationship to flank boundaries is considered appropriate given the level of
distancing from the common boundary (and proposed flank wall) to the rear of the
dwellings on Essex Road. A sense of “spaciousness” between the proposed and
existing developments continues to be maintained.

The proposed dwelling will be similar in height to the existing house at No.36
Walsingham Road. Whilst it is recognised that the wider street scene does contain
some bungalows on the opposite side of the road (some with accommodation within
the roof space), in street scene terms, it would not be unacceptable for a two-storey
dwelling to be erected on the site. Whilst there is no uniform roof type in the area,
front dormer windows are common, as are projecting gable features. The proposed
dwelling features these elements.

Density

The assessment of any development must acknowledge the NPPF and the London
Plan, which encourage greater flexibility in the application of policies to promote
higher densities. Policy 3.4 of the London Plan in particular encourages the
development of land to optimise housing potential but recognises this must be
appropriate for the location taking into account local context, character, design and
public transport capacity. The site falls within an area with a Public Transport
Accessibility Level (PTAL) rating of 2, therefore the London Plan suggests that a



6.3.7.

6.3.8.

6.3.9.

6.3.10.

6.3.11.

6.3.12.

6.3.13.

Page 26

density range of 150-250 habitable rooms per hectare (hrph) may be appropriate for
this location.

Seven habitable rooms are proposed on a site measuring approximately
0.041319sgm, providing a density of approximately 169hrph. This is at the lower end
of the suggested range and given the location and nature of the site, a development
at the lower end of this range is considered appropriate.

Amenity Space Provision

Amenity space standards contained with the DMD are based upon the number of
rooms and occupancy level, for example, a 4-bed 6-person dwelling should provide
50sgm of private amenity space across the whole site.

The proposed GIA is approximately 160sgm and the proposed amenity space is
calculated to be approximately 250sgm (147sgm at the rear), thus providing a ratio of
156%. On this basis, the level of amenity provision exceeds adopted standards. It is
recognised that the proposed dwelling provides a greater footprint than the existing
dwelling but one that would be comparable in size to No.36A. Moreover, whilst the
depth of the proposed rear garden (maximum point, 12m) is less than the
approximate average of 30m for those dwellings fronting Essex Road, the level of
provision (total and at the rear) exceeds many of the properties immediately adjacent
on Essex Road. On balance, this element of the development proposal is considered
acceptable.

The resulting amenity space provision for the existing dwelling must also be
assessed, because it would be unacceptable to compromise provision or quality for
the existing occupiers. Approximately 219sgm of amenity space will be retained for
the existing dwelling, which now has a GIA of approximately 226sqm following the
implementation of the 2012 permission. The proposed level of amenity space for the
existing dwelling exceeds DMD standards and it will still remain comparable with the
garden provision of other dwellings within the area.

Although some of the site is within the conservation area and is covered by an Article
4 Direction, the Direction only restricts development “facing or visible from a highway
or open space”. Having regard to the footprint of the dwelling proposed and the
potential, under the current permitted development (“PD”) rights regime for a
detached dwelling to extend up to 4m under normal householder PD rights (up to 8m
under the prior notification scheme), it is considered appropriate to impose a
condition restricting PD for extensions.

In addition, there is also the potential for large outbuildings to be erected under Class
E. Whilst it is recognised that under the PD regime, not more than 50% of the original
garden for the proposed dwelling can be covered by outbuildings and extensions,
having regard to the importance attached to gardens within the conservation area, it
is considered appropriate to restrict permitted development rights.

Garden Land Development

Although garden land is not included in the definition of “previously developed land”,
this does not exclude all development upon it. The NPPF advises that policies should
resist inappropriate development where for example, it will cause harm to the local
area (para.53). DMD 7 provides the criteria upon which the development of garden
land would be permitted:



6.3.14.

6.3.15.

6.4.

6.4.1.

6.4.2.

6.4.3.

Page 27

a. The development does not harm the character of the area;

b. Increased density is appropriate taking into account the site context in terms of its
location, accessibility and the provision of local infrastructure;

c. The original plot is of a sufficient size to allow for additional dwellings which meet
the standards in DMD 8 'General Standards for New Residential Development’,
(and other design policies);

d. The individual plot sizes, orientation and layout created are appropriate to, and
would not adversely impact on the residential amenity within the development, or
the existing pattern of development in that locality;

e. An adequate amount of garden space is retained within both of the individual
plots in accordance with the minimum amenity space standards (DMD 9 ‘Amenity
Space'), and the role of each space is enhanced to contribute towards other plan
objectives such as biodiversity; green corridors and networks; flood risk; climate
change; local context and character; and play space;

f.  The proposals would provide appropriate access to the public highway

When assessed against the above, the proposed development is considered to:

a. not harm the character of the area;

b. provides for a density level which is at the lower end of the suggested range and
which is appropriate and in keeping for the locality;

c. it complies with the criteria within DMD8 and DMD9;

d. the orientation, layout, plot sizes is acceptable; and

e. appropriate access, as discussed below, is provided to the highway.

It is considered that having regard to the above, no harm would arise to the character
of the area through the development of the garden plot. The proposed development
due to its design, size and siting, does not detract from the character and appearance
of the street scene or the surrounding area having regard to Policies 3.5, 7.1, 7.4 &
7.6 of the London Plan, Core Policy 30 of the Core Strategy, DMD Policies 7, 8, 9
and 10 of the Development Management Document, and with guidance contained
within the National Planning Policy Framework (in particular section 7).

Impact on Neighbour Amenity

A flank window is proposed for the first floor, facing No.34 Essex Road.
Notwithstanding the level of distancing between the flank wall and the rear of No.34
Essex Road is approximately 30m, the window would serve an ensuite which would
normally have obscure glazing. A condition would be imposed on any approval to
secure obscure glazing.

Three windows are proposed for the rear of the dwelling serving two bedrooms and a
centrally positioned bathroom. Each of the three windows look towards the bottom of
the rear garden of No.26 Essex Road and will vary in distance from that common
boundary line from approximately 13m to 15.5m. The level of distancing to the
boundary is considered acceptable and would not lead to undue overlooking and loss
of privacy. Moreover, the windows only look over the bottom of the garden where in
suburban residential settings, some mutual overlooking is to be expected and would
not constitute undue harm.

Conditions are proposed to secure obscure (sand blasted) glazing for the first floor
flank window serving the ensuite and to restrict additional fenestration. A further

condition to restrict permitted development rights for roof extensions is considered
unnecessary in this instance because the proposed dwelling is provided with gable
ends and therefore side dormers or hip-to-gable extensions would not be possible.



6.5.

6.5.1.

6.5.2.

6.5.3.

6.5.4.

6.5.5.

Page 28

Moreover being sited within a conservation area, roof extensions will require planning
permission.

Highway Safety

Traffic Generation

There are no concerns over the potential traffic generation of one additional dwelling
house.

Access

As evidenced by the second reason for refusal of the 2010 application, concerns
were raised in relation to vehicular sight lines, particularly as the previously refused
scheme included a detached garage sited at the north-west end of the embankment
which was to be levelled to accommodate an area of hard standing, and a widened
crossover extending towards Town Park. The concerns centred over driver visibility
when reversing out of the site due to the high volume of use of the footpath outside of
the application site because of the attraction of Town Park and the important
pedestrian route through the park to areas beyond. The officer report did note that
this concern could potentially be overcome by condition to secure adequate visibility
splays.

The existing vehicular access serving No.36 has been widened in accordance with
application reference P12-02849PLA and a carriage drive has been formed. It should
be noted that the access was not extended towards Town Park, which is located
approximately 20m distant. In order for the access to be a safety concern, visibility
around the vehicular access would need to fall below the splays specified in the most
recent highway safety guidance contained in Manual for Streets. The guidance
confirms that consideration needs to be given to frequency of vehicle movements, the
speed and volume of traffic, the amount of pedestrian activity, and the width of the
footway, before judging that visibility splays need to be provided.

With regard to site specific conditions, low vehicle movements and pedestrian activity
mean visibility splays are not essential. The access can only be used by one vehicle
at a time as it only provides the space for one vehicle; it isn’'t an access to a larger
car park, and although the park will generate pedestrian activity it is not the only
access to the park, so pedestrian activity will be spread out around the other access
points. On this basis, defined visibility splays are not considered essential and the
guidance would be more applicable to a town centre location with a high level of foot
fall.

Notwithstanding the above, visibility splays can still be achieved due to the elevated
position of any vehicle on the hard standing and the straight geometry of Walsingham
Road along both sides of the access. The required dimensions of the minimum
visibility splays are taken from the Council’s ‘Revised Technical Guidelines 2013’,
which requires a splay of 2.0m either side of the access from a 2.0m point taken from
the back of the centre crossover. The splay should be from above 0.60m. The
drawings clearly show that the existing dwarf boundary wall of the embankment will
be retained but with the addition of a brick pier that rises up to approximately 0.7m in
height. Whilst the height of the brick pier would not strictly accord with the
recommended 0.6m, having regard to the gradient of the ground (sloping up into the
site), the 0.1m difference is considered to be compensated for, thus maintaining
adequate sight lines for vehicles reversing out of the site. An appropriately worded
condition could be imposed to control the height of any landscaping to the front of the



6.5.6.

6.5.7.

6.5.8.

Page 29

property. Boundary treatments of up to 1m in height are normally permitted adjacent
to a highway under Article 3 and Schedule 2, Part 2, Class A of the GPDO. It is
considered appropriate, in light of the above, to impose a condition to remove this
permitted development right.

In addition to drivers having a good visibility, any pedestrians would have clear sight
of any vehicles reversing out of the hardstanding well in advance of the crossover
location, as shown in the image below:

Parking, Traffic & Highway Safety

The provision of one space for the house is in accord with adopted standards. Whilst
concerns about existing parking are noted, there is no requirement for additional
spaces to be provided. Similarly, the traffic generated from the access will be minimal
given that only one space is being provided, and the existing ‘no parking’ restrictions
ensure visibility along both sides of Walsingham Road is acceptable for vehicular
traffic.

The character of the area means that traffic speeds will be generally low given the
almost 90 degree bend in the road, and it is not unreasonable to expect drivers to
naturally take more care. This assumption is based on observations from the site,
further supported by research undertaken for the Manual for Streets para 2.2.5 (2
ODPM and Home Office (2004) Safer Places: The Planning System and Crime
Prevention. London: TSO). This is further supported by accident data, which shows
no accidents have taken place in the last four years on Walsingham Road, despite
one of the neighbouring properties having an access even closer to the park entrance
(see image below) and offering poorer visibility for both pedestrians and drivers in
comparison to the widened access.



6.6.

6.6.1.

6.6.2.

6.6.3.

6.6.4.

Page 30

B T -_ﬁ'l -n >
S0 L o gt v e =, y _— B _".'-."?‘-‘E""F:"
| A L PR el T i e e e L T =R S i, . R,
View of existing access for 1a Uvedale Road, with the public path leading to Town Park entrance to the right

Housing Need

Section 6 of the NPPF (Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes) provides
guidance on housing delivery and the quality and location of new houses. Paragraph
47 of the NPPF aims to “boost significantly the supply of housing” through the use of
an evidence base and an annually updated supply of specific deliverable sites with a
5% buffer. Paragraph 48 confirms that local planning authorities should make
allowance for windfall sites in the five-year supply if there is compelling evidence that
such sites have consistently become available, although it is advised that this should
not include residential gardens. Housing applications are to be considered in the
context of the presumption in favour of sustainable development. Relevant policies
for the supply of housing should not be considered up-to-date if the local planning
authority cannot demonstrate a five-year supply of deliverable housing sites
(para.49). Paragraph 53 advises that local planning authorities should consider the
case for setting out policies to resist inappropriate development of residential
gardens, for example where development would cause harm to the local area.

The Core Strategy seeks to ensure new developments offer a range of housing sizes
to meet housing need. In particular, it seeks to ensure that with regard to market
housing, 45% are 3+bedroom houses and 20% is 4+bedroom houses. The Core
Strategy policy is based on evidence from the research undertaken by Ecotec.

The findings of Ecotec’s research, Enfield Strategic Housing Market Assessment
(February 2010), demonstrates a shortage of houses of all sizes, particularly houses
with 3+bedrooms across owner occupier, social and private rented sectors. The
greatest requirement in the owner occupied market housing sector is for family sized
housing.

The earlier findings of Fordham’s Research, Enfield Council Housing Study
(September 2005) corroborate Ecotec’s findings. The research showed there was an



6.6.5.

6.6.6.

6.6.7.

6.6.8.

6.7.

6.7.1.

6.7.2.

6.7.3.

Page 31

absolute shortage of four bedroom properties in the owner occupied sector, which is
unique to that sector. The report modelled the potential demand and supply for
different sized properties from 2003-2011 and found the greatest relative shortfall is
for three or more bedroom properties for owner occupation. This is confirmed with
data in the Monitoring Report and Housing Trajectory 2015 (“Monitoring Report”)
which was reported to the Local Plan Cabinet Sub-Committee on 3 March 2016.

The Monitoring Report confirms that in 2014/15, new 3+ bedroom houses accounted
for 23% of provision when Core Policy 5 and DMD3 seek 65%. The proposed
development will provide for a 4-bed dwelling, which, having regard to the Housing
Study and the more recent Monitoring Report, is identified as being a type of greatest
need.

With regard to development on garden land, policy DMD7 has a presumption against
development on garden land unless the criteria contained within the policy are met.
As discussed above, the scheme is considered to satisfy the criteria to permit this
garden land development.

In relation to housing supply, the London Plan 2011 housing target was originally
planned to cover a 10 year period from 2011/12 to 2020/21 and required Enfield to
provide 5,600 additional dwellings, some 560 per year (the previous target from
2006/07 to 2016/17 was 3,950 additional dwellings). The most recent housing
trajectory report, confirms that since 2012, there has been a cumulative shortfall in
housing delivery versus the annual target of 560, with the cumulative shortfall for the
year 2015/16 being 164 dwellings. The borough must identify a supply over the next
five years (2016/17 to 2020/21) of 4,190 (798 per annum plus the 5% buffer).

Having regard to the above, whilst sufficient land has been identified to meet with the
Council's housing targets, the policy requirement is not to just meet with the target
but to exceed it (policy 3.3, London Plan). Although the development would only
result in one additional dwelling, the development will contribute in helping the
Council to exceed its identified housing target. Moreover, the proposed dwelling is of
a size for which there is an identified shortfall.

Sustainable Design and Construction

BREEAM / Code for Sustainable Homes

A written ministerial statement (“WMS”) in March 2015 confirmed the withdrawal of
the code for sustainable homes. Although the applicant had submitted information to
demonstrate compliance with the code, it is no longer necessary for a planning
assessment to be made with respect to this element.

Biodiversity / Ecology

A Phase 1 Habitat Survey undertaken in March 2014 established that there was
negligible ecological value at the site and therefore there were no ecological
constraints to the proposed development. Notwithstanding this, it was recommended
that any vegetation was to be cleared outside of the bird nesting season (March to
August inclusive) or if clearance could not be avoided within this period, an ecologist
would have to firstly confirm whether nesting birds are present.

A review of the submitted ecological survey has confirmed that its findings and
conclusions remain valid. A condition will be imposed in relation to vegetation
clearance.



6.7.4.

6.7.5.

6.7.6.

6.8.

6.8.1.

6.8.2.

6.8.3.

6.8.4.

Page 32

Having regard Core Policy 36, which advises that all schemes should looking to
enhance the ecological value of the respective site, a condition will be imposed to
secure enhancements such as bird and bat boxes / bricks / tiles in addition to native
plantings.

Enerqgy

The development is able to exceed the minimum 8% improvement required above
Building regulations. A condition will be imposed to secure this.

Drainage

The applicant should be designing a drainage strategy that ensures that any runoff is
managed as close to the source as possible. This can be achieved through a variety
of measures such as green roofs and sustainable urban drainage systems (SUDS). A
condition will be imposed requiring the applicant to submit details of a drainage
scheme which will also involve the investigation into the use of SUDS.

Viability

On 28 November 2014 a WMS was published, announcing changes to s106 planning
obligations for small scale development. Paragraphs 12 to 23 of the National
Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) were amended to state that contributions for
affordable housing and tariff style planning obligations should not be sought from
small scale and self-build developments containing 10 units or less with a gross area
of no more than 1000sgm.

The position was subsequently challenged and a case was brought to the High Court
by West Berkshire District Council and Reading Borough Council refuting the
decision on 28 November 2014 to make alterations to national policy in respect of
planning obligations for affordable housing and social infrastructure contributions and
the decision on 10 February to maintain those Policy changes following the
completion of an Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA).

On 31 July 2015 Mr Justice Holgate upheld the challenge and ruled that the changes
to national policy on 28 November 2014 were unlawful and contrary to the provisions
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. In addition, Mr Justice Holgate ruled that the
statement failed to comply with the public sector equality duty under the Equality Act
2010 and consequently failed to give due regard to all material considerations. On
this basis, Mr Justice Holgate quashed the policy and subsequent changes to the
NPPG. Accordingly, paragraphs 012-023 of the NPPG on planning obligations have
been removed.

As the development results in the net increase of residential accommodation, the
consequence of this ruling is that the provisions of Policies CP3 and CP46 of the
Core Strategy and DMD2 of the Development Management Document remain
applicable to the scheme as a material consideration. Therefore, contributions to
accord with the S106 SPD apply in full, unless it can be demonstrated that such
contributions would undermine the viability of the development as a whole.

Affordable Housing




6.8.5.

6.8.6.

6.8.7.

6.8.8.

6.8.9.

6.8.10.

6.9.

6.9.1.

6.9.2.

6.9.3.

Page 33

Affordable housing is housing designed to meet the needs of households whose
income is insufficient to allow them access to “decent and appropriate housing in
their borough” (para.5.17 Core Strategy). Having regard to Core Policy 3, for
developments of less than 10 dwellings the Council will seek a financial contribution
to deliver off-site affordable housing provision based on a borough-wide target of
20%. The level of contribution is based upon the expected sales value, using
comparable data where appropriate, and the formula provided within the S106 SPD.

A value of £500,000 is being used as the assumed sales value, which is supported
by a covering letter from Bowyer Bryce. Applying the S106 SPD formula, the scheme
should therefore be making a contribution of £43,930 towards off-site affordable
housing provision in the Borough.

As discussed below at para.6.9.4, due to the scheme not being determined before 1
April 2016, consideration must be given to the Enfield CIL (£19,200.00). To contribute
a further £19,200.00 would jeopardise the deliverability of the scheme, therefore in
this instance, the Enfield CIL amount should be deducted from the affordable housing
element. This would still result in £24,730.00 being provided towards affordable
housing whilst at the same time, allow for the construction of a much needed family-
sized dwelling.

Any contribution will need to be secured via a s106 Agreement.
Education

Core Policy 8 sets out the education infrastructure requirements of the borough, with
the Monitoring Report confirming the increase in the number of primary (930
additional places in 2012/13, 2315 additional places in 2013/14) and secondary
school places (1006 additional places 2014/15). Core Policy 46 confirms that
infrastructure contributions for learning and skills facilities is one of the priorities while
the supporting text at para.7.3.1 of the S106 SPD also confirms that contributions will
be sought on all residential developments.

Table 7.3 of the S106 SPD confirms that a 4-bed unit should be making a
contribution of £11,408.98. The applicant has confirmed that this contribution will be
made and this will also need to be secured through the s106 Agreement.

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
Mayoral CIL

The Mayoral CIL is collected by the Council on behalf of the Mayor of London. The
amount that is sought is for the scheme is calculated on the net increase of gross
internal floor area multiplied by the Outer London weight of £20 together with a
monthly indexation figure (274 for March 2016).

The development is CIL liable for the construction of 160sgqm of new residential floor
space and the CIL calculation is: (E20/m2 x 160m2 x 274)/223 = £3,931.84.

Enfield CIL

On 1 April 2016, the Council introduced its own CIL. The money collected from the
levy (Regulation 123 Infrastructure List) will fund rail and causeway infrastructure for
Meridian Water. As a result of the application not being determined prior to 1 April,
the Enfield CIL must now be taken into consideration. The application of the CIL



6.10.

6.10.1.

6.10.2.

6.10.3.

6.10.4.

6.11.

6.11.1.

Page 34

formula, having regard to the March indexation figure (274), would therefore result in
the scheme being liable for £19,200.00.

Section 106 / Legal Agreement

Section 106 contributions can still be sought for items of infrastructure not identified
on the Regulation 123 list. A legal agreement will required to secure the affordable
housing and education contributions as set out above. A 5% monitoring fee will also
be incurred as per the S106 SPD.

In summary, the scheme will be providing the following S106 contributions to the
Council:

e Affordable Housing: £24,730.00
e Education: £11,408.98
¢ Monitoring fee: £ 1,806.95

Total: £37,945.93

Having regard to the above contributions, the proposed development would provide a
sufficient level of contributions towards affordable housing, education infrastructure
and associated monitoring fees and through the associated legal agreement to
secure the required planning obligations, has appropriate regard to Policies 3.10,
3.11, 3.12 and 3.13 of the London Plan, Core Policies 3 & 46 of the Core Strategy,
Policy DMD2 of the DMD, the associated S106 Supplementary Planning Document,
and the National Planning Policy Framework.

In addition, the contribution towards affordable housing, whilst not explicitly stated in
any supporting document as a reason to support the development, having regard to
the considerations contained within Section 12 of the NPPF as outlined above and
also to the guidance within the NPPG, would represent a public benefit in favour of
the development because of the identified need for affordable housing in the
Borough.

Other Matters Raised

Judicial Review

References have been made to a judicial review (“JR”) of the previous decision to
grant planning permission. A JR is a process whereby the lawfulness of a decision is
reviewed by the Courts and if successful, the decision is quashed and the local
authority is required to reconsider the application afresh. This may or may not result
in the same decision being made by the local authority. The application for JR was
made on 7 Grounds:

1. Breaches of duty under s.72 of the Listed Buildings Act, 870(1) & 70(2) of the
T&CPA 1990 and s.38(6) of the 2004 Act;

Breach of Regulation 122 of the 2010 CIL Regulations;

A failure to have regard to material considerations;

A regard to irrelevant considerations;

The decision was Wednesbury unreasonable;

Lack of consultation with local residents; and

An unlawful consultation (Drury McPherson Report)

Noahswd



6.11.2.

6.11.3.

6.11.4.

6.11.5.

6.11.6.

6.11.7.

6.11.8.

6.11.9.

Page 35

The council agreed to the quashing order on the basis of Ground 1: that in identifying
any harm to the significance of the conservation area, the officer report should have
made clear that it is then a matter of law that the harm is given considerable
importance and weight. The report therefore fell into material error. Previously,
officers were of the view that the introduction of any development where previously
there had not been any, amounted to some harm. In having to reconsider the
application afresh and in light of a review of relevant case law, officers have
concluded that the proposed development will not lead to any harm to the
significance of the conservation area.

The JR did not, as has been incorrectly stated, “reject” the council’'s decision on all 7
grounds. The council did not accept Grounds 2-7 and the Judge did not consider
Grounds 2-7 on the basis of Ground 1 being conceded.

In relation to Grounds 2-7, where necessary, these are addressed above.
Miscellaneous

It has always been a key principle of decision making that the determination of any
planning application is made in accordance with the development plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise. Although the majority of the development
site is on land, which for historical reasons, is within the conservation area, this does
not preclude development from taking place. As outlined above, it is considered that
no harm arises to the significance of this sub-area of the conservation area or even to
the conservation area as a whole.

The development of garden land is permitted under current planning policy, subject to
satisfying the criteria of DMD8. It is considered that the development adequately
demonstrates compliance with the policy.

In relation to the access points that have been constructed, one of which (the
“existing”) is a widened vehicular crossing and the second, near to the boundary with
36A Walsingham Road, these do not normally require planning permission as they
can be constructed under permitted development rights due to their location on a
non-classified road, by virtue of Article 3, Schedule 2 and Part 2, Class B of the
General Permitted Development Order 2015 (as amended).

Whilst the access points did form part of the 2013 permission, that permission, and
any conditions attached, would only take effect from the commencement of
development. Construction of the widened and new vehicular crossings was
undertaken on 9 January 2014 and commencement works in relation to the approved
extensions occurred on 17 February 2014, therefore the works were not undertaken
pursuant to the planning permission but as permitted development. For clarity, the
southern point of access was amended at the request of the Highway Services to
ensure there was no conflict with existing underground services. Notwithstanding,
and as the application as originally submitted showed the access points in the wrong
position, the plans were amended to correct this.

All relevant planning conditions attached to the 2012 planning permission (P12-
02849PLA) were discharged on 20 October 2013 to the satisfaction of the Local
Planning Authority.

Conclusion



7.1.

7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

Page 36

It is considered that this isolated site itself does not contribute to the significance of
the conservation area or to the New Town sub-area because it cannot be
experienced from within any part of the conservation area. The development is
considered to not lead to any harm or to a loss of significance to the identified
heritage asset. Whilst the proposed dwelling would mostly be sited on an area of
garden land within the conservation area, the gardens of the Essex Road properties
and views into them from Essex Road, Walsingham Road and Uvedale Road are not
harmed. The development proposal continues to conserve and enhance the setting
of the conservation area. This is a view that has been supported through independent
heritage advice and by Council’s Conservation Officer.

It has been concluded that the development proposal will not result in any harm to
the significance of the conservation area and its sub-area. As such, it is not
necessary to identify any public benefits to outweigh the harm. Nevertheless, the
provision of a new family dwelling, for which there is an evidenced need and a
contribution towards affordable housing, again for which there is an evidenced need,
are benefits which do arise from the scheme.

Planning Law requires that applications for planning permission must be determined
in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. The NPPF and related guidance provide important material considerations
to be considered in the planning decision making process.

Having regard to the statutory requirement to give special attention to the desirability
of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of a conservation area
(s.72), and to all other material planning considerations, it is considered that on
balance, planning permission should be granted for the following reasons:

1. The proposed development, due to its design, size and siting, will not lead to any
harm or to a loss of significance to the Enfield Town Conservation Area sub-area
the “New Town” or to the conservation area as a whole and will preserve the
special character and setting of the designated heritage asset having regard to
Policy 7.8 of The London Plan, Core Policy 31 of the Core Strategy, DMD Policy
44 of the Development Management Document, and with guidance contained
within the National Planning Policy Framework (in particular section 12).

2. The proposed development would contribute to increasing London’s supply of
housing and assist in meeting with the provision of family housing within the
Borough, having regard to Policies 3.3 & 3.4 of The London Plan, Core Polices 2
and 4 of the Core Strategy, and with guidance contained within the National
Planning Policy Framework (in particular section 6).

3. The proposed development due to its design, size and siting, does not detract
from the character and appearance of the street scene or the surrounding area
having regard to Policies 3.5, 7.1, 7.4 & 7.6 of the London Plan, Core Policy 30 of
the Core Strategy, DMD Policies 7, 8, 9 and 10 of the Development Management
Document, and with guidance contained within the National Planning Policy
Framework (in particular section 7).

4. The proposed development due to its design, size and siting, does not unduly
harm the existing amenities of the occupiers of adjoining properties in terms of
loss of light, outlook or privacy and in this respect complies with Policy 7.6 of the
London Plan, Core Policy 30, DMD Policy 10 of the Development Management
Document, and with guidance contained within the National Planning Policy
Framework (in particular section 7).



8.1.

Page 37

5. Having regard to conditions attached to this permission, the proposal makes
appropriate provision for access and parking, including cycle parking and visibility
splays, and in this respect complies with Policies 6.3, 6.9, 6.12 & 6.13 of the
London Plan, DMD Policies 45 and 47 of the Development Management
Document, and with guidance contained within the National Planning Policy
Framework (in particular section 4).

6. The proposed development, by virtue of measures proposed and conditions
imposed, will contribute to the mitigation of and adaptation to climate change,
having regard to Policies 5.1, 5.2, 5.3, 5.7, 5.8, 5.9, 5.10 & 5.13 of the London
Plan, Core Policy 32, DMD Policies 51, 53, 58, 59 and 61 of the Development
Management Document, and with guidance contained within the National
Planning Policy Framework (in particular section 10).

Recommendation

That subject to the completion of a S106 Agreement to secure the obligations as set
out above, the Head of Development Management / the Planning Decisions Manager
be authorised to GRANT planning permission subject to the following conditions:

1. C61 Approved Plans — Revised
Unless otherwise required by any condition attached to this
permission, the development hereby permitted shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved plans, as set out in the attached
schedule which forms part of this notice.

Reason: In the interest of proper planning and for the avoidance of
doubt.

2. C51A Time Limited Permission
The development to which this permission relates must be begun not
later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of the
decision notice.

Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004.

3. NSC1 Fenestration
Notwithstanding any submitted plan or supporting documentation,
fenestration to be used throughout the development hereby approved
shall be in timber, with joinery details (1:20 and 1.5 sections) being
provided to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing. The
fenestration shall be installed in accordance with the approved details
and they shall not be altered without the prior written approval of the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason: Having regard to the setting of the Enfield Town
Conservation Area.

4. C24 Obscure Glazing
Notwithstanding the submitted plans, the glazing to be installed in the
first floor flank elevation of the development indicated on drawing
No.KF-001-14/B shall be in sandblasted glass and fixed shut up to a



5. C25
6. CO08
7. CO09
8. NC2
9. C16

Page 38

minimum height of 1.7m above finished floor level. The glazing shall
not be altered without the approval in writing of the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: To safeguard the privacy of the occupiers of adjoining
properties and to ensure an adequate appearance having regard to
the surrounding conservation area.

No Additional Fenestration

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking,
re-enacting or modifying that Order), no external windows or doors
other than those indicated on the approved drawings shall be installed
in the development hereby approved without the approval in writing of
the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To safeguard the privacy of the occupiers of adjoining
properties.

Details of Materials

Notwithstanding any submitted plan or supporting documentation, the
development shall not commence until details of the external finishing
materials have been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and
approved in writing. The submitted detail shall include:

a. Brick type

b. Details of bonding and mortar

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
detail.

Reason: Having regard to the setting of the Enfield Town
Conservation Area.

Details of Hard Surfacing

The development shall not commence until details of the surfacing
materials to be used within the development, not including the hard
surfacing already approved for the driveway, but including footpaths,
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The surfacing shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved detail before the development is occupied.

Reason: To ensure that the development does not prejudice highway
safety and to ensure a satisfactory appearance.

Front Boundary Wall
The front boundary wall and piers shall not be higher than 0.7m in
height.

Reason: In the interest of highway safety.

Private Vehicles Only — Garage / Parking Areas

The garage and parking areas to be provided shall be kept available
for the parking of private motor vehicles at all times The garage /
parking areas shall be used solely for the benefit of the occupants of



10. C17

11.C19

12. NSC3

Page 39

the dwelling of which it forms part and their visitors and for no other
purpose and permanently retained as such thereafter.

Reason: To ensure that the development complies with adopted
Policy and to prevent the introduction of activity that would be
detrimental to visual and residential amenity.

Details of Landscaping

Prior to occupation full details of soft landscape proposals shall be

submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing. The

details shall include:

a. Planting plans

b. Written specifications (including cultivation and other operations
associated with plant and grass establishment)

c. Schedules of plants and trees, to include native and wildlife
friendly species and large canopy trees in appropriate locations
and plantings that would not interfere with vehicular
sightlines (noting species, planting sizes and proposed numbers /
densities)

d. Implementation timetables.

Wildlife friendly plants and trees of local or national provenance

Specifications for fencing demonstrating how hedgehogs and

other wildlife will be able to continue to travel across the site (gaps

in appropriate places at the bottom of the fences)

0]

The landscaping shall be provided in accordance with the approved
details prior to first occupation.

Reason: To ensure the provision of amenity, and biodiversity
enhancements, afforded by appropriate landscape design in
accordance with adopted policy, and to ensure highway safety.

Details of Refuse Storage & Recycling Facilities

Within three months of commencement of the development, details of
refuse storage facilities including facilities for the recycling of waste to
be provided within the development, in accordance with the London
Borough of Enfield — Waste and Recycling Planning Storage
Guidance ENV 08/162, shall be submitted to the Local Planning
Authority for approved in writing. The facilities shall be provided in
accordance with the approved details before the development is
occupied or use commences.

Reason: In the interest of amenity and the recycling of waste materials
in support of the Boroughs waste reduction targets and having regard
to visual amenity.

Energy

The energy efficiency of the development shall provide for no less
than a 8% improvement in the total CO, emissions arising from the
operation of the development and its services over Part L of Building
Regs 2013 as the baseline measure. Prior to first occupation,
confirmation shall be provided to the Local Planning Authority.



13. NSC4

14. NSC5

15. C59

16. NSC6

Page 40

Reason: To ensure that the development meets or exceeds the
energy efficiency and sustainable development policy requirements of
the London Plan and the Core Strategy.

SUDS 1

No development shall take place until an assessment has been
carried out into the potential for disposing of surface water by means
of a sustainable drainage (SUDS) scheme, in accordance with the
principles of sustainable drainage systems set out in national planning
policy guidance and statements, and the results of that assessment
have been provided to the Local Planning Authority. The assessment
shall take into account the design storm period and intensity (1 in 100
and 1 in 1 year storm events); methods to delay and control the
surface water discharged from the site; and measures to prevent
pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters.

Reason: To ensure that the proposal would not result in an
unacceptable risk of flooding from surface water run-off or create an
unacceptable risk of flooding elsewhere.

SUDS 2

Surface water drainage works shall be carried out in accordance with

details that have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the

Local Planning Authority before the development commences. Those

details shall include a programme for implementing the works. Where,

in the light of the assessment required by the above condition, the

Local Planning Authority concludes that a SUDS scheme should be

implemented, details of the works shall specify:

a. a management and maintenance plan, for the lifetime of the
development, which shall include the arrangements for adoption
by any public authority or statutory undertaker or any other
arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout
its lifetime; and

b. the responsibilities of each party for implementation of the SUDS
scheme, together with a timetable for that implementation.

Reason: To ensure implementation and adequate maintenance to
ensure that the proposal would not result in an unacceptable risk of
flooding from surface water run-off or create an unacceptable risk of
flooding elsewhere.

Details of cycle storage

Within three months of commencement of the development, details
(including elevational details) for covered cycle parking for the storage
of a minimum of 2 bicycles shall be submitted to the Local Planning
Authority for approved in writing. The approved cycle storage shall be
provided prior to first occupation of the development and permanently
maintained, kept free from obstruction, and available for the parking of
cycles only.

Reason: To provide secure cycle storage facilities free from
obstruction in the interest of promoting sustainable travel.

Tree / Shrub Clearance



17. NSC7

18. NSC8

19. NSC9

20. NSC10

Page 41

All areas of trees, hedges, scrub or similar vegetation where birds may
nest which are to be removed as part of the development, are to be
cleared outside the bird-nesting season (March to August inclusive) or
if clearance during the bird-nesting season cannot reasonably be
avoided, a suitably qualified ecologist will check the areas to be
removed immediately prior to clearance and advise whether nesting
birds are present. If active nests are recorded, no vegetation
clearance or other works that may disturb active nests shall proceed
until all young have fledged the nest.

Reason: To ensure that wildlife is not adversely impacted by the
proposed development in accordance with national wildlife legislation
and in line with CP36 of the Core Strategy. Nesting birds are protected
under the Wildlife and Countryside Act, 1981 (as amended).

Arboricultural

All tree works as detailed within the BS5837 Tree Survey,
Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Method Statement shall be
undertaken in accordance with good arboricultural practice and British
Standard 3998: 2010 Recommendations for Tree Work.

Reason: In order to maintain the tree(s) amenity value and health.

Tree Protection

Tree protection measures and works in proximity to retained trees,
within the site and on adjacent sites, shall be undertaken in
accordance with the details as set out in the BS5837 Tree Survey,
Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Method Statement. There shall
be no deviation from the approved measures without the prior written
approval of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interest of visual amenity having regard to the setting
of the Enfield Town Conservation Area and in the interest of
preserving the health of retained trees.

Biodiversity Enhancements

Prior to occupation of the development, 3 bat boxes and 3 bird boxes
are to be installed on and around the new building under the
supervision of a suitably qualified ecologist. A brief letter report
confirming that the boxes have been installed, including a simple plan
showing the location and type of boxes, is to be submitted to the
Council within 3 months of installation.

Reason: To ensure that the ecological value of the site is enhanced
post development in line with CP36 of the Core Strategy.

Restriction of PD - Front Boundary Enclosure

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any order revoking,
re-enacting or modifying that Order), no walls, fences, gates or any
other means of enclosure, including piers, shall be erected on any part
of the site lying between any wall of buildings fronting a highway and
the highway boundary, without the prior approval in writing of the
Local Planning Authority.



21.NSC11

22.NSC12

23. NSC13

Page 42

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance and in the interests of
maintaining adequate visibility splays having regard to highway safety.

Restriction of PD — Extensions and Outbuildings

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any order revoking,
re-enacting or modifying that Order), no buildings or extensions to
buildings shall be erected, other than those expressly authorised by
this permission, without the prior approval in writing of the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interest of preserving garden land which is identified as
being of importance within the Enfield Town Conservation Area.

Archaeology

The developer shall notify the Greater London Archaeology Advisory
Service of the start of groundworks no less than two weeks before
commencement and permit access by the Enfield Archaeological
Society, at any reasonable time to be agreed between the applicant
and the Enfield Archaeological Society, to monitor the development
and record features of interest.

Reason: To enable the recording of any features of archaeological
interest.

Construction Methodology

That development shall not commence until a construction
methodology has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The construction methodology shall contain:

a. a photographic condition survey of the roads, footways and verges
leading to the site;

b. arrangements for the loading, unloading and turning of delivery,

construction and service vehicles clear of the highway;

arrangements for wheel cleaning;

arrangements for the storage of materials;

hours of work;

arrangements for the securing of the site during construction;

A construction management plan written in accordance with the

‘London Best Practice Guidance: The control of dust and emission

from construction and demolition’.

@~oao

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
construction methodology unless otherwise agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the implementation of the development does not
lead to damage to the existing highway and to minimise disruption to
neighbouring properties and the environment.



Page 43

W»:‘ 8 /¥L-200-d

- uoisiAZY / ON INIMYHD

PLOZ HOAVW

ave

00171 NYId X078 305 035040

105 ONIMVE0
_ QTVHIDILE W SIN B IW N
A39 TN3
¥IS31001W
‘01N
0v0d WYHINISTYM 9£
Hd 98a20-¢ 1 0} Juadefpe puey ails
3SN0OH 03HIVII0 WOODB03E ¥
01504034
SustuIwE AT oD put Bupped pey
wapRiedat ARpuncq Jsearny o paxmpas bunes o pim v:._nﬁ-nﬁ. | m
Ay wo | Nowws
\ ... (AR Y \ .\ll.,.\
LR
|
"
L -
- B -
.-
.l\
\ St
.-
o
o
L -
.-
=
L
. -
-
- oo
L -
\ . -
-
_ s
L —
\ .-
(o)) A
L -
.- \
i
—
—
-—
=
=3 . -
. -
L -—
L -
, -
s \
L -
. - ;
1 |
©

|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
| ;
_ " 7
— ] Sy (L S3PAS PUR S 0 BRIV L3RG \
N L, .\Mw
<= /f ...... 9 ém.ﬁkw
!/ x Sl
/./ \....Nr_. ,..,./f_
/ e
\\/\./. k :f.;;.f.
N -4



THOZ HIEYIN

ava

1 @ 1y Buwein gy

05°1 SNYd HOOTd 035004
0014 SNOLLYAT TS 03500k

A39IN3

X35T00IN

‘anaENa

'OV0Y WIVHONISTYM 9E
<0y asefpe pue|

Page 44

(=) ooy 05T
T T 7

844

X H T abeueb
M L]
\ a_ﬁ- |_|

|- _
i : . /H|_ Aynyn }
\ | _ | =

You 3pIS

L

051 SUeld Jo0jJ pasodolq

[y '
nnnnnn

— ]

Jm
wayyy
——

e W —

"00l:| SUOLBAS]3 pasodold

ViR TEo -4




Page 45

md»A 8 /bl - £00-3

@ uopsAaY / ON ONIMYHD

PLOZ HOUYW

kL]

DOL:L NOILD3S 3LIS 03504 0dd

00131 NOILYAITE INTDS 133415 0350d0dd

VIS DNIMYHD

OTYY39LLI "N SIN B IW

A9 74
357100

Q31N

QY0H WYHONISTYM 9%

¥7J999E0-%1) 0} uarefpe puey

ISNOH 03HIV1IO WOO¥OI8 ¥

1000 w4 abue) |
e g Ak PR B OB |y ey

bl Uva

(u mayequg gaua
[ BE B BE

o ¢ f & 4 5




Page 46

APPENDIX 1

PLANS OF REFUSED SCHEME: REFERENCE TP/10/0818



Page 47

QL AR

Alva

“.« al .
Y|
' UCISIASY ] ON ONIMYO

o B s e wufug|

00 N d 30079 A1IS 0350d08d

A9 TN

xX3s3aam

‘a134Ng

‘OY0H WYHONISTYM 9E

| NEVHEY _. ava

oy Jusoeipe pue $3Ms

o010z Aaw

Suofjosyiddy fanuoD Bueing ¥ Bujutiny 10p v!no!s_ v

HOATY

OE U0 TR o o sucTsuGDlp L

|

s e gty

3/80[0d/dL

L

() segaros wont
r -_ll -4 A. .-

peoy

0011 Ueid Yp01d a)1S pasodoig

weybuis|em

.,ﬁjf\__.,./ \

.f%.

.v

g b Y =
b\.ﬁ.f
Ji e

A
! et Pl
M / Doy S ey e 1 farrerg
-y
i s
U } DO BT A O AN SO
-!.j.l [
IO .//
* a
-m.‘_.i)/.. -~
hONS )
__ _.rr.,l\vq,_ /;
= A ~
4
4 \
€l /
S
=
A -
W

L ,

[u b5HBST) IUTS By
RS oy oZm._Ens oL

bb

._ .n&
ar r.l.rn_IE =

R NI S|
PopIEoq 95OR UBY WA T NN




Page 48

Te .
.ﬂ g B EORAL S+ I EROW AR

SO

— .n. HORTE DN DA

1y e Eamn pas

093 M RCOUGE b —
.I- - - —~

RIS ) SSOSHERS ew

e e b L e TR SRR Y %
s apr | wdigaar
A A W AR
TR I 54 e

e\?\._n §

Emﬁ q._ di

-~

isRe JERl

Ksguesl By e Lkdn

yidou 3nI%

wines  apis

Nt SS S

ek Bt wam

SRR JUGH)

0l SUGIIPAS|S  paso0uld

ST R -

£y

R R R ey




LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 26th April 2016
Report of Contact Officer: Ward:
Assistant Director, Planning, | Andy Higham 020 8379 3848 Winchmore Hill

Highways & Transportation Sharon Davidson 020 8379 3841
Francis Wambugu 020 8379 5076

Ref: 15/04043/FUL Category: Full Application

LOCATION: Keble Preparatory School, Wades Hill, London, N21 1BG

PROPOSAL: Minor material amendments to P14-00584PLA to allow retention of existing building
involving replacement of existing asphalt roof finish with zinc, removal of the parapet walling,
replacement of three bubble roof lights with frameless glazed roof lights and removal of skylight at
rear.

Applicant Name & Address: Agent Name & Address:
Keble School Mr Sean Kehoe

Wades Hill Sean Kehoe

Winchmore Hill 15 Pellerin Road

London London

N21 1BG N16 8AY
RECOMMENDATION:

That planning permission is recommended be REFUSED for the attached reason/s.

Note for Members:

Although an application of this nature would normally be determined under delegated authority, due
to the history of the site and for transparency, it is considered appropriate for the application to be
determined by the Planning Committee

Eage 40 Agente-terrt—




Page 50

A
S
. 0004@0‘000“ 1

ettt
g L,

W
o

el

2

<

o
<
’

S
<
<

o

<

o

o

&

o
=

L
2

<

'
’0

.
e
iy
s
o

7

&

e e
e aten
o X e e
A )
fffbfffffftt d‘@.ﬁ.’#‘f‘_i_i_
o

®

North

Scale 1:1250

Ref: 15/04043/FUL LOCATION: Keble Preparatory School, Wades Hill, London, N21 1BG

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey
on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and

database right 2013. All Rights Reserved.

Ordnance Survey License number 100019820

Council

ENFIELD




Page 51

1. Site and Surroundings

11

The subject site comprises a school on the western side of Wades Hill, to the
south and west of Harwoods Yard. The school site comprises an ‘L’ shape,
with a variety of buildings serving its educational function mostly on the
western half of the site, with the main school building adjacent to the northern
boundary. Vehicular access into the school is located between Glenwood
House, a Grade Il Listed Building, and No0.38 Wades Hill. The main school
building is sited adjacent to residential properties on Harwoods Yard and
Broadfields Avenue. The area is predominately residential and is
characterised by a mixture of terraced and semi-detached properties. The
southern half of the site falls within the Winchmore Hill Green Conservation
Area.

2. Proposal

2.1

2.2

2.3

The application is for a minor material amendment to planning permission
P14-00584PLA.The extension was built to a greater height than that approved
and an additional rooflight was installed. Current proposals seek to retain the
extension but with alterations involving removal of the parapet walling,
replacement of the existing asphalt roof finish with zinc, replacement of three
bubble roof lights with frameless glazed roof lights and removal of one skylight
at rear.

A previous application ref: 14/04111/FUL for minor material amendment to
planning permission P14-00584PLA to allow an increase in the height of the
building and installation of 1 additional roof light was refused by committee on
the basis that, The extension, given its size, siting, design, and height has led
to a loss of outlook and an increased sense of enclosure for the occupiers of
No.1 Harwoods Yard, detrimental to their amenities. In this respect the
development in contrary to Policy DMD 37 of the Development Management
Document.

The current proposal is a follow up on the previous refusal.

3. Relevant Planning History

3.1

3.2

3.3

14/04111/FUL — Minor material amendments to approval P14-00584PLA to
allow an increase in the height of the building and installation of 1 additional
roof light — refused 18.12.14.

ENF/14/0232 - Alleged development larger than plans - ongoing

P14-00584PLA - Demolition of existing stores/changing rooms and erection of
a single storey side and rear extension — 26.2.14.

4. Consultations

4.1

41.1

4.1.2

Statutory and non-statutory consultees

Winchmore Hill Residents Association

No comment

Conservation Officer




4.2

42.1

4.2.2

Page 52

No comment

Public response

Consultation letters were issued to 13 neighbouring properties.

Seven objection letters have been received raising the following concerns:

The extension will continue to block light to neighbouring property, more
so than the original building and was not what was agreed originally

The size and shape of the building remains the same to the one refused
last year by planning being 3 feet too high; only the roofing material is
different.

Being in a conservation area, the school should be respectful of the value
of the conservation area

Out of keeping with character of area

Detrimental impact on neighbouring properties at Harwoods Yard

White finished walls an eye sore

Extensions to school every summer holiday causing noise/dust and
general inconvenience

Does not comply with planning permission

Close to adjoining properties

Will infringe on the amenity and enjoyment of neighbouring property
Thought only one retrospective application can be made, this is the
second

Conflict with local plan

Development too high

General dislike of proposal

Information missing from plans

Drawings contain inaccuracies

Blocking light and views and sky plane

Building too big, awkward, bulky and unduly affecting amenity of
neighbouring property

Will contribute to a ‘tunnelling effect’ in the rear garden.

Not built in accordance with approved drawings

Not high quality

Materials and detailing are an improvement but these are not minor
amendments

Fourteen letters have been received in support:

Supports further development at the school in provision of modern facilities
to enhance the children’s experience.

Plans look as though they are a fantastic improvement on the quality and
look of the school buildings

Refurbishment and developing the premises will in future help the boys to
excel and enjoy the amenities provided by the school.

School is an asset to the local community together with Palmers Green
High.

The councillors and the borough should do the right thing for the school
and the 220 boys that attend and their 440 parents.

School has good intentions



Page 53

e Upgrades particularly to older buildings would improve the site

e Zinc roofing should give the site much improved finish and aspect
especially for neighbouring properties

e Demolition will result in wastage of resources; the building is fit for
purpose.

e Children should be the main consideration

e Proposal is in line with the school's aims for the present and future
education of all the boys.

o Refusal of scheme would be highly punitive for a school of this size and
pupils would undoubtedly be impacted.

e Schools are under pressure to meet demand for places whilst keeping their
facilities safe, modern and appropriate even before they meet their main
function of educating children.

e The application should be supported to enable the school resolve the
matter satisfactorily.

5 Relevant Policies

5.1 The London Plan 2015

Policy 7.1 Building London’s neighbourhoods and communities
Policy 7.4 Local character

Policy 7.5 Public realm

Policy 7.8 Heritage assets

5.2 Core Strateqy

CP30 Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open
environment
CP32 Built and landscape environment

5.3 Development Management Document (DMD)

DMD 11 Rear extensions
DMD 37 Achieving high quality and design-led development
DMD 44 Preserving and enhancing heritage assets

5.4 Other Relevant Considerations

National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Practice Guidance
Winchmore Hill Green Conservation Area character appraisal

6. Analysis
6.1 Principle

The principle of the extension was established through the grant of planning
permission under planning reference P14-00584PLA.

6.2 Background



6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

6.3.3

6.3.4

Page 54

The extension was built to a greater height than that approved under planning
reference P14-00584PLA and an additional rooflight was installed.

A subsequent application ref: 14/04111/FUL for minor material amendments
to approval P14-00584PLA to allow an increase in the height of the building
and installation of 1 additional roof light was submitted. The proposals were
assessed by officers who concluded that the additional height of the extension
and installation of an additional rooflight would not unduly impact on the
amenities enjoyed by the residents of the adjacent property No.1 Harwoods
Yard. The application was presented to the planning committee with an officer
recommendation to grant planning permission.

The planning committee overturned officer’'s recommendation and refused the
application. In refusing the application, the committee was of the view that the
extension, given its size, siting, design, and height has led to a loss of outlook
and an increased sense of enclosure for the occupiers of No.1 Harwoods
Yard, detrimental to their amenities.

The main issue to consider therefore with regard to this application is whether
the current proposals have satisfactorily addressed the concerns raised by
committee with particular regard to loss of outlook and sense of enclosure on
the occupiers of No. 1 Harwoods Yard. The proposals will also be assessed
with regard to their impact on the surrounding area.

Impact on Character of Surrounding Area

Core Policy 30 requires all developments and interventions in the public realm
to be of high quality and have special regard to their context whilst Policy 37
of Development Management Document requires that development be
suitable for its intended function and be appropriate to its context having
appropriate regard to its surroundings

It was noted in the previous planning assessment under planning reference
14-00584PLA that, The Winchmore Hill Green Character Appraisal does not
individually refer to the Keble Preparatory School and identifies it as a neutral
building. Whilst the area of the school site where the proposed extension is
sited is not within the Conservation Area, due to its siting adjacent to
Harwoods Yard the extension would be a visible presence within the
Conservation Area. However, the relationship of the proposed structure to
host building is considered appropriate.

The additional height to the element of the extension sited between the main
school building and the dwellinghouse at No.1 Harwoods Yard does not have
an impact on the character of the Conservation Area due to its siting between
the two built forms which screen it from views to the Conservation Area.

The additional height to the element which extends beyond the rear of the
dwellinghouse at No.1 Harwoods Yard has been increased by 0.65m as built
to what was approved. The height of the parapet wall adjacent to the shared
boundary with No.1 Harwoods Yard where the roof pitches away from the
boundary is to the approved height up to where the angle of the pitch is more
pronounced. As part of current proposals, the height of the flat roof element
furthest from the boundary with No. 1 Harwoods Yard and abutting the main



6.3.5

6.4

6.4.1

6.4.2

6.4.3

Page 55

school building is proposed to be raised by between 98mm to 180mm so that
the maximum increase would be 0.709m and this height is necessary to
create a fall of 3% for rainwater drainage purposes but with no significant
additional impact given their scale. It is proposed to remove the bubble
rooflight on the pitched roof facing No. 1 Harwoods Yard rear garden. These
improvements together with the removal of the parapet surround and the new
zinc roof would enhance the appearance of the extension when viewed from
the rear garden of No. 1 Harwoods Yard and the wider surrounding area. In
the analysis of the original application it was asserted that the relationship of
the proposed structure to the main school building was appropriate. The
additional height does not alter this analysis and the overall height of the
structure still relates well to the main school building.

Notwithstanding the relationship with the main school building, the scale and
siting of the subject extension and in particular its height and massing are
more apparent when viewed from the rear garden area of adjacent property
No. 1 Harwoods Yard. Although the proposed alterations have greatly
improved the external visual appearance of the extension they have not
addressed the main issue regarding its dominating presence on the adjacent
property which results in poor outlook and sense of enclosure. It is therefore
considered that the additional height to the approved structure would unduly
impact on the neighbouring property and surrounding area, having regard to
Core Policies 30 and 31 of the Core Strategy, and Policies DMD 37 and DMD
44 of the Development Management Document, and having regard to the
Winchmore Hill Conservation Area Character Appraisal.

Impact on Neighbouring Properties

Approved extension:

Policy 37 of Development Management Document requires that development
be suitable for its intended function and be appropriate to its context having
regard to its surroundings.

The height of the approved extension adjacent to the shared boundary with
No.1 Harwoods Yard was 2.4m. In recommending grant of planning
permission under planning reference P14-00584PLA it was noted that the
proposed extension would breach a 45 degree line taken from the centre of
the rear facing windows at No.1, however, taking into account the existing
boundary treatment, as well as the existing outbuilding adjacent to the shared
boundary with No.1, it was considered that the proposed extension would not
result in an unacceptably prominent or overbearing presence when viewed
from the rear of No.1 Harwoods Yard, or from the neighbouring properties in
Harwoods Yard.

Existing extension:

With regard to the ‘as built' extension, the committee was of the view that,
given its size, siting, design, and height the extension has led to a loss of
outlook and an increased sense of enclosure for the occupiers of No.l
Harwoods Yard, detrimental to their amenities. In this respect the
development is contrary to Policy DMD 37 of the Development Management
Document.

Proposed alterations:



6.4.4

6.4.5

6.4.6

6.4.7

6.4.8

6.4.9

Page 56

The current proposals in seeking to overcome the reasons for previous
refusal include some alterations to the ‘as built’ structure.

The parapet walling surrounding the flat roof is proposed to be removed
thereby reducing the height of the extension at the sides by 340mm.

The existing bubble skylight on the sloping side roof facing the rear garden to
No. 1 Harwoods Yard is to be removed thereby ensuring that the potential to
cause harm to the amenities enjoyed by the residents of this property through
noise emanating from within the extension is no longer an issue.

The existing asphalt roof cover over the extension is proposed to be replaced
with zinc and the three existing bubble skylights on the roof would be replaced
with frameless glazed rooflights. In addition, it is proposed to improve the
corner details to the front and side walling adjacent number 1 Harwoods Yard.
However, the new zinc roof would require a minimum drainage fall of 3% as
opposed to the 1.5% required by the existing asphalt roofing and this would
be achieved by increasing the height of the roof by between 98mm and
180mm from the point where it pitches away.

Overall, these measures would significantly enhance the visual appearance of
the extension when viewed from the garden area of No.1 Harwoods Yard as
well as from the surrounding area.

Resulting extension:

The extension is built to a height of 2.4m along the shared boundary. From
the 2.414m element the extension has a sloping roof up to a flat roofed
element at a height of between 3.224m, this being 0.65m higher than the
approved scheme. Although the roof pitches away from the boundary, the
additional height makes the bulk and massing of the extension more apparent
when viewed from the rear garden area of No. 1 Harwoods Yard. As
mentioned above, the height of the flat roof element furthest from the
boundary with No. 1 Harwoods Yard and abutting the main school building is
to be raised by between 98mm to 180mm so that the maximum increase
would be 0.709m and although this increase is insignificant due to its scale, it
is considered that as it is not proposed to reduce the height, bulk and
massing, the proposals have failed to overcome reasons for previous refusal.

6.4.10 Having regard to the above it is considered that although the measures

6.5

6.5.1

proposed would greatly improve the outlook and visual appearance of the
extension and this is commendable, they have not overcome the reasons for
previous refusal as they have failed to address the main issue relating its
height and scale and the resulting loss of outlook and sense of enclosure to
the residents of the adjacent property No.1 Harwoods Yard. Accordingly the
proposals are unacceptable having regard to Core Policy 30 of the Core
Strategy, and Policy DMD 37 of the Development Management Document.

Other issues identified through consultation

A number of issues have been raised by adjoining residents regarding
dust/noise and general disturbance, inaccuracies in the plans, information
missing from the plans and the quality of the building. It can be confirmed that



6.5.2

Page 57

the applicant has submitted additional plans that have satisfactory details and
it is proposed to improve the quality of works. The issues regarding noise/dust
and general disturbance are unavoidable but a temporary consequence of
development and cannot be considered as grounds to refuse planning
permission.

A number of supporting letters have been received highlighting the fact that
the school is a community asset and the need to support its modernisation of
the facilities and that any demolition of the building would be a wastage of
resources. These comments are noted and although material considerations
cannot override the policy considerations.

7. Conclusion

7.1

In the light of the above, it is considered that the minor material amendment
sought is unacceptable as it would result in harm on the amenities of the
occupiers of adjoining property.

8. Recommendation

8.1

That planning permission be REFUSED for the following reason:

The extension, given its size, siting, design, and height has led to a loss of
outlook and an increased sense of enclosure for the occupiers of No.1
Harwoods Yard, detrimental to their amenities. In this respect the
development in contrary to Policy DMD 37 of the Development Management
Document.




e L
rarm
™
e |
whig
]

<




Page 59




Page 60




ed Site Plan

2Pronos
15500




Page 62

v 100T|dI ¥00

ONINNV1d

ueyd jooy pa

s2v0 912 01011

100495 21ga)

payan o0
=

m
I}
<
28
=
E

HJ._E

j -3
A v uoneAs|3

WBIHS
pasodoig—

sound

xoq u__,wl_

6uidod ouz—

WIS
pasodol

pa1 uj umoys

WBIRtS msz;wl_

1T

auiz

4001 18} SuIZ|

\E]

H TIv4

preA spoomieH T

s2un6, Bt

X0gouz—)  pasodoig—

EE

ueld hommmuﬁ O

dmy ourz—

Joo1 ey buiz

Buipjing jooyos ure

T

001 Jejjourz

| |

Elevation

T




Page 63

PLANNING

i
[=3
8
N

e
<
o

s

Existing Boundary

[]
ﬁ
L] ]
OzﬂgvatlonA Proposed

L —
266
£21e

\ [

Existing Boundary

0082

—
ey i 162

|
|
a T i Zf: use m]J
! g
e | 5.5
- Q) ii3
I BEZ
g H FE°
£ ! = 232
23 ! 58S
' 5o
! 888
— " <3
© 8
T f )
- 1 9z | g
= — ‘ S
! H
1
H
(=2 ]
£
— =
2
I — 5
[ ] i
.
D g
2
s g
o
u} O Bl
E“:| =




81702 | dI ¥00

Bumeip panoudde ap anoge
wwigpE St Joos Bunisixe ay) uoneaydde Sy Jo Z0z-(l)-v00 "0u BuIMEI 01 33UBIBEI Ul JBRMOH

ONINNV1d 100495 2192

20 e sBumeip J0 125 paroidde Ly Ut Ui 1BIBY 01 AL Ul S3dUBIBIA *1LI0 Ad pepiA0Id
Se (QTT/THA/0262T ‘0N Buimelq) vdvy8S00-vTd 4oy siuawnoop panoidde uo paseq
212 3A0GE ANIQ U UMOUS BWAYDS PaAOIGE AU} J0 SUOTEAO] PUE SUOISUALIQ ‘210U 3seald

g uoners|3 100405 3]ga

Page 64

05T’ 0S'T
pasodoid - g uonens|3 Bunsix3 - g uoneas|3
\JI/
—_ r;_ e
|
— R e S - U —_—
REE] REE]
i
i
Irem N N
- poispuas > - N
S Bunsixg ! & ] z
S 8
w g e
@ g @
g R oo bunsa | g
dma !
eusown Bunsxs ot
Buiimal gy ouIz-
= i L
=
g _ g
!
ol
001 pasodoid auy _ M
pue-(anfg vl umoys) 1
| oo
aBian oz Buidoo a1a10u00
' -1adered bugsix:
porowss |
- oo ) o
s Krepunog Ut oy swas Kuepunog

panosdde jo aur—

sapua

e



Page 65

Y 010 € dl Y00 wumon

ONINNV1d

0ST' 0ST
pasodoid - vV :o_smmNO BUNSIXT - Vv :o_ammHO

06¢

44

06¢

vivZ

asi:14

:5%4
aJ
1A%

yore

1
_ ﬁ
[ I
'
00y Jeydsy—  WBIAxS Bunsixg— _
Arepunog

=




Page 66

v 110 € dl v00 .

g-8 uonoas pasodoid

100498 3|g23

g-9 co:uﬁw”wan—” o

pIng

91971 1001 PaUSIULF—

—t
— - §
™ i g
ED
]
s
3
(oon
;
N )
(!
i i
— F.cl
N s 2
Bunsixa _
5o 143 anoqe !
WOpZ-enal waisks sound
Builiao pausiui+— Jooy ourz— x0q ouIZ- _
poiu
UMOUS [2A3] J00 18desed uo !
Paysiuy BunSIXF— Buiysels auz—
panowas- Arepuno
21qanq anst P! 9




Page 67

00v| d| ¥00 ..

ONINNVY1d

(Ut ql

|reyap uawinge e G O

|reiep Em__%_ﬁmNO

Buisen o0z

s0aid
Suwn. uoneinsuj

weas Bupuers ouz—I

|rejap Jannb xoq jood 1ejq

Buidos ourz—I

_]

6uidon

I1em pal
sioquBian—I




Page 68

Torl d | 700 e

ONINNV1d

100 100405 213t
ST OﬁﬁH
SERELIET I'e1ep 1annb xoq JooJ patPlid
rem
Jeusaa b
i 1
A\ |
7\/\/5 |
90 WwQoY suiz-zeNd Jaunb
® ureas soa1d wysiulg - Uiz xoqouiz
e1ose) oUIZ—I BupueIs- Burn4—I uoneinsu—I

weas BupUERIS-

\v
—
il —
[ I
sisof ouiz-zuend
usamiaq paoeld oq ;m,_m_u_ -ouz
0) uone|Su| - 1silop—  uoReln: wress Bupueis—I
I | uomepnsu=]

dMy duIZ-

Buido ouiz—




Page 69

09

1 T0T1 d| 900 warmorune

Jasets s
ONINNV1d

puno fovedainsip Aue

ueid ooy Bunsix 10043S aga3
- o fr—
05T
Ue|d Jooy
preA spoomseH T
uoneAs|3 Buidoo WhIrS 004 WBIAS Buidod WIS
- S119U0: 2190ng 2nseld— 1210000—  2jaang aNSEId— Jomno—
Buidoy Jo0y
aar0u0: Pauolid yeudsy:

m
I}
<
S
o
5

e _,E%«I‘ a1aang onse

. [od

T Tvd

BuIp|iNg [00U2S el

|

FALL

Elevation

T




Page 70

i<
o
=}
«
o
<
=3
=}

ONINNV1d 100495

100498 3|ga%

05T 0S:T'
pasodoid - O :o_Hm>w_m_No Bunsix3 - O co_:m>w_m_.—“ O

n44 BEE]
em o -
posopuas M R
g Gunsica 3 o spuay =
S o a 8
] 5
2
A
. R -
panowsi aq
Buiddes waishs Buidod @j@10U00
Buiuwma dmy aurz- Irem ourz— 400y duIZ- - 1adered Bunsix: 100 1[eydsy-
Jodesed jo

aui Bupsix;



Page 71

Agenda Item 7

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date : 26th April 2016

Report of
Assistant Director, Planning &
Environmental Protection

Contact Officer:

Andy Higham Tel: 020 8379 3848
Kevin Tohill Tel: 020 8379 3841
Ray Reilly Tel: 020 8379 3579

Ward: Edmonton
Green.

Application Number : 15/04736/FUL

LOCATION: 2A /2B Park Avenue, London, N18 2UH.

PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing warehouse and erection of a part 3, part 4 storey
block to provide 14 flats (comprising 4x3bed, 7x2 bed, 3x1 bed flats), including
basement level parking area for 6 x car parking spaces and cycle parking.

Applicant Name & Address:
Magic Home Ltd.

7-11 Green Lanes,

London,

N13 4TN.

Peter Ottery

Enfield
EN1 1YE

Agent Name & Address:

112 Southbury road

RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be GRANTED subject to conditions and

completion of a S106 Agreement.

Page | 1



Page 72

Ref: 15/04736/FUL LOCATION: 2A /2B Park Avenue, London, N18 2UH,

T
T G L
ey

e

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey Scale 1:1250 North
on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and
database right 2013. All Rights Reserved. @
ENFéELD’ Ordnance Survey License number 100019820
ounci




11

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

3.3

Page 73

Site and surroundings

The application site is located on the corner of Park Avenue and Park Road
and is addressed as 2A/2B Park Avenue. The site currently consists of an
original warehouse building of 2 storeys in height with a triple apex roof. At
present the site appears to have been broken up into three individual units,
the unit on the outside which is derelict, the middle unit which appears to be
occupied by a Christian church group and a 2 storey warehouse/lock up
appears to make up the third unit. Having analysed the council planning
records there appears to be no registered planning permission for the use of
the site for the Christian group.

The surrounding area is mixed in nature, there is a hostel to the direct west of
the building (under the same ownership), to the north opposite on Park Road
is a derelict site although this site has planning permission for a development
of 18 units. To the east opposite on Park Avenue are two storey houses and
to the south lies a series of industrial uses and car mechanic garages.

The site is not located in a Conservation Area and is not listed. The site has a
PTAL rating of 5. The site is not located within a controlled parking zone and
it is relatively flat lying.

Proposal

The applicant seeks full planning permission for the demolition of the existing
buildings on the site and the erection of a part 3, part 4 storey building to
accommodate 14 flats (comprising 4 x 3- bed, 7 x 2- bed and 3 x 1 —bed). The
building would be 9m high to third floor level and 12m high to fourth floor
level. The building would be 26.5m wide and approximately 16m deep. It
would consist of a modern design with buff brick with the 4™ floor a recessed
rendered finish. The windows are proposed as grey aluminium and the design
would also include for balconies and terraces.

Amended plans have been submitted by the applicant based on concerns
raised about the lack of car parking associated with the development and the
cumulative impact of the scheme approved for 18 flats on the opposite side of
the street at Number 10 Park Road. The application now proposes a
basement car parking area accessed from rear corner of the site off Park
Avenue. This would accommodate for 6x car parking spaces and 28 cycle
parking spaces.

Relevant planning history

P12-00581PLA: Conversion of 9 supported living units into 12 self-contained
studio flats for social housing. Withdrawn.

14/04851/FUL: Demolition of existing vacant warehouse and erection of a 3-
storey block of 12 self-contained flats. Withdrawn.

P15-02002-FUL: Demoalition of existing warehouse and erection of a part 3
storey, part 4 storey block to provide 14 flats (comprising 2 x 3- bed, 9 x 2-
bed and 3 x 1 -bed) with associated car parking, cycle/refuse storage and
landscaping.

Page | 2



3.4

4.

Page 74

This application was an Article 10a submission deemed invalid for the
following reasons:

The application has not robustly justified the failure to provide a suitable
mechanism to secure financial contributions towards off site education and
infrastructure provisions, contrary to Policies 8 and 46 of the Local Plan as
well as the requirements outlined in the Local Authority's S106
Supplementary Planning Document.

Insufficient detail has been submitted to enable the Local Planning Authority
to accurately assess the credentials of the scheme against the Code for
Sustainable Homes with an objective to meet a minimum of Code Level 4. In
this regard, the development fails to take into account the principles of
sustainable design and construction contrary to Core Policy 4 of the Core
Strategy, DMD 50 of the Development Management Document and Policies
5.2 & 5.3 of the London Plan as well as the National Planning Policy
Framework.

Other Relevant Planning History:

14/02467/FUL: 10 Park Road (Site Opposite) Erection of a four storey block
comprising 18 self-contained flats (7 x 1-bed, 7 x 2-bed, 4 x 3-bed) with
balconies, amenity area, associated access via Park Road and surface car
parking. S106 - S106 Granted with conditions.

Consultation

Public Consultations

4.1 The 21 day public consultation period started on the 23rd of October and
concluded on the 13" of June. 3 Site notices were posted close to the site on
28" of October. The application was also advertised in the local paper. There
were no comments received from any members of the public.

Internal

4.2 Traffic and Transportation — Traffic and Transportation have noted an
improvement to the scheme via the provision of the 6 car parking spaces and
have raised no objections subject to conditions and S106 obligations to
mitigate against parking impacts in the surrounding area.

4.3 Environmental Health- No objections subject to conditions

4.4 Housing Officer — A minimum of 6 units should be provided towards
affordable housing, 4 as social or affordable rent and 2 as intermediate.

External

4.5 Thames Water — no objections

4.6 Environment Agency- no objections.

Page | 3



Page 75

5. Relevant Policy

51 Development Management Document

DMD1 Affordable Housing on site capable of providing 10 or more units.
DMD3 Providing a Mix of Different Sized Homes

DMD6 Residential Character

DMD7 Development of garden land

DMD8 General Standards for New Residential Development
DMD9 Amenity Space

DMD10 Distancing

DMD37 Achieving High Quality and Design-Led Development
DMD47 New Roads, Access and Servicing

DMD49 Sustainable Design and Construction Statements
DMD50 Environmental Assessment Methods

DMD51 Energy Efficiency Standards

DMD64 Pollution Control and Assessment

DMD68 Noise

DMD69 Light Pollution

DMD76 Wildlife Corridors

DMD77 Green Chains

DMD78 Nature Conservation

5.2 Core Strateqy

SO2 Environmental sustainability

SO4 New homes

SO5 Education, health and wellbeing

SO8 Transportation and accessibility

S0O10 Built environment

CP2 Housing supply and locations for new homes

CP3 Affordable housing

CP4  Housing quality

CP5 Housing types

CP6 Meeting particular housing needs

CP8 Education

CP9  Supporting community cohesion

CP16 Taking part in economic success and improving skills
CP20 Sustainable energy use and energy infrastructure
CP21 Delivering sustainable water supply, drainage and sewerage infrastructure
CP22 Delivering sustainable waste management

CP24 The road network

CP25 Pedestrians and cyclists

CP30 Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open environment
CP32: Pollution

CP36 Biodiversity

CP46 Infrastructure Contribution

5.3 London Plan (2015) (including REMA)

3.3 Increasing housing supply
3.4 Optimising housing potential
3.5 Quality and design of housing development
3.6 Children and young people’s play and informal recreation facilities
Page | 4



3.8
3.9
3.10
3.11
3.12
3.13
4.1
4.4
5.1
52
5.3
5.7
5.8
5.10
5.11
5.13
5.14
5.15
5.16
6.3
6.9
6.12
6.13
7.1
7.2
7.3
7.4
7.5
7.6
7.19
7.21

5.4

5.5

Page 76

Housing choice

Mixed and balanced communities
Definition of affordable housing

Affordable housing targets

Negotiating affordable housing on schemes
Affordable housing thresholds

Developing London’s economy

Managing industrial land and premises
Climate change mitigation

Minimising carbon dioxide emissions
Sustainable design and construction
Renewable energy

Innovative energy technologies

Urban greening

Green roofs and development site environs
Sustainable drainage

Water quality and wastewater infrastructure
Water use and supplies

Waste self sufficiency

Assessing the effects of development on transport capacity
Cycling

Road network capacity

Parking

Building London’s neighbours and communities
An inclusive environment

Designing out crime

Local character

Public realm

Architecture

Biodiversity and access to nature

Trees and Woodland

Other Relevant Policy

National Planning Policy Framework

Other Material Considerations

The Mayors Housing SPG (2012)
Section 106 Supplementary Planning Document (Nov.2011)
Enfield Strategic Housing Market Assessment (2010)

Page | 5



6.1

6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.3

Page 77

Analysis
The main issues for consideration regarding this application are as follows:

Principle of the Development

Scale and Density

Design and Impact on the Character of the Surrounding Area
Neighbouring Amenity

Standard of Accommodation and Proposed Mix of Units
Private Amenity provisions

Traffic, Parking and Servicing Issues

Affordable Housing and other S106 Contributions
Sustainability

Tree Issues

Principle of the Development

There were no objections raised to the principle of the redevelopment of the
site on the previous applications and this remains to be the case at officer
level. The principle of the development would be supported insofar as the
proposal provides for additional housing in the borough of which there is an
identified need. The proposed site is in a relatively accessible location with a
PTAL of 5 and as such additional housing should be encouraged in such
locations.

Similar to the last applications there has been relatively little information
submitted with regards the use of the current site and whether the loss of the
current employment use would be suitable. However officers have assessed
the case on site and taking into account the relatively dilapidated appearance
of the site it is considered that the redevelopment to provide additional
residential units for the area would be the better use of the site.

In addition since the previous submissions the scheme has been significantly
improved. From the perspective of design and bulk it is much less top heavy
than the previous scheme with specific regard to the scale and form of the top
floor. This is now much more recessed and subordinate to the 3 storey
section of the building. In addition through negotiations with the applicant 4
family units are now to be provided as part of the scheme which is considered
suitable taking into account the relative confines of the site and its practicality
to accommodate family housing.

Density and Scale

Density

6.3.1

6.3.2

Density assessments must acknowledge new guidance outlined in the NPPF
and particularly the London Plan, which encourage greater flexibility in the
application of policies to promote higher densities, although they must also be
appropriate for the area.

Policy 3.4 (Table 3.2) of the London Plan sets standards for appropriate
density levels with regards to location, existing building form, massing, and
having regard to the PTAL (Public Transport Accessibility Level) score. From

Page | 6



6.3.3

6.3.4

6.4

6.4.1

6.4.2

6.4.3

6.4.4

Page 78

assessing the plans it is considered a total of 40 habitable rooms would be
provided on the site which is of approximately 0.054 hectares. According to
the guidance in (Table 3.2) of the London Plan as the site has a site specific
PTAL rating of 5 in an urban location, an overall density of between 200-700
hr/ha may be acceptable. Upon calculating the density of the proposed
development against this density matrix, based on habitable rooms per
hectare this development would equate to 740 hr/ha.

Therefore these results show that from a density perspective this proposal
would be slightly in excess of the recognisable density threshold for an urban
area.

However, it must be noted that the criteria of density would not be a singular
element and would be assessed alongside other planning requirements such
as suitability of the site, scale of building/s and standard and quality of
accommodation proposed. In this case due to the tightness of the site
neighbouring amenity would also be a primary consideration. These issues
will be referred to later in the report.

Scale, Design Character and Impact on the Surroundings

As referred to earlier the building is proposed as part 3, part 4 storey in
height. It is 26.5m wide and 16.5m deep. It would be set against the existing
hostel building which is 2 storey in height and the building would back onto
single storey industrial buildings at the rear. Opposite on Park Avenue are 2
storey houses and due regard has been given to the fact that the site
opposite on Number 10 Park Road has been granted planning consent for a
part 3, part 4 storey building.

Similar to the previous submission P15-02002-FUL from the perspective of
scale it is considered that the principle of a part 3, part 4 storey is acceptable
on the site. This would largely replicate the scale and height of the scheme
that has been granted across the road at Number 10 Park Road.

There were a number of issues that were raised as concerns on the previous
application, mainly in relation to the bulk, scale and prominence of the fourth
floor and the lack of fenestration and orientation of the scheme onto Park
Avenue.

On this submission the proposed 4™ floor is recessed in approximately 2m
behind the main parapet wall on all elevations particularly so on the front and
side elevations which are most prominent on the Park Road and Park
Avenue. This has been achieved by reducing the number of flats at 4™ floor
level and re-accommaodating one flat at ground level. As a result the proposed
4™ floor is now much more subordinate and as a result of its reduced bulk and
scale would be much less dominant. Having re-assessed the proposal on site
officers consider that the proposal has been sufficiently reduced in scale to be
deemed acceptable. In addition the introduction of additional fenestration onto
the Park Avenue elevation to complement the front Park Road elevation has
introduced an additional element of visual interest and overall a much more
balanced appearance to the development.

Page | 7



6.4.5

6.5

6.5.1

Page 79

In addition due regard should be given to the permission granted on the
opposite side of Park Road at Number 10 and having assessed this proposal
in line with that permission it is considered that both developments would
complement each other. In conclusion from the design scale and character
this proposed development is considered acceptable as it would integrate
acceptably into the adjoining Park Road/ Park Avenue streetscene having
regard to policies DMD6, 8 and 37, CP30 of the Core Strategy and London
Plan policies 7.4 and 7.6.

Neighbouring Amenity

From the perspective of neighbouring amenity, it is considered the proposal
should be assessed against the following properties,

Houses opposite on Park Avenue.

Adjacent Hostel at Number 2A.

New Development opposite on Number 10 Park Avenue.
Industrial premises to the rear

Houses opposite on Park Avenue

6.5.2

6.5.3

The site sits directly opposite to Numbers 27 to 37 Park Avenue which would
be most affected by the development proposals. The proposed building is set
hard on the eastern edge of the site (back of the public footpath) and
therefore the proposed building would have a separation distance of
approximately 17.5 to 18m from the front elevation of the houses at Number
27 to 37 Park Avenue. The recessed 4™ floor would represent a separation
distance of 22m between the houses on Number 27-37 Park Avenue.

With respect to distancing standards it is recognised that this is below the
requirements of DMD 10 which in such circumstances would specify a
distance of at least 25m. However this refers to rear windows and in this case
it must be acknowledged that the windows would be looking out onto and
across a public highway. Officers have assessed the proposal externally from
within the front gardens of Number 37 and whilst the new building would
create an obvious additional dominance when viewed across the street, it is
not considered that it would create such an impact to warrant refusal. In
addition to this it should be noted that the proposed building would not break
a 25 degree line of site towards the sky from the ground floor windows of the
houses opposite on Park Avenue, therefore would be acceptable in principle
from the perspective of Daylight and Sunlight BRE guidance.

Adjacent Hostel at 2A

6.5.4

6.5.5

As referred to earlier there is a hostel directly adjacent the application site. It
sits directly west of the site between the western boundary and the railtrack
further west.

From the perspective of neighbouring amenity it is considered the proposed
development will have an acceptable impact onto the adjoining hostel. At
present to the front the two storey warehouse building sits approximately 6m
forward of the building line and the nearest adjacent windows on the hostel.
By comparison the proposed building would be sited 4.5m forward of this

Page | 8



6.5.6

Page 80

building line and increase to a part 3 part 4 storey height. Whilst this would
create additional bulk laterally it is not considered that it would create a
significant degree of additional harm in terms of blocking outlook from those
north most facing front windows. In addition as the windows are north facing it
is also not considered that it would create a significant impact in terms of loss
of daylight and sunlight.

In addition to the rear of the hostel, it should be noted that the neighbouring
amenity situation would improve with the demolition of the existing rear two
storey warehouse building to be replaced by rear gardens.

New Development opposite on Number 10 Park Road.

6.5.7

A planning application has been granted at Number 10 Park Road opposite
under 14/02467/FUL. This development granted consent for 18 flats within a
4 storey building. From assessing the proposed plans the distance between
this scheme and that granted scheme would be approximately 18-19 metres
across Park Road. Again this is a similar relationship to those houses on Park
Avenue. However having assessed the surrounding area, this is a relatively
established separation distance and overall officers consider that this
distance would provide for a sufficient level of separation and distances
between both blocks. In addition to this it should be noted that the proposed
building would not break a 25 degree line of site towards the sky from the
ground floor windows of the houses opposite on Park Avenue, therefore
would be acceptable in principle from the perspective of Daylight and Sunlight
BRE guidance.

Industrial Premises to the rear

6.5.8

6.5.9

6.5.10

6.6

To the rear of the site lies a car mechanics yard and industrial buildings.
Having assessed the proposal against these buildings it is not considered that
there would not be any neighbouring amenity impacts. The premises are
business uses with no residential uses on site.

It is recognised that the proposed site with the rear facing windows could
have potential implications for development on the site to the rear in the
future, however this is not considered to be a sufficient reason to refuse this
current application at this stage. It is considered that any privacy impact as a
result of the proposed scheme on a future scheme to the rear would need to
be addressed on any future submission via angled or obscured windows on
that site.

In conclusion all factors considered the proposal has an acceptable impact in
terms of neighbouring amenity to all adjoining occupiers.

Standard of Accommodation and Proposed Mix of Units.

Standard of Accommodation

6.6.1

6.6.2

The application proposes 3x1bed, 7x2 bed and 4x3 bed flats, 14 in total.

Policy 3.5 of the London Plan specifies that 1 bed flats should a minimum
floor area of 50sgm, 2 bed flats should have a minimum internal floor area of
61 square metres with 3b4p flats at 74 sgm or 3b6p flats at 86 sgm. All units

Page | 9



Page 81

have been measured and verified and are above the required London Plan
standards for the respective units. From assessing the plans all units would
have useable and accessible layouts and all room sizes are acceptable with
specific regards to living/diners and single and double bedrooms. All units
would be dual aspect. It is recognised that there are units on the ground floor
relatively close to the boundary, however having assessed the situation on
site it is considered on balance that all units would have sufficient defensible
space. Flat 1 on the corner is the most exposed but specifically only in
relation to the rear terrace. A condition will be assigned to any approval
requesting final details of how this terrace is to be secured from the public
highway.

6.6.3 However there are no wheelchair accessible units proposed as part of the
development, however this could be arranged by an appropriate planning
condition. The flats on the ground floor can be adapted to all be wheelchair
accessible.

Housing Mix

6.6.4 DMD 3 and Policy 5 of the Core Strategy seeks new development to
incorporate a mix of dwelling types and sizes to meet housing needs in the
Borough with family sized accommodation (3 bed or larger) is the greatest
area of need.

6.6.5 The Council's dwelling mix ratios are as follows:

1 and 2 person flats - 20%
2 bed flats - 15%

3 bed houses - 45%

4 + bed houses - 20%

6.6.6 The development provides the following dwelling mix:
3 no.1lb 2p (21.5%)

7 no.2b 3p (and) 4p (combined 50%)
4no. 3b 4 or 5p (28.5%)

6.6.7 One of reasons for concern on the previous application was the insufficient
amount of family units proposed as part of the scheme. On that submission
there were only 2 family units proposed out of the total of 14. In addition there
was no justification submitted to justify the lack of more family units.

6.6.8 Since then officers have had a number of discussions with the applicant in

relation to the scheme and it has been agreed that the scheme could viably
provide 4 family units. 1 of these units would be located on the ground floor
with a rear garden, the second would be located at second floor level with 2x3
bed flats at 3" floor level with large usable terraces. Whilst this percentage of
family units is not specifically policy compliant it has been agreed that it is all
the scheme can viably provide. In addition taking into account the access
requirements and the building envelope, 4 family units are what can fit
comfortably into the scheme, having regard to the confines of the site and the
numbers flats that can be accommodated at each respective floor without
impacting on the loss of another flat. In addition due regard should be given to
the fact that there are 3x 2 bed 4 person flats proposed as part of the scheme

Page | 10



Page 82

which could feasibly accommodate smaller family units. One of these units
would also have direct access to the rear garden area.

6.6.9 In addition whilst it is not of specific relevance to this case it is noted that the
scheme opposite at Number 10 Park Road has been approved with 4 family
units out of the total of 18.

6.6.10 All factors taken into account it is considered that this submission overcomes
the previous reason for refusal and that the proposed mix of units and
standard of accommodation overall is considered acceptable.

6.7 Private Amenity

6.7.1 Since the implementation of the London Housing Supplementary Planning
Document and the introduction of the councils draft Development
Management Document, amenity space standards have been relaxed.

6.7.2 Policy DMD9 now specifies the requirements for private and communal
amenity space for such developments.

6.7.3 Overall it is considered the private amenity provisions proposed are
acceptable. Each of the proposed flats would be served by its own self-
contained amenity areas. The ground floor flats would benefit from their own
policy compliant rear gardens directly behind the proposed unit along with
front facing terraces. In addition the remaining 11 flats would benefit from
individual balconies all of which appear to be policy compliant having regard
to minimum requirements of DMD9.

6.7.4 All factors taken into account it is considered that the amenity provisions
proposed is acceptable and in accordance with DMD9. Whilst there is no
communal amenity space proposed, this is a result of the tight confines of the
site. Nevertheless each individual unit is adequately served by its own private
amenity space.

6.8 Traffic and Transportation

6.8.1 Due to the nature of the proposal the councils traffic and transportation
department have been consulted on the application.

Access

6.8.2 The proposal does clearly indicate separate access for pedestrians which
meets the requirements of London Plan Policy 6.10: Walking and Enfield
DMD 47: “All developments should make provision for attractive, safe, clearly
defined and convenient routes and accesses for pedestrians, including those
with disabilities.”

6.8.3 The proposals also indicate that a vehicular crossover will be created to
provide access to a basement area via a ramp. The existing off-street
parking provision and related vehicular crossovers will be removed. This is
not contrary to Enfield DMD Policy 46 relating to vehicle crossovers.

6.8.4 The access ramp has been designed to meet required standards, and
incorporates an area with a minor gradient next to the footway to improve
Page | 11



6.8.5

6.8.6

Page 83

visibility for vehicles exiting the site. Given the width of the access ramp only
allows one way movement, an entry / exit system will need to be put in place
to prevent vehicles having to reverse onto the public highway.

The site can be serviced from Park Road where the highway adjacent to the
site has an area of single yellow line which does not have loading / unloading
restrictions.

Car Parking

The current London Plan maximum standards (Table 6.2) refer to maximum
provision of 1.5 spaces per unit in areas with a PTAL rating of 5 and similar
residential densities. It is also noted that the London Plan refers to the
promotion of car-free or low car developments in appropriate locations.

Census data for LB Enfield gives car ownership information by number of
bedrooms and tenure. The table below gives the average across all tenures
because details have not been provided of tenure type for the development.

4 or more

. No cars or | 1 car or van 2 cars or 3 cars or
Car ownership by : . . . cars or
number of bedrooms vans in In vans in vans in vans in

household household household household
—average of all household
% % % %

tenures %
1 bedroom 60% 36% 4% 0% 0%
2 bedrooms 40% 48% 11% 1% 0%
3 bedrooms 23% 47% 23% 5% 1%
4 bedrooms 11% 35% 36% 13% 5%
5 or more bedrooms 11% 28% 37% 16% 8%
Average 32% 43% 18% 4% 1%
6.8.7 This means that based on census data indicative car ownership for this

development would be:

Number of Units and Bedrooms Number of Vehicles

3x1 bed 1.3

7x2 bed 5.1

4x3 bed 4.6

6.8.8 This equates to provision of 11 vehicles at a ratio of around 0.79 per unit. It is

6.8.9

noted that the area around the site is under continuing parking stress with
limited on-street parking in high demand. This has been exacerbated by the
introduction of yellow lines at the junction of Park Road and Fore Street
which, while addressing issues of highway safety and free flow of traffic, has
reduced the on-street car parking capacity. In addition there are no plans for a
CPZ to be introduced in the near future so any overspill parking cannot be
readily constrained.

The plans indicate provision for six car parking spaces in a basement area

accessed via a ramp from Park Avenue. This equates to a ratio of around
0.43 car parking spaces per unit.

Page | 12




6.8.10

6.8.11

6.8.12

Page 84

Whilst lower than the indicative ratio noted above (0.79 per unit) it is
considered that this level of provision is appropriate:

Planning permission has been granted on an adjacent site for a development
with parking at a ratio of 0.22 spaces per unit. It should be noted that for
future developments in the area, the cumulative impact on parking capacity
will be a factor in determining the appropriate level of provision.

The PTAL of the site is 5 which indicates relatively good access to public
transport. This is mainly due to the frequent bus services available on Fore
Street and the proximity of Silver Street station.

The applicant has indicated a willingness to provide S106 contributions,
including for car club membership and cycling and walking improvements,
with a view to mitigating unmet demand for car trips.

The site manager should prepare and be responsible for a travel plan which
encourages residents to use alternatives to private cars.

The site will be exempted from any future Controlled Parking Zone.

As indicated above any further higher density development in this area would
have to address the issue of the cumulative impact of neighbouring
developments on car parking provision. This would mean that a higher
parking ratio would be expected if other suitable mitigating measures have
not been put in place, such as the introduction of controlled parking in the
area.

Given the basement area will be accessed from the residential
accommodation via stairs, it is not appropriate for disabled parking provision
to be made in the basement area. Instead it is noted that disabled parking
can be accommodated on an area of single yellow line on Park Road which
also has the advantage of being close to the main pedestrian access points.

Cycle Parking

6.8.13

6.8.14

6.8.15

The development would provide secure, integrated, convenient and
accessible cycle parking in line with the minimum standards set out in the
Further Alterations to the London Plan Table 6.3 and the guidance set out in
the London Cycle Design Standards.

The proposal indicates that there will be a secure shelter suitable for storing
28 bicycles in the basement area. Given that this storage can only be
accessed by residents it is assumed that this is long term provision so
exceeds the minimum requirements in the current London Plan as set out in
Table 6.3:

Long Stay: 1 space per Studio and 1-bed dwelling;
Long Stay: 2 spaces per all other dwellings.

In addition the applicant must provide short stay cycle parking in an
accessible location:

Short Stay: 1 space per 40 units, with a minimum provision of 2 spaces.
S106 contributions could be used to provide on-street cycle parking which

would address this requirement.

Page | 13



Page 85

Waste
6.8.15 The Council's requirements are set out in Enfield’'s Waste and Recycling
Planning Storage Guidance (ENV-08-162):
Number of Number of Containers required Number of Containers
Properties for Refuse: required

for Recycling:

13 - 18 units 3 x 1100 litre bin 1 x 1280 litre bin

These containers must be:

6.8.16

Within 10 metres of the collection point.

Bins must be stored on a hard surface or in a storage cupboard.

Bins that are stored in a storage cupboard must be housed in chambers
constructed in accordance with the British Standard Code of Practice BS
5906:1980 "Storage and On-Site treatment of solid waste from buildings".
Footpaths between the container housing and the nearest vehicular access
should be free from steps or kerbs, have a solid foundation, have a smooth
solid surface, be level and have a gradient no more than 1:12 and a minimum
width of 2 metres.

The application indicates that a separate waste store is being provided with
capacity for 6 containers. The location of the store should meet the Council’s
requirements. Details of the capacity and type of container have not been
specified but can be secured by way of a condition.

Highway S106 Contributions

6.8.17

a.

6.8.18

The applicant should commit to S106 contributions which support the
proposal for the development to be car free:

Cycling infrastructure improvements - in part for provision of short stay cycle
parking on-street. (For application number 15/02002/FUL on the same site a
level of £9,333.24 was agreed.)

Pedestrian environment improvements — focused on access to Silver Street
station, bus services in Fore Street and the junction of Park Avenue with Park
Road. (For application number 15/02002/FUL on the same site a level of
£15,000 was agreed.)

Three year car club membership per unit and driving credit of £100 per
membership (there are two car club bays within walking distance of the site) —
this will be essential for those units without car parking provision.

It should be noted that the applicant has agreed to these highways S106
Contributions.

Page | 14




6.9

Page 86

S106 Contributions

Affordable Housing

6.9.1

6.9.2

6.9.3

Having regard to policies DMD1 and CP3 of the Core Strategy as the site is
proposing 10 or more units (14) it should be complying with borough wide
target of achieving 40% affordable housing and a mix of tenures to reflect a
borough wide target of 70% social rent and affordable rent and 30%
Intermediate. This would reflect 6 units on this site as affordable housing.

As part of the original submission the applicant has submitted a Viability
Assessment that originally concluded that the scheme would not be viable to
contribute on-site affordable units. This Viability Assessment was assessed
by the councils own independently appointed Viability Assessor and it had
been agreed that the scheme cannot provide on —site units but that it could
afford off site contributions of £85,000.

However since this period to address the parking requirements on the site, a
basement has been added to the scheme to provide 6 car parking spaces
and 28 cycle parking spaces. As a result of this the Viability of the scheme
has been reviewed again by the councils own viability assessor and it has
been agreed as a result of additional construction cost of the basement the
scheme would no longer be viable to pay affordable housing contributions.

Education Contributions

6.9.3

6.9.4

Having regard to policy CP46 of the Core Strategy and the councils S106
SPD, this application would also be required to provide education
contributions towards local schools in the area.

This application proposes 3x1 bed, 7x2 bed and 4x3 bed units which would
eguate to a contribution of £42,435.67 towards off site education
contributions. However as referred to in section 6.9.3 as above the councils
viability assessor has confirmed that the scheme would be no longer viable to
pay this education contribution. Taking into account the introduction of the
borough CIL charge on 1% April, it is considered that this approach is
acceptable.

Other S106 Contributions/ Head of Terms

6.9.5

Highways Contributions of £35,724 broken down as follows:

£9,333.24 towards cycle route improvements;

£15,000 towards pedestrian environment improvements, particularly focused
on access to Silver Street station, bus services in Fore Street and the junction
of Park Avenue with Park Road;

One three year car club membership per unit and driving credit of £100 per
membership (there are two car club bays within walking distance of the site);
Removal of redundant crossovers and footway resurfacing in front of the site.
Ineligibility of the proposed units from obtaining parking permits within any
future CPZ in the immediate adjoining area.

Page | 15



Page 87

6.9.6 The S106 Monitoring fees would amount to £1786.20. The applicant has
agreed to pay this fee in addition to the highway contributions as above.

6.10 Sustainable Design and Construction

Lifetime Homes

6.10.1 The London Plan and Core Strategy confirm that all new housing is to be built
to Lifetime Homes’ standards. This is to enable a cost-effective way of
providing adaptable homes that are able to be adapted to meet changing
needs.

6.10.2 The scheme appears to meet as much as possible the 16 criteria for Lifetime
Homes. However, confirmation of this should be secured by condition.

Energy / Energy efficiency

6.10.3 The London Plan adopts a presumption that all developments will meet
carbon dioxide emission reductions that will improve upon 2010 Building
Regulations, leading to zero carbon residential buildings from 2016. Policy
5.2 establishes a target for 2010-2013 to be a 25% improvement over Part L
of current Building Regulations

6.10.4 At this stage there has been no energy statement submitted to support the
application. However it is considered these energy matters can be dealt with
via planning conditions.

6.11 CIL

6.11.1 The size of the proposed development would be liable to a Community
Infrastructure Levy contribution as the size exceeds 100 sg.m. The net gain of
the new created floor area is 900 sq.m, inclusive of the 14 units and the
communal staircase area and the new basement area.

6.11.2 As a result the borough CIL payment would be 900sgm x £40 per sgm (CIL
Rate for Edmonton Area) = £36,000.

6.11.3 This would result in a Mayoral CIL contribution of 900 sq.m x £20 = £18,000 x
274/223 = £22,116.59.

Page | 16



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

Page 88

Conclusion

It is considered that this development proposal is acceptable. It has an
acceptable impact to the character and appearance of the site and
surrounding Park Road area. It will provide for 4 additional family units and 14
additional residential units a whole in a relatively accessible part of the
borough.

It is considered that its scale, bulk and appearance is acceptable and would
be comparable and complement the approved building on the opposite side of
Park Road. The proposed development would also have and acceptable
impact onto adjoining neighbours amenities.

It is not considered that the proposal development would create an impact to
neighbours amenity or create unacceptable impact to highway function and
safety.

In conclusion there are no justifiable reasons to refuse the application.

Subject to the conditions outlined as below and the completion of the S106
Legal Agreement it is recommended that planning permission is granted.

Page | 17



8.1

9.

10.

Page 89

Recommendation

That planning permission be approved subject to the following conditions:
C60 Approved Plans

CO7 Details of Materials

CO09 Details of Hard Surfacing

C10 Details of Levels

C11 Details of Enclosure

C17 Details of Landscaping

C19 Details of Refuse Storage & Recycling Facilities

C59 Cycle parking spaces

Construction Methodology

That development shall not commence until a construction methodology has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
construction methodology shall contain:

@~oooow

11.

arrangements for wheel cleaning;

arrangements for the storage of materials;

hours of work;

arrangements for the securing of the site during construction;

the arrangement for the parking of contractors’ vehicles clear of the highway.
The siting and design of any ancillary structures.

A construction management plan written in accordance with the ‘London Best
Practice Guidance: The control of dust and emission from construction and
demolition’.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
construction methodology unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the implementation of the development does not lead to
damage to the existing highway and to minimise disruption to neighbouring
properties and the environment.

Amenity Space for Flat 1.

Prior to occupation of the development details of the security measures to
serve the rear terrace assigned to Flat 1 shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the local planning authority.

Reason: In the interest of amenity and public safety.

Page | 18



12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

Page 90

Lifetime Homes Standards

All the units shall comply with Lifetime Home standards in accordance with
details to be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA. The
development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the details
approved and shall be maintained thereafter.

Reason : To ensure that the development allows for future adaptability of the
home to meet with the needs of future residents over their life time in
accordance with Policy CP4 of the Core Strategy and Policy 3.5 of the
London Plan 2011.

Redundant Access

Prior to the commencement of development details of the redundant points of
access and reinstatement of the footway shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved details shall be
implemented and permanently retained.

Reason: To provide safe and accessible linkages for pedestrians and cyclists
and to preserve the interests of highway amenity.

Basement Parking/ Access

The development shall not commence until details of the access and egress
to the basement car park, including the gradients of the ramp and visibility
splays at the boundary with the public highway, have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall
be completed in accordance with the approved details prior to its occupation.

Reason: To ensure the basement access arrangements do not prejudice
highway safety and the free flow of traffic.

Travel Plan

The development hereby approved shall not be occupied until such time as a
Travel Plan incorporating the components set out is Appendix C of the
ODPM/DST publication “Using the planning process to secure travel plans”
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA. The approved
Travel Plan shall thereafter be implemented and adhered to.

Reason: In the interests of sustainability and to ensure that traffic generated
from the site is minimised.

Energy Statement

The development shall not commence until a detailed ‘Energy Statement’ and
relevant SAP calculations has been submitted and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. Submitted details will demonstrate the energy
efficiency of the development and shall provide for no less than 11% total
CO2 emissions arising from the operation of a development and its services
over Part L of Building Regs 2010 ensuring that standard conversion factor
indicate that natural gas is the primary heating fuel. The Energy Statement
should outline how the reductions are achieved through the use of Fabric
Page | 19



17.

18.

Page 91

Energy Efficiency performance, energy efficient fittings, and the use of
renewable technologies.

The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the details so
approved and maintained as such thereafter. Following practical completion
of works a final Energy Performance Certificate shall be submitted to an
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Where applicable, a
Display Energy Certificate shall be submitted within 18 months following first
occupation.

Reason: In the interest of sustainable development and to ensure that the
Local Planning Authority may be satisfied that CO2 emission reduction
targets are met in accordance with Policy CP20 of the Core Strategy, Policies
5.2,5.3,5.7 & 5.9 of the London Plan 2011 and the NPPF.

Energy Performance Certificate

Following practical completion of works a final Energy Performance
Certificate shall be submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority prior to occupation of the development.

Reason: In the interest of sustainable development and to ensure that the
Local Planning Authority may be satisfied that CO2 emission reduction
targets are met in accordance with Policy CP20 of the Core Strategy, Policies
5.2,5.3, 5.7 & 5.9 of the London Plan 2011 and the NPPF.

C51 Time Limited Permission- 3 years.

Page | 20



ue|d uoneoso
3lS

Page 92

Buiuue|d

31va NOISIAZY SL0ZYokeW  3Lva 05 or
NOISIAZY PY1 SSWOH UoWIS Ned  :INIMO
100/54°€81 ‘ON ONIMYHA 8IN Uopuoy L
¥ ® 0001:1 /2 ® 005 308 aNUBAY yied 82 103roYd

D08 ¥ snesbes]
0 suspie keulleuo |

Kanng aaueupiQ Jo uoissiuuad Joud sy JNoyum
payqiyoid si Jed o Sjoum Ul UonINPoIdaYy
156850001 135U ASAINS 20UBUPIO

102 146U aseqeep pue yBuAdoD umoIDe

« = «
g £ g
s & g
3 g g
8 g g

esans i3

004261

052261

008261 \ #

001¥€S
0S0¥€S
000¥€S

00.261

0S.261

008261

y ubisag SM

uBisaq sy 40 uoissiuued passaidxe

Joud 3nowm sjoum Jo vied uj peonpoides Jo paidos eq

1ou Jleys pue WBuAdod sepun perosioid s Bumelp siuL
s

JeImonas woy usYey 8q 0} UojewOUl
uBiseq S 01 Y02q peliodal 8q 1SN SaIouB}

fue pue sys uo paypeuo 8q o} suoisual
o

S Jo eleos jou og ‘Ao suoisuewip painby esn

SOI0N



ueld 390|g

31va NOISIAZY

10z YleW  E1va
NOISINIY P¥] S8WoH uowig |ned  IN3MNO
@ S00/51°€81 “ON ONIMVYQ LN uopuo
C_u.w_xm ¥V ® 00v:L/ 2¥ © 0021 ERRN

8nuaNY ied 82 :103ro¥d

0z 6L 8L LL 9L Gl ¥L € TL L OL 6 8

008 yN1 oreibesT
suspies Aeujieyo |

ubise@ SH

INNINY NOWOT0S

uBisaq sy 40 uoissiuuad passeidxe
Joud 3nowm sjoum Jo vied uj peonpoides Jo paidos eq
1ou Jleys pue WBuAdod sepun perosioid s Bumelp siuL
SBumesp 5 193uI6US
JeIMonAS Woy USYE, 8q 0} UOJRWOMUI [EIMONAS (Y
uBiSeq S| 01 Y02q paliodal 8q 1SN SAUBISISU
fue pue oys o Pe¥ORYY 9q O} SUOISUBWIP IV
‘sBumesp
uluue|d el
.

SOI0N




Cm_& V_OO_m 5102 "des :31va NOISIAIY S0z yoren 31va
A\ NOISINIY P¥] S8WoH uowig |ned  IN3NO
¥900/5L°€8L  “ON ONIMVEA

pasodold

8N uopuo
PV ® 00¥'L /2¥ @ 00Z'k 3v0s nueny tied 82 8 V2 :103r0Nd

008 yN1 oreibesT
0z 6L 8L /L 9h Sl bL € 2L L O 6 8 L 9 S ¥ € 2 L O

suspies Asulieyd

ubise@ SH

INNINY NOWOT0S

uBisaq sy 40 uoissiuuad passeidxe
Joud 3nowm sjoum Jo vied uj peonpoides Jo paidos eq
1ou Jleys pue WBuAdod sepun perosioid s Bumelp siuL
SBumesp 5 193uI6US
JeIMonAS Woy USYE, 8q 0} UOJRWOMUI [EIMONAS (Y
uBiSeq S| 01 Y02q paliodal 8q 1SN SAUBISISU
fue pue oys o Pe¥ORYY 9q O} SUOISUBWIP IV
‘sBumesp
uluue|d el
.

SOI0N




ueld a)Is
pasodold

O ASY jeld
Buiuue|d

INNIAV MHvd

9102 YOIEI ‘31VA NOISIAZY

slozyoew  3lva

NOISINZY PF] S8WOH UoWIS INed  :IN3ITO
ON ONIMYHA 8IN Uopuol
3v0s anuany yied 82 103ro¥d

01011 1le3 Gy

gl
SBBIGIS Ui SRy

s

Al )

2|ludolneg

oeiols

JeH
ol

SBeifby wocifsg w
Juhy
et
uehu3
afesois —
BumBUA ueoy.

woes
azal
1ied

sy
BT

dugt
| wb6ippe

g F
iieg s

e duch
| uiodspog 2 woospog
£ widoiiog
s i e we
Sing-ug wooi) waﬁn_.m soeis| [ | sbelois Sﬁuﬁ woolpeg
i o
< > oW oing

sbeldls

o

dugpg
il

vied

[o0]
00

MAEL=ARARARIY ()

s3elip.

avod Mdvd

asnoH ejjeqely

008 ¥N1 aneibea]
suapies faueyd L

ubiseq SH

uBisaq Sy 10 uoissiwsad passaide

———=—1oud jnoym 3joym Jo ped ui paonposdal Jo paidod 3q

Jou Jleus pue WBuAdod sepun pajosioid S| BMEIp SiuL
‘sBumesp s jooubus

[BINJONYS WOy UK} 8q 0} UOREWIoUl (el (2
uBiSaq S 0 Y0Bq paliodal 8q 1SNy SAOUBISISUOOU!

fue pue ey U0 paYORYD ©q O} SUOISUBWID iV
‘sBumelp

Sy Jo oleds jou og ‘Ajuo suoisuswip painby ssn

— TS9jON



IR

ing

Plann
ft

en-

rd
£

%E ¥ ? - = <)<)‘ = = - L
BASOEEER R 35
j»n»»»»»»»A%A**A’9%799%74)»»9
,4»»»797*% ’9)’ 3333 3
3 LRI N
R R It JS R AU IR AR
* NN 3 N
‘%79"‘xiﬁA‘)A‘)g499‘)%9%9?%999‘)%
3 PR RN
A»a»n»;%jv*v*%AéAé ;»v»;»»
59 R
) PRI IR SR IR A IR ]
j%AA)AAA PR IR IR I I *9%3A;A)
R 3202 R
PRI *;AHA9A) PRI éaj
A;jjj%v%v%%AéA% \)979;7+9
3 I I S I
R !
NN
3303 3
PRI
2 5y a0 N
»A*Hm“ 39330
Y

Bedroom
15.9 m?

En-Suite
4.0/m3

[0]e)

Kitchen/Living/Dining
254/m?

Entrance
Hall

Bedroom |3
7.6 m?

9.3 m?

Bedroom 2

7(7
Refuse Bin Storage
15.8 m?

n_site_and_any

to KS Design
Al structural information to be taffen from " structural

engineer's drawings.
This drawing is protected under cogyright and shall not

be copied or reproduced in part of

Use figured dimensions only. Do [not.scale_of this
expressed permission of KS Design.

drawings.
inconsistencies must be reported ba

Al dimensions to be checked

Notes:

43 m?

Bedroom 1
18.3 m?

Lok
o, o

o E

S~

o2

%

g" 1

|3

Qv_ R e e e S
9‘- N
2 '

Q

c=%

[
2Ts
ri}

o
£
=
a

] 2
£t 2,
E £
> >
®o s
m =9

£8
E=

[$}
=
4

OO
g
00§
SE
@D~
S
fesl
& ook
[0]e)

[>)
£
£

- o
£ g, H =)
ot OE ]
O o 25
3 8% b
m o C]E 5}
=
L
~ - ¥
Eo o
S E =
O o
2= =
g"‘-' c
3 i
PN
&%
S o
EN
(&) 1
T k4
N
W i L
=
I
8t
&3 o
s =
£y = =
SE w a
g B
o~ Ji=
m =g
=X

c

@
=
e

c ¥
<

o QFE (@]6)

O £2 008

®E i~ g

E = 1]

KR

Proposed

Ground Floor Plan

Flat 4
1B 2P
54,8 m?
Terrace
7.7 m?

1:50 @ A2/ 11100 @ A4
183.15/0108

B

ION:

°
]
i

]
=
=
<
H
z
]
2
>
H
H

SCALE:
DRAWING NO:

>
fr}
©

Paul Simon Homes Ltd.

2B Park Avenue
March 2015

London N18

PROJECT:
CLIENT:
DATE:

Flat 3
3B4P
82.3m?

Flat 2
2B 4P

70.2 m?

Terrace
7.5m?

Flat 1
1B 2P
53.5m?
Terrace
7.5m?

1 Chaliney Gardens
Leagrave LU4 80Q

KS Design



6
Cm_& LOO_H_ Hw.h_n_ 5102 d8S :31va NOISIAFY 5102 Yoiep 3iva S 14 € 14 3 0 wwammﬁhﬂzmomu
- v

NOISINIY PI] S8WOH uowis |ned AN3INO
Q LL0/G1'E8L  ON ONIMYHA LN Uopuol [ | ubiseq S
Umwo O.hﬂ_ YYD 00LL/2Y @ 05k 308 aNuBNY Wed 82 103rOdd

Auoojeg 20819

W
7
w9 wigy 7 Auogje!
7
7
i

~

o
<
T oo
LLNO

/
Li—
o
=
=
=)
S ~
£
e
o LL
=8 k=
[}
=
il
g
|
|
|
[}
(=]
c
a
=
g’ @O
S+
el
=~
=
&
[%]
3
\

|
. e -
{ en wy et ey A e |
3 u J,Zn.D__“ Um i V|C =
[ouenuz | . PouURlU
\l
i Y\
o
W 6G) JwielL Mele Aule. gyl w | gl
tHooipog 001peg ¢ Wooipsg } WopJr uo0oIpag | i ¢ Woplps
65
o|eg
W0 woE
uodjeg Auooje!
w 'y
oela)
"L

Joud 3nowm sjoum| o vied uj peonpoides Jo paidoo eq
1ou Jleys pue WBAdos sepun perosioid s Bumesp siuL
‘sBumep s jaouibue

Jeimonss woy ushel 8q 0} UoJeWIOMUI [EIMONAS (Y
“uBISeq S 0} Joeq perioda) g IS SBIUBISISU

fue pue oys up pe¥ORYY 9q O} SuOISUBWIP IV
‘sBumesp
S Jo eleos joy og ‘Ao sucisuewip painby esn
.

SOI0N

i
i
! uBisaq sy 40 uoissiuued passaidxe
i
i
i




D08 ¥ snesbes]
5102 'des 31va NOISIAZY 5102 Yoiep 3iva S 14 € 14 3 0
ue|d 100|{ puodasg s

Suspies Aaulleud |

NOISINIY PI] S8WOH uowis |ned AN3INO
Q VZLO/GL'EBL  ON ONIMYYA LN Uopuol [ | ubiseq S
Umwo O.hﬂ_ YYD 00LL/2Y @ 051k 308 aNuBNY Wed 82 103rOdd

W)L
EREIET
) == % &
>

w 9 W Er9

delgz de/ge
¢k leld 5181 HEN
W €]G

@ uIuIq/BuInmusyaiy o
\ il s

P ey T d
abelolg

[ouenuz |
\l

0%

S,

Adoojeg

b

Joud 3nowm sjoum Jo vied uj peonpoides Jo paidos eq

1ou Jleys pue WBuAdod sepun paroso.
s

i

i

! uBisaq sy 40 uoissiuued passaidxe
! Bumesp siyL
i

JeImonas woy usYey 8q 0} UojewOUl
uBiseq S 01 Y02q peliodal 8q 1SN SaIouB}

fue pue ous U0 PIPOY G 0} SuoIsU
— —Q S Jo sleos Jou og “Auo suoisuswp painby osn
H

SOI0N



ue|d 4004 paiyL
pasodold

9102 "Uer :31va NOISIAZY 5102 YoIep
El NOISIAZY PY] SOWOH oW ned
g€L0/5L°€8L  ‘ON ONIMYHA 8IN Uopuoy

vV ® 0011/ 2V B 05'L 31v0s

Page 99

enuany yied 62

3lva
AN3MD

103ro¥d

Bl A4
Rl-ANEET R

M6
€ woolpag

\noce wzse
Wiy dv g¢
71 jeld
W LLg
Buui@/Buinm/usyaum

Wi

abeioys

D08 pNT sreibea
suspies Aeulleud |

y ubisaq SH

0
s

08
JleH souenug

_ AL9'6
Z woospag

]

anqe
Wbpoy

€ 3 0
W €SS
a%ells]
W88
¢ woolpag
AW LE8 ol
dv 8¢ WBIGEN
gl leld
W LLe
Buluiq/BuiAr/usyoly
W8T
sjng-ug

WZ)
| wiooipag

BT

PINS-U

andqe
WPiwooy

FLY

RS
AW OE
woolyleg |

snghe
WBfsooy

W0
lleH souenuy

node
46T

Buiuue|d

KtioSieg

Ay
Auoojeg

AU-0°ZH
| wiooipag

@l

MG

obeio)g

AW 68
Z uioolpag

uBisaq S 4o uoissiwied passaidxe

Joud 3nowm sjoum Jo vied uj peonpoides Jo paidos eq
1ou Jleys pue WBuAdod sepun perosioid s Bumelp siuL
sBumesp s JoauIbUS

JeIMonAS Woy USYE, 8q 0} UOJRWOMUI [EIMONAS (Y
uBiSeq S| 01 Y02q paliodal 8q 1SN SAUBISISU

fue pue ais uo papRU °q O SUOSUIWIP i
SBumelp

S Jo eleos jou og ‘Ao suoisuewip painby esn

SOI0N




ue|d looy
pasodolid

9102 "Uer :31va NOISIAZY

g
avL0SLEs)
Y¥ @ 0041/ 2V @ 051k

‘NOISINIY
‘ON ONIMYHA
3V0S

5102 Yoy
“PYY SWOH UowiS [neg
LN UopUOT

anuany wed 82

Alva
‘N3O

:103ro¥d

DD8 y1 eneibea]
0 suspieg suljeyd |

P ubisaq S

o L

o

AR T

(@)

uiuue|d

uBiSaq S Jo uoissiuiad passaidxe

Joud 3noum sjoymso yied ur paonpoudas 1o paidoo sq
1ou leys pue JyBuAdoo Jepun pejosioid si Bumesp syl
“sBumesp s 190uibuS

[BINONIS WoY USME) 5 0} UoRULOMU! [EINor
“uBISeq S} 0} Yoeq PeOda) oq SN SAIUBS
fue pue eys ud pepeys sq o suoisusw

‘sbuy
sl Jo efeas joy og ‘Ajuo suoisuewip peinBy esn
TS9JON




D08 ¥ snesbes]

WCO_HN>®_M H.ww._”—w 9102 U2 31v NOISIAZY SI0ZWRN  E1vd 2 W o 6 & L 9 s v € ¢ L 0 suspies Aaulieyd |
. o NOISIAZY PI SewioH uowS [ned - IN3ITO e e e e e 1T XY ubise
d 2520/51' €61 ‘ON ONIMYHQ 81N UopUO 1S90 SM
pasodold WD 0szL /2y ® SThik ENVEY onuanY ied 82 L03r0¥d

uonens|g 19a1s
PEOY UOWO|0S %§ SNUBAY Yied

peoy uowojos Juswianed peoy ed JusweAed 8nuaAYy Yied g2
D M R @@ M D X/ 9 © ® @ é
] s a ]
=T —J
111 - )
uoljeAs|3 19a11S peoy iled
pue Aemjiey anuaAy Mied Y2 anuaAy Yled gz Juswanedq anuaAy Yled Juswaned BNUaAY Yled /&

A ) [ Y

gy, " :Z

—.

UBIseQ S Jo uoissiuad passaidxe




uoneAs|3 iseq
pasodold

peoy sted

9102 ‘Uer :31va NOISIAZY
o NOISIAZY

0220151 €81

Y¥ @ 0041/ 2V @ 051k

Juswaned

5102 Yosepy
PI S8WOH UoWS |ned
LN uopuol

anueny yed 82

D08 ¥ snesbes]
suspie keulleuo |

ubiseq SH

3lva S 14 € 14 3
AN3INO

103ro¥d

anuaAy led g2

<

SUSIS
NN

SIS
SIS
CSHSHSYSHYSHISIS

R

NN N

SHSHSHS
AN
SUSISVSVVS
SIASHHMSHAS

S
S
S

0gcoL 01e

Jl
|
|
|

LS SIS USUSUSUSUSUSISISIS ISUS IS IS S USUSUSASUSUS IS IS SIS SIS SIS IS IS SIS USUSUSISISASYS SUSISUSUS IS IS IS USUSUS IS IS IS IS
SIS NI NN NANANNANANASANANNANAANNS VA AAANAANINS AN AN ANNSANS
USSR S IS IS S R S I S S S S S S S S S S S S VS U U U VNS U IS STV VIS SIS VS ISV VS VS USSR SIS S S S IS S S NS S IS VS S U IS VA
LSS ISHSHSISHSHAAAAAASISIS IS IS SIS IS ISISISIS IS ISHSISISISHSISISASHASISISISISISIS, IVSVLSVSVSNSUSV VN SNSVSUS VNSNSV VSIS

Page 102

V0N Sy

Buluue|d

‘HJ - — I
SLNE; T o s s |
1 T e e e
S —
Y [=X) z T Se===x
= =
e ————— e
. — — — - I i =3
= S
T Easms
o o o —— 1
_______ ___ 1
L e e e e S S e S S S S S B
0o
T =3
: S
B =
I . —
I - T
I  —
f T ___
I . —
H ==
H ; : o
T ___ >
T i S
—_—
- ___
- ___
- y—
: T
= oo
L <]
: :
I . L
I - 1
=  —
f T ___
I . —
I - 1
= . L o
T T = 5
i : ]
T - ___
T - ___
: :
T (=3
: I ]
L :
: A
:
:
:
:
- T
- T
:
- IN
s
S
[ ] g
=3
=3

uBisaq sy 40 uoissiuued passaidxe
Joud 3nowm sjoum Jo vied uj peonpoides Jo paidos eq
10U [leys pUE JBuIAdoD Japun pejosioid s BUIMEIp SIUL
‘sBumesp s jesuibus

JeIMonAS Woy USYe) 8q 0} UOREWOMUI [EIMPNAS |
“UBISaQ S O} YoBq PeLI0da aq SN SBIOUBSISUOD
fue pue sys UO pPayRYD 89 O} SUOISUSWIP
“sBumesp
S Jo eleos jou og ‘Ao suoisuewip painby esn

SOI0N




e
CO_HN>®_W l_mmm 9102 "Uer :31va NOISINZH 5102 Yoey 3va S i4 € 4 3 0 el
. o “NOISINZY 'PHI SSWOH UowiS Ned SININD it Cm_wmﬁ_ SM

0120/G1°€8L  ‘ON ONIMYHA 8IN Uopuo L |
U@WOQOL& YV @ 0041/ 2V @ 051k 308 8nuaNY Hed 82 103r0Yd

169'9¢

009C

00g

0¥

00€

00¥'C

Page 103

00€

00¥!

00€g

“UBiseq 31 o uoissied passaidke
Joud Jnoyym sjoym Jo yed ul paonpoudal Jo peidod oq
10U Jleys pue 1BAdoD Jepun paiosioid i Bume;
- “sBumep 5 jo
VO sy Jeimjonas woy usyey 5q o) Uonewo! femon:
“uBIS8Q S O} 0Eq PaLIoda 84 1SN SSIUBISISUD

fue pue eys uo pa¥ORYY 89 O) SuOISUSWID IV
“sBumesp
S Jo eleos jou og ‘Ao suoisuewip peinby esn
.

SAION




mlm Co_wowm 9102 cmm 31va NOISIAZY 5102 YoIep 3lva g

NOISIAZY PY1 SOWOH UOWIS Ned  “INJMD

D08 pNT sreibea
0 suspies Aeulleud |

Q dle0/GL'e8l  ON ONIMYHA 8IN Uopuo] L
wao O.hﬁ_ YV @ 00LL 12V @ 05'L 3V0S enueAy ied 82 103rO¥d

peoy ied juswianed anuaAy Yled gz

y ubisaq SH

0€coL

009C

Page 104

VO sy

Buluue|d

00g

00v'C

0o¢

00v'C

00¢

00v'C

00¢g

uBisaq S 4o uoissiwied passaidxe

Joud 3nowm sjoum Jo vied uj peonpoides Jo paidos eq
1ou Jleys pue WBuAdod sepun perosioid s Bumelp siuL
sBumesp s JoauIbUS

JeIMonAS Woy USYE, 8q 0} UOJRWOMUI [EIMONAS (Y
uBiseq S 01 Y02q paliodas 8q 1SNy SAVUBISISUOOU!

fue pue oys o Pe¥ORYY 9q O} SUOISUBWIP IV
SBumelp

S Jo eleos jou og ‘Ao suoisuewip painby esn

SOI0N



All dimensions to be checked on site and any
inconsistencies must be reported back to KS Design.

Al structural information to be taken from  structural

Use figured dimensions only. Do not scale of this
engineer’s drawings.

drawings.

Notes:

PHARRHRAHY
TR
Py

Proposed

Front Axonometric

0|
R
HAHERARER
THARRHHRE
G

HR

“ T
THHEHEH
R
LIRS
T

Planning

T

TN \‘\‘\“\\‘
T
Ty
S
AR
TR
IHTHIHRRRN

i
HTTHITHER
THRERERRRN
TR
0

175 @ A2/ 1:150 @ A4
183.15/0408
B

REVISION DATE: Jan. 2016

BRI
R
RN
TR

ity

A
TN
!
THH

\
ittty
THETHERY
T

TN i\
i
{HH

T
Lttt
Y
AT
ittty

It

A
A\\ TR

SCALE:
DRAWING NO:
REVISION:

‘\“\‘\‘\‘\“

R

i .
Tt

T
T
TR

Paul Simon Homes Ltd.

London N18
March 2015

S
i e e e,
ottt e e it
il

Gy i i ]
e
it

T
T, TR
A T HHEHU R
TS IR HHRERA
bttty R =
TR, aijtidmttitdhibbiihii
L e b LG
T T T Y Ay
T I —
AR it
i L LSl
ittt R
TR TR Y
i/ Y
Y

T
- \““““““\“““““““““‘\““““““““““’
e

\

NHIIIRRRY
(R
TN
\

\
TR
v

i, 7

e,
T,
A L A
it

l’illl 1 l’il’ iy l’ill
i i
i

T

T

PROJECT: 2B Park Avenue

CLIENT:

DATE:

\
LHHHRRRRR
bbbl
HHRHHHRRRE

HRIRARRER
I
R .
TR
N
Y
AR

Tl
i\

Wbt
R
\:\‘\‘\‘\‘\‘\

i\

AR
I
TR

ATV
R
AT
R

i

7
T e e e e i bl
T
e e e e e e e e e e e e,
T i b I I
LAAAHT i i I T I T I L L L i L Ty Ty el il Ity iy Il lyish!

S
I
A
ittt it
T TR

R A =
ittt HH AR RRE R
T bbb
TR KRR i\
| T ihihhhhhuhhuhiih

\

T TR

ity

ntdihiidiihhitidinbiddihbbddhhibdithbd
R R AR Y
R MG
TR \

NI \\\‘\\‘\\‘\\‘\\‘\\‘\\\\\\\\\\‘v

it
Attty
bbb \“‘\““\““\““\“\‘\““\““\““\‘“
T Y
T RLDD DA E noninine—
HHRHRN

TR
R

\ =
THRETH R
R
T
kit ittshibbibig
nhmtttidiihhh i
T R
bbbt W ittt
N e
AU {Z
THHHHAAHHHHAHAT
o
e 0 e A
L e
it
HHHHHHHHHA
Iyl it
T iy
i ity
it ]
R
"ll"’l"l’l’l"”l’l'l"ll"ll"’l’l”l,’:
Hr

e  w
T
T

\
T

TR
I
b o
i

o

[
TR 1)) e

i 5
i 7
I
T ety
T

1/
T /
IHHHHHHHHE T 1HE 17 1HHHE
e e e e e et 1
gt

e A ettt et A A o
I IHHHHRE THHHHHHHHH IR A RS
T I A T T A T
e
IH THHHT ITHHHHHHHHHHAEHT THHHHHHHHHHEHATS
THHHHHHEHHNT LHHHHT L AT
T [ A Y
y THHHH] A, 1HHY I HHHHHHHHE
THHHHHHT IHHHHHHHHHHHHE THHHAHHRHHHHEHAHT
T [ e
Tl P
yitees O ittty O i iyt
iy i
THHHHHHHHHHAHE THHHNHYHEHHAHHT YHHHHHHHHHH]
] T M HIHEAL
HHHHHHHHT THHHHHHHHHHIEHE THHHHHHHHHHHHHE iHHHHHHHHHH]
O
e b b b
'y T HHHHHHHHHHHHHHHH]
S AT
[ [

I

]
THHA
A

y il
HHY L L Ll L Ty Ty
e e g
ity iy iy

HHIHH fifii]| i
i it ittty

R i
i e
T T e
/iy THHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHF T HHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHE
e b
A A

o e e /I /

HHHHHHH A A HHHHHT o«
ety L L T | — TR

CHHHHHHH A T R

HHHHHHAH IR A H AT HHHEHT
T
e b A A A A I

1
ity
T
LAttt
i
L

HHAHH]

1]
iyt
i
/7]
I
N HAAHA AT )
i

7

be copied or reproduced in part or whole without prior

This drawing is protected under copyright and shall not
expressed permission of KS Design.

KS Design
1 Challney Gardens

Leagrave LU4 80Q



Planning

Page 106

2
o
s
e

T

=
=
S
T
=

N

T

=

Z
2oz
=

Z
7=
T
T
o
o
2
=
L
L
T
T
o
o=
o
2
Z
=
T
T
T
Lo
Z
=
22
22
=2z
22z
o
o
o
T
T
o,

=
=
T

= =

2
=
22
ZZ
22
T

o

=

T
T

=
e

o5
=

W

Y

o
=

R

A

L M
AR

All dimensions to be checked on site and any
inconsistencies must be reported back to KS Design.

Al structural information to be taken from  structural

Use figured dimensions only. Do not scale of this
engineer’s drawings.

drawings.

Notes:

N
W
R R
DR IR
AN AR
AR R
DR R
R RN
AR AR
AR At NARAARN
DAY TARRRR DR EERRRY
R R TR
R R R DR IR
R R
R R
AR AR ANAAARHNY
A AR
R
L AR TR AR
e R B HHHHERAEAN
A 2 S N— |

e
TR
AT AT
TR
A
N

ATV U VTV
AR AN \‘\‘\‘\\‘\“\\\\\‘
JUR
N
N

LT Y

LU

bl
W

it IR
THHHOOTTHH N
IO HTHH \
LI \

Proposed

Rear Axonometric

175 @ A2/ 1:150 @ A4
183.15/041C
c

REVISION DATE: Jan. 206

SCALE:

Paul Simon Homes Ltd.

London N18
March 2015

PROJECT: 2B Park Avenue

CLIENT:

DATE:

TR
AR

A

s
R
IR
R TR

D
L —
S

T
I P

ittt
I R
TR
A
TR
A
ST
i

i
I

It
[HHY

i
T i TRAHHIH i
I il
i T THHHHT
T T T i,
I

THRRHHH A FHHH?
i

11T A
{HH} A

1HT i} 1HH] 1HHT THAHHHHHAHR
T e A
I HHHHT il

i
1 11
HHHHH

T
i
I

HHAHHHE

"l':::l' I
[HHIHTHITH]
HHHEHT
AT
T
y
i

(I T
[
= l HEH

HEHHTH
HHHH

A W iy
AR LR
TR R N TR
B R TR
T L R E R AR HR R AR
R
R
R
TR AR

L
T

R
ST W

e\
[

i/ ’,’,’,"m
{HIHH] TR

IHAHAHITHEN
W
IHAHAHAHAE
THHIHIHH
INTHAHHHHE
]

THTHIHTHT
i
i
T
TR
AAOETERRRN

N
AT
RO
IR “‘\‘W\:\M%\““N\
AR
M\\*‘Qﬁ TR

A

NYY
|
N

M
MR
IR
ALY
RO

MY
N
DN

be copied or reproduced in part or whole without prior

This drawing is protected under copyright and shall not
expressed permission of KS Design.

A
TEERRRHHT
NIRRT
T
]
M
I
I
I
il
HIH T
T
T
i,
I

29
23
5%
°3
e
25
o8

c
2
@
[0l
[a]
(2]
X



ue|d Juswaseqg
pasodold

9102 Yoseyy 3lva

P SWOH UoWIS INed  “IN3MD

LN Uopuol
nuanyyied 82 'LO3rovd

Page 107

Dt &

2

2
2

DR

2
Q
2

R
o\

2

2
2

AV
LR %
X
NGNS

2
R

2

.
22
XN
o

2

NN
222
R
QLYY
NN

RK
X
2

22\

@
2

2
2

2
2002
DR
2\ Z
NN

2

2R

X

D\
O\

R
2

S

R
20\
X0
R
DN
DX
NN

X2
2N
NOXA

o,
R
XX
o2
QR
X

2

e
RL
XY

&

AR
Q

Y ASY Held
Buiuue|d

N
S
22202
% 2%

X

R

O
SIS
S

ISK
SIS

SVSVS

©

— g

SIS TSI
OSSNSOV
IANANANAANNS
NN STV
S VSV SN
VI ANANAAHS
AV SUSYSTS TV
S STV
Voo
SN
ST
VOS]

0

"’%

008 ¥N1 aneibea]
0 suapies Aeuliey? L

ISR SUSHS
SUSUSUSUSTUSISHS

2

R

SIS S S S

/ / /S /
4 / 4 / S S L L LSS

N
\
\
\
~
\
\

\\\

2

RN
AN
NN RRN
NONONONONONON NN
N N N N N N N NN
NONONUONONONNY

NV REN

\

OO

NN\

NN N

SEE—————————

NN
NN NN N
NN N NN
NOONUN
NN N

DN
\
N

NN
SOOI

NN
\
NN
N\
\

/

fm\\\
%

7 S S S

JS S S S S S S S

\

JS S ST S S S S S S

JS S S S S S JSS S S S S S S S S

ubiseq SH

S TN

NS

LA

SaRRR

2R

MDD &
PN

SliRRe

XKW
o

N

QX
N

R
NN

X%
2

RO
2DXX

e

2
2

SO
2201
2\
RN

AR

2
2
2

000

©

T ubisaq sy Jo uossiusad passaidke

Joud Jnoum sjoym Jo ped ur paonposdas Jo paidod aq
10U [leys pue 1BAdoD Japun pajosiosd s BIMEIp SIUL
‘sBumesp s jooubus

[BJNONJIS WO USHE} 8Q 0} UOReULOU! [eimonus |1y
“UBISaQ S O} ¥oBq PELOGR) 2] ISNLU SADUBISISUOOU
fue pue es uo paRUY 8q O SuOSUBWIP
“sBumesp

S Jo aleds jou 0Q ‘Aluo suoisuswip painBy ssn
TS9jON




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 109

Agenda Item 8

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date : 26™ April 2016

Report of
Assistant Director, Planning &
Environmental Protection

3837

Contact Officer:

Andy Higham Tel: 020 8379 3848
Andy Bates Tel: 020 8379 3004
Robert Singleton Tel: 020 8379

Ward: Highlands

Application Number : 16/00349/RE4

Category: Dwellings

LOCATION: GARAGES ADJACENT TO 1, 13, 24, & 38, PADSTOW ROAD, ENFIELD,

EN2 8BU

PROPOSAL: Demolition of garages and erection of 6 x 2-storey single family dwellings
involving balconies to front (comprising: Site 1 — 2 x 2 bed semi-detached houses; Site 2
— 3 x 2 bed terraced houses; and, Site 3 — 1 x 2 bed detached houses) involving car

parking on Site 4 and landscaping

Applicant Name & Address:

Mr Nick Fletcher

Project Manager,

Health, Housing and Adult Social Care

Agent Name & Address:
MS Natalya PAlit

HTA Design LLP
105-110 Kentish Town,

London Borough of Enfield London,
C/O Agent NW1 9PX
RECOMMENDATION:

That planning permission to be GRANTED in accordance with Regulation 3/4 of the
Town and Country Planning General Regulations 1992 subject to conditions and

Unilateral Undertaking.




38, Padstow Road, Enfield, B

Page 110

Ref: 16/00349/RE4 LOCATION: Garages Adjacent To 1, 13, 24,

ettt
e

N
T T R R R

North

Scale 1:1250

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey
on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and

database right 2013. All Rights Reserved.
Ordnance Survey License number 100019820

Council

ENFIELD




Page 111

1. Site and Surroundings
1.1 The site comprises a series of four previously developed sites currently
occupied by a total of 24 garages and equating to a combined area of 1466
sg.m. In accordance with the submission, at present only 50% of the existing
garages are used for the parking of private motor vehicles. The four sites
form part of a wider housing estate lining Padstow Road, a residential cul-de-
sac. The estate is accessed via the classified Holtwhites Hill to the north
east.
— e
o - -_-- e — 1—1 [— —
i I ™ - =
+ = e
| = . |
| ™
‘:-] +
i, THHEH
i — |1 | J
1 . - il
L .
al ‘—:j - £ 1 b
iﬂ iI '|—=— 2 - | 1 |
=ty \ | = »—l _I - =
p"' - |
-’i = } I 4 __I : | . =
211 1 il 9 -
! I Lt 13
-
—
1]

N\

1.2

13

Illustrationl: Site Plan
For clarity, the four sites can be described as follows:
Site 1

Comprises a 371 sq.m plot situated on the western edge of the Padstow
Road spur. The site is bounded by the gardens of No.14 John Gooch Drive
to the west and to No.16 Chasewood Avenue the south. The site currently
contains has eight garages all of which are vacant. Several trees are present
on the site.



1.4

15

1.6

1.7

1.8

2.1

Page 112

Site 2

Comprises a 514 sg.m rectangular plot between Nos. 13 and 15 Padstow
Road. The site is bounded to the east by the gardens of Nos. 100, 102 and
104 Perrymead. The site contains eleven garages, five of which are occupied
with only three of those by local residents.

Site 3

Comprises a 219 sg.m plot adjacent to No.1 Padstow Road and close to the
junction with Holtwhites Hill. The site is bounded by the gardens of Nos. 168,
170 and 172 Holtwhites Hill to the north and No.112 Perrymead to the east.

The site contains three garages, all of which are occupied and with two by
local residents.

Site 4

Comprises a 362 sg.m plot adjacent to No0.38 Padstow Road. The site is
bounded to the west by the gardens of Nos. 12 and 14 Chasewood Avenue.
The site contains six garages, all of which are occupied by local residents.
The surrounding area is characterised a mix of residential units. Padstow
Road exclusively comprises two-storey single family dwelling houses with a
similar architectural 1960s / 1970s motif and design. The wider area
comprises a mix of housing types with a series of estates, flats and single
family dwellings peppered throughout.

The site is not within a Conservation Area nor is it a Listed Building.

Proposal

The project proposes the demolition of the existing garages and
redevelopment of the four sites.

Underpinning the scheme is a wider Council initiative known as ‘Small Sites 2’
driven by the Housing Department for the controlled release of brownfield

land owned by the Local Authority for the provision of new residential
accommodation and affordable housing.

Site 1

e No. 2 x 2-bed, two storey semi-detached houses
Site 2

e No. 3 x 2-bed two storey terraced houses
Site 3

¢ No. 1 x 2-bed two storey detached house

Site 4



2.2

3.1

4.

4.1

Page 113

o Decant car parking.

As originally submitted, the scheme also included the removal of grass verges
and provision of 14 on-street parking spaces. Having reviewed the scheme,
Officers expressed concern in relation to the harm caused by the loss of the
verges and the over-provision of additional parking to an area with sufficient
levels of on and off-street parking. Following negotiations with the applicant,
these additional car parking spaces have been removed and the grass verges
reinstated.

Relevant Planning Decisions

15/01436/PREAPP & 15/04117/PREAPP — Proposed erection of a terrace of
4 x 3-bed 2-storey dwelling houses & proposed erection of a terrace of 3 x 2-
bed 2-storey dwelling houses (follow up to ref: 15/01436/PREAPP) — The
redevelopment of the site has been the subject of extensive pre-application
discussions with a two of iterations presented for consideration. To date two
formal pre-application responses have been issued (29/04/15 and 10/10/15
respectively) each have established the principle of redevelopment of the
sites for residential purposes subject to achieving an appropriate density,
ensuring a suitable standard of accommodation, a satisfactory relationship to
existing neighbouring development, appropriate servicing and access
arrangements and car parking.

Consultations

Statutory and non-statutory consultees

Traffic and Transportation:

4.1.1 Following reinstatement of the grass verges, no objection subject to

conditions for both cycle parking and refuse storage.

Tree Officer:

4.1.2 No objection to the loss of trees, but loss of grass verges not supported.

Environmental Health:

4.1.2 Raise no objections to the scheme subject to conditions relating to

contamination and demolition.

Education:

4.1.3 At the time of writing no response had been received from colleagues in

Education. Any response received will be reported as a late item albeit where
an undertaking to pay relevant contributions for education provision in the
Borough and in accordance with the s106 SPD has been agreed.

Thames Water:

4.1.4 No objections subject to informatives.



4.2

42.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

531

Page 114

Public response

The application was referred to 78 surrounding properties and a site notice
was placed at the site (21 days expired 22/03/16). At the time of writing two
written representations were received from residents of Nos. 9 & 24 Padstow
Road objecting to the development citing the following grounds:

Close to adjoining properties
Development too high
Inadequate access
Inadequate parking provision
Increase in traffic

Increase of pollution

Loss of light

Loss of parking

Loss of privacy

Noise nuisance

Over development

Strain on existing community facilities

Relevant Policy

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) published in March 2012
allowed Local Planning Authorities a 12 month transition period to prepare for
the full implementation of the NPPF. Within this 12 month period Local
Planning Authorities could give full weight to the saved Unitary Development
Plan policies (UDP) and the Core Strategy, which was adopted prior to the
NPPF. The 12 month period has now elapsed and as from 28th March 2013
the Council's saved UDP and Core Strategy policies will be given due weight
in accordance to their degree of consistency with the NPPF.

The Development Management Document (DMD) policies have been
prepared under the NPPF regime to be NPPF compliant. The Submission
version DMD document was approved by Council on 27th March 2013 and is
now under examination. An Inspector has been appointed on behalf of the
Government to conduct the examination to determine whether the DMD is
sound. The examination is a continuous process running from submission
through to receiving the Inspector's Report. Public Examination of the
document was completed on Thursday 24th April 2014. The DMD provides
detailed criteria and standard based policies by which planning applications
will be determined, and is considered to carry significant weight having been
occasioned at Public Examination and throughout the examination stage.

The policies listed below are considered to be consistent with the NPPF and
therefore it is considered that due weight should be given to them in
assessing the development the subject of this application.

The London Plan (Consolidated)

Policy 2.6 — Outer London: vision and strategy

Policy 2.7 — Outer London: economy

Policy 2.8 — Outer London: transport

Policy 3.1 — Ensuring equal life chances for all

Policy 3.2 — Improving health and addressing health inequalities



Page 115

Policy 3.3 — Increasing housing supply

Policy 3.4 — Optimising housing potential

Policy 3.5 — Quality and design of housing developments
Policy 3.6 — Children and young people’s play and informal recreation
facilities

Policy 3.7 — Large residential developments

Policy 3.8 — Housing choice

Policy 3.9 — Mixed and balanced communities

Policy 3.11 — Affordable housing targets

Policy 3.14 — Existing housing

Policy 3.16 — Protection and enhancement of social infrastructure
Policy 4.1 — Developing London’s economy

Policy 4.12 — Improving opportunities for all

Policy 5.1 — Climate change mitigation

Policy 5.2 — Minimising carbon dioxide emissions

Policy 5.3 — Sustainable design and construction

Policy 5.5 — Decentralised energy networks

Palicy 5.6 — Decentralised energy in development proposals
Policy 5.7 — Renewable energy

Policy 5.9 — Overheating and cooling

Policy 5.10 — Urban greening

Policy 5.11 — Green roofs and development site environs
Policy 5.12 — Flood risk management

Policy 5.13 — Sustainable drainage

Policy 5.15 — Water use and supplies

Policy 5.18 — Construction, excavation and demolition waste
Policy 5.21 — Contaminated land

Policy 6.9 — Cycling

Policy 6.10 — Walking

Policy 6.12 — Road network capacity

Policy 6.13 — Parking

Policy 7.1 — Building London’s neighbourhoods and communities
Policy 7.2 — An inclusive environment

Policy 7.3 — Designing out crime

Policy 7.4 — Local character

Policy 7.5 — Public realm

Policy 7.6 — Architecture

Policy 7.7 — Location and design of tall and large buildings
Policy 7.14 — Improving air quality

Policy 7.15 — Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes
Policy 7.18 — Protecting local open space and addressing local deficiency
Policy 7.19 — Biodiversity and access to nature

Policy 7.21 — Trees and woodlands

Housing SPG

5.3.2 Local Plan — Core Strateqy

Core Policy 1: Strategic growth areas

Core policy 2: Housing supply and locations for new homes

Core policy 3: Affordable housing

Core Policy 4: Housing quality

Core Policy 5: Housing types

Core Policy 6: Housing need

Core Policy 20: Sustainable Energy use and energy infrastructure



534

5.4

541

Page 116

Core Policy 21: Delivering sustainable water supply, drainage and sewerage
infrastructure

Core Policy 24: The road network

Core Policy 25: Pedestrians and cyclists

Core Policy 26: Public transport

Core Policy 28: Managing flood risk through development

Core Policy 29: Flood management infrastructure

Core Policy 30: Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open
environment

Core Policy 32: Pollution

Core Policy 34: Parks, playing fields and other open spaces

Core Policy 36: Biodiversity

Biodiversity Action Plan
S106 SPD

Development Management Document

DMD1: Affordable Housing on Sites Capable of Providing 10 units or more
DMD3: Providing a Mix of Different Sized Homes

DMD6: Residential Character

DMD8: General Standards for New Residential Development
DMD9: Amenity Space

DMD10: Distancing

DMD15: Specialist Housing Need

DMD37: Achieving High Quality and Design-Led Development
DMD38: Design Process

DMD45: Parking Standards and Layout

DMD47: New Road, Access and Servicing

DMDA48: Transport Assessments

DMDA49: Sustainable Design and Construction Statements
DMD50: Environmental Assessments Method

DMD51: Energy Efficiency Standards

DMD53: Low and Zero Carbon Technology

DMD55: Use of Roofspace/ Vertical Surfaces

DMD57: Responsible Sourcing of Materials, Waste Minimisation and Green
Procurement

DMD58: Water Efficiency

DMD59: Avoiding and Reducing Flood Risk

DMD64: Pollution Control and Assessment

DMD65: Air Quality

DMDG68: Noise

DMD69: Light Pollution

DMD79: Ecological Enhancements

DMDB80: Trees on development sites

DMD81: Landscaping

National Planning Policy Framework

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) introduces a presumption in
favour of sustainable development. In this respect, sustainable development
is identified as having three dimensions — an economic role, a social role and
an environmental role. For decision taking, this presumption in favour of
sustainable development means:



5.4.2

5.4.3

55

551

55

Page 117

e approving development proposals that accord with the development plan
without delay; and

o Where the development plan is absent, silent or relevant policies are out
of date, granting permission unless:

Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the Framework
taken as a whole; or

Specific policies in the Framework indicate development should be restricted.

The NPPF recognises that planning law requires that applications for planning
permission must be determined in accordance with the development plan
unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The NPPF does not
change the statutory status of the development plan as the starting point for
decision making.

In addition, paragraph 173 of the NPPF states that in the pursuit of
sustainable development careful attention must be given to viability and costs
in plan-making and decision-taking. Plans should be deliverable. Therefore,
the sites and the scale of development identified in the plan should not be
subject to such a scale of obligations and policy burdens that their ability to be
developed viably is threatened. To ensure viability, the costs of any
requirements likely to be applied to development, such as requirements for
affordable housing, standards, infrastructure contributions or other
requirements should, when taking account of the normal cost of development
and mitigation, provide competitive returns to a willing land owner and willing
developer to enable the development to be deliverable.

National Planning Practice Guidance

On 6™ March 2014, the Department for Communities and Local Government
(DCLG) launched the National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) to
consolidate and simplify previous suite of planning practice guidance. Of
particular note for members, the guidance builds on paragraph 173 of the
NPPF stating that where an assessment of viability of an individual scheme in
the decision-making process is required, decisions must be underpinned by
an understanding of viability, ensuring realistic decisions are made to support
development and promote economic growth. Where the viability of a
development is in question, local planning authorities should look to be
flexible in applying policy requirements wherever possible.

Other Material Considerations

Housing SPG

Affordable Housing SPG

Enfield Market Housing Assessment

Providing for Children and Young People’s Play and Informal Recreation SPG
and revised draft

Accessible London: achieving an inclusive environment SPG; Planning and
Access for Disabled People; a good practice guide (ODPM)

Sustainable Design and Construction SPG;

Mayor's Climate Change Adaption Strategy; Mayor's Climate Change
Mitigation and Energy Strategy;



6.1

6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

Page 118

Mayors Water Strategy

Mayor’'s Ambient Noise Strategy

Mayor’s Air Quality Strategy

Mayor’'s Transport Strategy;

Land for Transport Functions SPG

London Plan; Mayoral Community Infrastructure Levy

Circular 06/05 Biodiversity and Geological Conservation- Statutory
Obligations and Their Impact within the Planning System

Analysis
The main issues to consider are as follows:

i.  Principle of redevelopment to provide residential accommodation
and in particular the compatibility of the development with the
provisions of the NPPF and the definition of previously developed
land;

ii. Housing mix;

iii. Design;
iv.  Amenity of neighbouring properties;
v.  Highway safety;
vi.  Sustainability and biodiversity;
Vii. S.106 Obligations; and
viii.  Community Infrastructure Levy

Principle

The site lies within a predominantly residential area and hence the principle of
residential development is broadly acceptable and consequently compatible
with Policies 3.3 and 3.4 of the London Plan, Core Policy 5 of the Core
Strategy. The provisions of the National Planning Policy Framework supports
the redevelopment of previously developed site (known as brownfield land)
identifying such sites as sustainable locations for development and
preferential in planning terms to sites that would erode the openness of the
wider environment including greenfield and green belt land. Developments
that seek to utilise these alternative sites must demonstrate the exceptional
circumstances where the loss of open space, the setting such space offers
and the multiplicity of benefits such areas provide can be justified.

The Development Management Document reiterates this presumption and
Policy DMD71 of states that development involving the loss of other open
space will be resisted unless:

a. Replacement open space can be re-provided in the same locality and
of better quality to support the delivery of the Council's adopted Parks
and Open Spaces Strategy; or

b. It has been demonstrated through the submission of an assessment
that the open space in question is surplus to requirements.

The development area comprises 4 sites containing garages and associated
hardstanding and would fall within relevant definitions of brownfield land and
the principle of development to these sites can be supported.

Additional land in the form of grass verges also featured as part of the original
submission. These areas were earmarked for additional car parking



6.2.5

6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

Page 119

provision. The areas are outside of relevant brownfield definitions and
Officers considered that the verges contributed to the open aspect, green and
leafy feel of this suburban location that serve to characterise the area. Whilst
of modest individual quality, the contribution of these spaces to soften the
built form, break up the large expanse of hard-surfacing and contribute
positively to the loose suburban fabric that defines the surround to such an
extent that the loss of these areas could not be justified in planning terms.
Given the constraints of the surrounding area, replacement open space
cannot be provided and whilst not of recreational use, these grass verges
provide valuable visual amenity that positively contributes to the appearance
of the estate.

Although Officers acknowledged that the applicant has sought to reprovide
parking provision to the wider estate, the level of existing on/off-street parking
meant that the removal of the verges was excessive when considered against
the parking requirements to service the number of units that are within the
estate. This point is expanded upon in the Transportation section below. The
benefits of the additional parking would not outweigh the significant harm
resultant from the loss of the open space and following negotiation with the
applicant, these areas have been removed from the scheme.

Housing Mix

London Plan Policy 3.8 encourages a full range of housing choice. This is
supported by the London Plan Housing SPG, which seeks to secure family
accommodation within residential schemes, particularly within the social
rented sector, and sets strategic guidance for councils in assessing their local
needs. Policy 3.11 of the London Plan states that within affordable housing
provision, priority should be accorded to family housing. Also relevant is
Policy 1.1, part C, of the London Housing Strategy which sets a target for
42% of social rented homes to have three or more bedrooms, and Policy 2.1,
part C, of the draft Housing Strategy (2011) which states that 36% of funded
affordable rent homes will be family sized.

Core Policy 5 of the Core Strategy seeks to ensure that ‘new developments
offer a range of housing sizes to meet housing need’ and includes borough-
wide targets housing mix. These targets are based on the finding of Enfield’s
Strategic Housing Market Assessment and seek to identify areas of specific
housing need within the borough. The targets are applicable to the subject
scheme and are expressed in the following table:

Tenure Unit Type Mix
Market Housing 1 and 2-bed flats (1-3 persons) 20%

2-bed houses (4 persons) 15%

3 bed houses (5-6 persons) 45%

4+ bed houses (6+ persons) 20%

Social Rented Housing 1 and 2-bed flats (1-3 persons) 20%

2-bed houses (4 persons) 20%

3 bed houses (5-6 persons) 30%




Page 120

4+ bed houses (6+ persons) 30%

6.3.3

6.3.4

6.4

6.4.1

6.4.2

6.4.3

6.4.5

While it is acknowledged that there is an established need for all types of
housing, the study demonstrates an acute shortage of houses with three or
more bedrooms across owner occupier, social and private rented sectors.

The subject scheme proposes 100% market housing provision comprising 6 x
2-bed residential units. In accordance with submitted figures the proposed
development would fail to achieve the housing mix targets stipulated by Core
Policy 5 with what would be an overconcentration of the 2B 4P units.
However, the area is already defined by 3-bed units and the proposal actually
contributes to the mix of housing available on the estate. Furthermore, the
constraints of the individual sites are such that to provide larger units would
serve to reduce the number of units and potentially result in an incongruous
form of development. In this regard, it is considered that the stated mix is
acceptable on balance.

Design
Density

For the purposes of the London Plan density matrix, it is considered the site
lies within a suburban area with a PTAL 2-3 albeit where the vast majority of
the wider area has a much lower PTAL indicating that it has modest access to
public transport, despite being within close proximity to Enfield Town public
transport access links. In this regard, the density matrix suggests a density of
between 150 and 250 habitable rooms per hectare. The character of the area
indicates that the average unit size in the area has between than 3.1 — 3.7
rooms. This suggests a unit range of 40 to 80 units per hectare.

Consistent with the advice given a pre-application stage, the number of units
proposed at the site has been reduced to positively respond to the concerns
of the Local Planning Authority. In density terms, across the 4 sites, such a
reduction has resulted in the creation of 163 habitable rooms per hectare or
40 units which would be within acceptable parameters.

It is acknowledged that advice contained within the NPPF and the London
Plan Housing SPG suggests that a numerical assessment of density must not
be the sole test of acceptability in terms of the integration of a development
into the surrounding area and that weight must also be given to the
attainment of appropriate scale and design relative to character and
appearance of the surrounding area particularly given the concerns of
objectors to the scheme. Thus, the density range for the site must be
appropriate in relation to the local context and in line with the design
principles in Chapter 7 of the London Plan and Core Strategy Policy 30:
Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open environment and
commensurate with an overarching objective that would seek to optimise the
use of the site and will be discussed in the following paragraphs.

The surrounding area is characterised by a loose suburban fabric with a
predominance of low rise 2-storey terraced building typology interspersed by
larger flatted development over 3-4 storeys. Padstow Road itself, is
exclusively characterised by smaller three bed-units of uniform design and




Page 121

relatively modest — yet proportionate — plot sizes. All of the sites have a
broadly regular configuration with only the tapering boundary of Site 1
presenting an irregularity of form. The wider estate possesses a general
aesthetic typical of development from the 1960-1970s with relatively squat
building with shallow roof planes forming grid rows of remarkably uniform
development that offers only subtle changes in the arrangement of materials,
type of fenestration and the facilities offered by the units. The general pattern
and rhythm of development is consistent throughout the estate and can be
read as a whole.

6.4.6 It is acknowledged that the subject scheme would depart from the general

6.4.7

aesthetic of the area with a more contemporary take on the design of the
units, the NPPF is clear in its mandate that Local Planning Authorities do not
impose architectural styles or particular tastes on development rather that
they advocate high quality design and reinforce local distinctiveness. Indeed,
following a reduction in the number of units, each of the dwellings would have
broadly regular plot sizes, building footprints and building lines that would
serve to broadly respect the pattern and rhythm of development in the
surrounding area. Whilst the chamfered edge to the southernmost unit to Site
1 is noted, it would not be discernible from the street scene and the property
would present a uniform frontage by proportion and design.

However, while it is considered that modern design would be appropriate to
the locality in accordance with the provisions of the NPPF, this is not at the
expense of local distinctiveness — the imperative that development responds
appropriately to its context and the character and appearance of the
surrounding area. As originally submitted, each of the units featured a
distinctive entrance feature that comprised a large recessed arch.



Page 122

Illustration 3: Site 3 Front Elevation (Original Submission)

6.4.8 The surrounding estate is completely devoid of similar features and the
established consistency and architectural rhythm replicated throughout the
Padstow Road estate with its boxy / angular design and clear horizontal break
between the ground and first floors was not borne out in the original
submission. Consistent with the views of the Local Planning Authority at pre-
application stage, Officers expressed significant concern in relation to this
feature and the front elevational treatment, stating that this element of the
design would result introduction of a wholly alien and incongruous feature
within the street scene. The recession of the entrance and first floor terrace
largely blank fagade and the undulation of the arches would ensure that the
development would be read not in terms of individual units, but as a single
entity that lacked horizontal and vertical breaks, which rather than reinforcing
local distinctiveness would result in a significantly harmful elevational
treatment that would serve to disrupt the pattern and rhythm of development
in the surrounding area and dominate the street scene. There appeared to be
no coherent design justification for the proposals and neither did they result in
specific benefits for the form of development that would justify their inclusion.
A series of meetings were held with the applicant and following extensive
negotiation, these elements of the scheme were removed and revised
elevations submitted.

B = 5 ORI ===
H - H R T o e

lllustration 4: Site 3 Front Elevation (Revised Submission)

6.4.9 As can be seen from the elevation above, the imposition of a full width
rectangular recess, provides and replicates the defined horizontal break so
prevalent a feature in the surrounding estate. The design feature ensures the
units can be read individually and that the built form is sufficiently broken so
as to ensure that the pattern and rhythm of development is preserved without
the need to sacrifice contemporary design. Indeed, the revisions now clearly
draw from design references in the surround with a larger glazed box area at
ground floor indicative of the single storey garage and storage boxed
projections that feature on neighbouring properties, and an arrangement of




6.4.10

6.4.11

6.4.10

6.4.11

6.4.12

6.4.13

Page 123

fenestration at first floor that broadly reflects adjacent units, all of which
contribute to the integration of the built form.

While the distribution / peppering of the new units across the wider area could
be held to disrupt the uniform appearance of the estate, crude pastiche of the
existing units — which themselves are of limited quality — is not considered
appropriate, particularly as these units would be unlikely to achieve current
standards imposed upon new build housing and would have conversely
created more substantive planning issues than such a replication in design
would solve. For example, the decision to incorporate a flat roof rather than a
pitch was to ensure that the current standards for floor to ceiling heights could
be achieved without exceeding maximum height parameters of adjacent
properties which would have disrupted the rhythm of development and
created an incongruity within the street scene.

Therefore, on balance — and following revisions — the scale, bulk massing and
design of the scheme is considered to be appropriate and would serve to
reflect and reinforce local distinctiveness and the pattern of development in
the surrounding area

Residential Standards

The Mayor's London Plan and any adopted alterations form part of the
development plan for Enfield. In addition to this, Enfield's Local Plan
comprises the relevant documents listed in policy context section above.

On 27th March 2015 a written ministerial statement (WMS) was published
outlining the government’s policy position in relation to the Housing Standards
Review. The statement indicated that as of the 1st of October 2015 existing
Local Plans, neighbourhood plan, and supplementary planning document
policies relating to water efficiency, access and internal space should be
interpreted by reference to the nearest equivalent new national technical
standard. Decision takers should only require compliance with the new
national technical standards where there is a relevant current Local Plan

policy.

DMD5 and DMD8 of the Development Management Document and Policy 3.5
of the London Plan set minimum internal space standards for residential
development. In accordance with the provisions of the WMS, the presence of
these Policies within the adopted Local Plan is such that the new Technical
Housing Standards — Nationally Described Space Standard would apply to all
residential developments within the Borough. It is noted that the London Plan
is currently subject to Examination, with Proposed Alterations currently being
considered which seek to reflect the Nationally Described Space Standards.

Notwithstanding the fact that the existing Development Plan Policies broadly
align with the new technical standards and in acknowledgement of London
Plan review process, the LPA has sought Counsel Advice in relation to the
status of adopted Local Plan Policy. As a starting point, when determining
applications for planning permission and related appeals, as decision maker
is required:

a. By section 70(2) of the 1990 Act to have regard, inter alia, to the
provisions of the development plan, so far as material to the application,
and to any other material planning considerations; and,



6.4.14

6.4.15

6.4.16

6.4.17

6.4.18

6.4.19

Page 124

b. By section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, to
decide the matter in accordance with the development plan unless
material considerations indicated otherwise.

The weight to be given to material considerations is for the decision maker
(i.e. the LPA or the Secretary of State) making the decision in the exercise of
its planning judgment.

The changes announced as part of the WMS are a material planning
consideration in the determination of applications. However, the change to
national policy is only one of a number of material planning considerations
that must be taken into account in the determination of any particular
application or appeal. As a matter of law, the change to national policy
cannot supplant, or override, any other planning considerations, including any
provisions of the development plan, that are material to the application.

Section 38(6) of the 2004 Act must be read together with section 70(2) of the
1990 Act. The effect of those two provisions is that the determination of an
application for planning permission, or a planning appeal, is to be made in
accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations
indicate otherwise.

It is for the decision-maker to assess the relative weight to be given to all
material considerations, including the policies of the development plan
material to the application or appeal (see City of Edinburgh Council v
Secretary of State for Scotland (1997)). Accordingly, when determining such
applications the Council must have regard to and apply the provisions of the
Local Plan including DMD5, DMD8 and 3.5 which requires that all new
residential development attain a minimum internal floor area across all
schemes and remain a material consideration.

Table 3.3 of The London Plan (2011) specifies minimum Gross Internal Areas
(GIA) for residential units. Paragraph 3.36 of the London Plan specifies that
these are minimum sizes and should be exceeded where possible. As the
London Plan has been adopted, the GIA’s have considerable weight. In
addition, paragraph 59 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2012)
(NPPF) states that local planning authorities should consider using design
codes where they could help deliver high quality outcomes. Policy 3.5 of The
London Plan also specifies that Boroughs should ensure that, amongst other
things, new dwellings have adequately sized rooms and convenient and
efficient room layouts.

In view of paragraph 59 of the NPPF and Policy 3.5 of The London Plan, and
when considering what is an appropriate standard of accommodation and
quality of design, the Council has due regard to the Mayor of London’'s
Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) (November 2012). As an
SPG, this document does not set new policy. It contains guidance
supplementary to The London Plan (2011) policies. While it does not have
the same formal Development Plan status as these policies, it has been
formally adopted by the Mayor as supplementary guidance under his powers
under the Greater London Authority Act 1999 (as amended). Adoption
followed a period of public consultation, and it is therefore a material
consideration in drawing up Development Plan documents and in taking
planning decisions.



Page 125

6.4.20 When directly compared, the difference between the Development Plan
standards and the new Nationally Described Space Standard can be
expressed in the following table:

Unit Type Occupancy London Plan Floor Area National Space Standard
Level (m?) Floor Area (m?)
Flats 1p 37 37
1b2p 50 50
2b3p 61 61
2b4p 70 70
3b4p 74 74
3b5p 86 86
3b6p 95 95
4b5p 90 90
4b6p 99 99
2 storey 2b4p 83 79
houses 3b4p 87 84
3b5p 96 93
4b5p 100 97
4b6p 107 106
3 storey 3b5p 102 99
houses 4b5p 106 103
4b6p 113 112

6.4.21 In accordance with submitted plans and with reference to the schedule of
accommodation all of the units either meet or exceed relevant standards and
hence would be broadly acceptable.

Inclusive Access

6.4.20 London Plan SPG and Local Plan imposes further standards to ensure the
quality of accommodation is consistently applied and maintains to ensure the
resultant development is fit-for-purpose, flexible and adaptable over the
lifetime of the development as well as mitigating and adapting to climatic
change. In this regard, all units are required to achieve Lifetime Homes
standards with a further 10% being wheelchair accessible. The WMS
replaced Lifetime Homes standards with optional Building Regulations
standards M4(2) and M4(3). These optional standards are applicable to the
scheme as the development plan contains clear Policies requiring specialist
housing need and in a more broad sense, development that is capable of
meeting the reasonable needs of residents over their lifetime. The new
standards are broadly equivalent to Lifetime Homes and Wheelchair
Accessible Homes and accordingly it is expected that all properties are
designed to achieve M4(2) with a further 10% achieving M4(3).

6.4.21 The development has been designed to accommodate these requirements
and is considered to be acceptable subject to conditions.

Amenity Provision/Child Playspace
6.4.23 Policy DMD9 seeks to ensure that amenity space is provided within the

curtilage of all residential development. The standards for houses and flats
are as follows:



Page 126

Dwelling type Average private amenity  Minimum private

1b 2p

space (across the whole amenity required for
site) individual dwellings (m?)
N/A 5

2b 3p

N/A

2b 4p

N/A

3b4p

N/A

3b 5p

N/A

3b 6p

N/A 9

2b 4p (house) 38 23

3b 5p (house) 44 29

4b 6p (house) 50 35

6.4.24

6.4.25

6.4.22

6.4.23

6.5

6.5.1

In addition to the standards for private amenity space set out above, flats
must provide communal amenity space which:

a. Provides a functional area of amenity space having regard to the housing
mix/types to be provided by the development;

b. Is overlooked by surrounding development;

c. Is accessible to wheelchair users and other disabled people;

d. Has suitable management arrangements in place.

From submitted plans it is clear that the area average capable of providing
screened private amenity space to the rear of each of the units meets or
exceeds minimum and average standards by some margin.

London Plan policy 3.6 requires that development proposals that include
residential development make suitable provision for play and informal
recreation, based on the expected child population generated by the scheme
and an assessment of future needs at a ratio of 10 sq.m of play space per
child. This would result in a requirement for 7.3 sq.m of play space required
based on child yield.

No formal play provision has been provided, however, regard must be given
to the nature, type and context of the development within the wider surround.
Each of the family unit benefits from Policy compliant doorstep private
gardens which are of a sufficient size to ensure practical and functional use.
In accordance with the Play and Informal Recreation SPG, the presence of
private garden space removes the requirement to provide playspace for the
under 5's and further states that where existing provision is within 400m for 5-
11 year olds and 800m for 12+ year olds this too can be taken into account in
determining the degree and nature of the playspace requirement. While there
are no public recreation grounds within these thresholds, Town Park is within
walking distance to the south of the site and mindful of the quantum of
development it is considered that the absence of dedicated play space is
broadly acceptable given the provision of generously proportioned private
garden areas to each of the units.

Impact of Neighbouring Properties

Policy DMD8 of the Development Management Document seeks to ensure
that all new residential development is appropriately located, taking account
of the surrounding area and land uses with a mandate to preserve amenity in



6.5.2

6.5.3

6.5.4

6.5.5

Page 127

terms of daylight, sunlight, outlook, privacy, noise and disturbance. In
addition, DMD10 imposes minimum distancing standards to maintain a sense
of privacy, avoid overshadowing and to ensure that adequate amounts of
sunlight are available for new and existing developments.

Site 1

The context of the site is such that the properties likely to be impacted by the
scheme are to the adjacent No.24 Padstow Road to the north, No.14 John
Gooch Drive to the west and to Nos.16-40 Chasewood Avenue the south.

In taking each in turn, it is noted that residents to No.24 Padstow Road have
objected to the scheme on the grounds of impact of the built form. The
subject property currently benefits from two small secondary windows to the
flank elevation. As part of the development of the scheme, additional
separation has been afforded to the northern boundary of the development
site, both to facilitate access and to offer some form of relief to these
windows. This is to be welcomed, albeit where such windows would be
afforded limited weighting in deliberations given their existing relationship to
the garages and the fact that they are secondary sources of light to No.24. It
is considered that the impact of the development to these windows is
acceptable.

It is also noted that the rear building line of the development to Site 1 — and
indeed to all of the Sites — is approximately 1.7m deeper that the established
rear building line of No.24. Policy DMD11 offers standards for residential
extensions to the rear of properties that assess the impact of development to
neighbouring properties. Whilst not directly applicable to new build units, the
principles established by this Policy set useful benchmarks by which to
assess harm and the Policy stipulates that ground floor extensions must not
exceed 3m in depth (or if site conditions allow a larger extension not to
exceed a 45-degree line plotted from the nearest original neighbouring
ground floor window), with first floor extensions not allowed to exceed and 30-
degree line plotted from the mid-point of the nearest original neighbouring first
floor window. Having reviewed the subject site and associated plans, it is
clear that the development does not breach any of the relevant criteria and
this coupled with the modest projection and increased separation to the
northern boundary ensures that the impact to this property is acceptable.

To No.14 John Gooch Drive and No0s.16-40 Chasewood Avenue, DMD9
states that development must maintain adequate distancing between building
So as to preserve adequate daylighting / sunlight and privacy. The relative
orientation of each property is such that distancing standard applicable
relates to a minimum separation of 11m must be maintained between facing
windows and side boundaries — increasing to 22m between rear facing. From
scaled and verified aerial photographs and from submitted plans, it is clear
that the separation distances between the properties and the development
would exceed this minimum standard by some margin and would not
therefore cause undue harm despite the imposition of a new two storey built
form. To No0s.16-40 Chasewood Avenue, this is further ameliorated by the
fact that the new units would actually directly abut a large hardsurfaced car
parking area rather than the boundary of any garden, this coupled with the
retention of trees to this boundary is such that the development would also be
largely screened.



6.5.6

6.5.7

6.5.8

6.5.9

6.5.10

6.5.11

6.5.12

Page 128

At 25m, the distancing to existing properties lining Padstow Road to the east
would also be acceptable.

Site 2

The context of the site is such that the properties likely to be impacted by the
scheme are to the adjacent Nos. 13 and 15 Padstow Road to the north and
south and Nos. 100, 102 and 104 Perrymead to the east.

To Padstow Road it is also noted that the rear building line of the
development to Site 2 — and indeed to all of the Sites — is approximately 1.7m
deeper that the established rear building line of Nos. 13 and 15. Policy
DMD11 offers standards for residential extensions to the rear of properties
that assess the impact of development to neighbouring properties. Having
reviewed the subject site and associated plans, it is clear that the
development does not breach any of the relevant criteria and this coupled
with the modest projection ensures that the impact to this property is
acceptable.

In relation to those properties lining Perrymead at 30m, the distancing to
these properties would exceed minimum standards by some margin and
would also be acceptable.

Site 3

The context of the site is such that the properties likely to be impacted by the
scheme are to the adjacent No.1 Padstow Road to the south, Nos. 168, 170
and 172 Holtwhites Hill to the north and No.112 Perrymead to the east.

As with Sites 1 and 2, the additional projection of the scheme is not
considered harmful and would not breach relevant measures established by
DMD11. In relation to the units lining Perrymead to the rear, again, the
context of the site is such that a significant separation of over 35m is offered
between rear facing windows and would exceed with minimum separation
standards advocated by DMD9 by some margin.

To Nos. 168, 170 and 172 Holtwhites Hill, the relative orientation of each
property is such that distancing standard applicable relates to a minimum
separation of 11m must be maintained between facing windows and side
boundaries to accord with DMD10. From scaled and verified aerial
photographs and from submitted plans, it is clear that the separation
distances between the properties and the development would meet this
minimum standard. It is acknowledged that the scheme will result in some
loss of daylight to the garden areas of these properties due to their relative
orientation, but this will not be sustained for significant periods of time during
the day and will alleviate in the summer months. In any case, principal living
areas should remain largely unaffected. Given the proportions of the subject
development and despite the increase in proximity if the built form, the
development would comply with relevant standards and while discernible, the
proposal would not cause undue harm to residential amenity and would relate
well to the separation distances between properties in the surrounding area.

Site 4



Page 129

6.5.13 Development to this site would be limited to the demolition of existing garages

6.6

6.5.1

6.5.2

6.5.4

6.5.6

6.5.7

6.5.8

6.5.9

and creation of formalised car parking bays. The nature of the works is such
that there will be no discernible impact on the residential amenity of
surrounding properties subject to relevant surface water attenuation
measures which are yet to be agreed, but will be secured by condition.

Highway Safety

Site Context

The Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) of the site is 2 indicating it
has a low level of public transport accessibility despite being within close
proximity to Gordon Hill Mainline Train Station and indeed the range of
transport available from Enfield Town.

There is a single access to the site from Holtwhites Hill — a classified road.
Padstow Road has not parking restrictions and benefits from both informal
on-street parking as well as formalised off-street parking both in terms of
hard-standing and integral garages. In total the sites comprise 24 individual
garages. Of the 24, 10 are vacant, 9 are occupied by local residents with a
further 5 occupied by private individuals.

The proposed development seeks to provide 1 cycle parking space per unit
with a further 24 car parking spaces resulting in the loss of two grass verges.

Access and Servicing

Pedestrian access is clearly defined and the proposed arrangements meet
London Plan Policy 6.10 Walking and Enfield DMD Policy 47 which requires
that ‘[a]ll developments should make provision for attractive, safe, clearly
defined and convenient routes and accesses for pedestrians, including those
with disabilities.’

The plans indicate that where new dwellings are being provided the existing
access to garages will be closed off and the footway reinstated. Therefore no
vehicular access and related off street parking is proposed for the dwellings.
This is in line with Enfield DMD Policy 46. The applicant will need to cover
the cost of reinstatement of the footway and should contact Highway Services
to discuss this. There will also need to be stopping up of the public highway
on the site between the current Nos. 13 and 15 Padstow Road which will
require a s278 agreement.

In general terms, the intensification of use across the three sites will not result
in a significant increase in serving demands in excess of levels currently
experienced. The unrestricted parking in the area coupled with retained and
ample turning-heads ensures that larger vehicles including waste vehicles
can enter and exit the site easily.

Car Parking

The current London Plan Policy 6.13 — and related maximum standards as
set out in Table 6.2 in the Parking Addendum - indicate that the maximum
provision for a new development of this size and setting is up to 1.5 car
parking spaces per residential unit. There is also maximum provision set by
number of bedrooms with a 2 bed having less than 1 space and a 3 bed less



6.5.10

6.5.14

6.5.15

6.5.16

6.5.17

6.5.18

6.6

6.6.1

Page 130

than 1.5. The following section has been examined in consultation with
colleagues in Traffic and Transportation.

In the responses to the various pre-applications it was indicated that, given
the poor access to public transport of the site, as a minimum the parking ratio
would have to be 0.6 per unit. Given the mix of units a maximum (as an
average across the sites) would be 1.25 per unit. Therefore provision of
around 1 space per unit is considered to be a suitable median.

It should be noted that there is already provision of circa 28 on-street and 11
off-street car parking spaces without the garage and other associated spaces.
This means that for the existing dwellings there is effectively 1 to 1 provision.
In addition, the parking surveys undertaken in support of the application
indicate that the Padstow Road area has around 50% usage of available
parking capacity.

In real terms, this means that, even taking into account the new housing units,
proposals for 24 new parking spaces would lead to a parking ratio of around
1.4 spaces per unit which is close to London Plan maximums. This itself can
be held to be contrary to the underlying principles of Transport Policies that
seeks to promote sustainable transport options, however, in taking account of
the real world accessibility of the site, and the significant weight that must be
attributed to the harm associated with the loss of the grass verges, on
balance it is considered that such provision is excessive.

Accordingly — and following negotiations with the applicant — revised plans
have been submitted in support of the application, which indicate that the
conversion of grass verges into car parking provision is no longer proposed.
Whilst this affects 14 parking spaces, as set out above it is not considered
that this will have a significant impact on overall car parking space availability
in the local area and would not outweigh the significant harm caused by the
loss of the verges.

In this regard, the lower provision of car parking is deemed acceptable as the
level of parking proposed will not increase demand to unsustainable levels or
lead to traffic generation that could result in conditions that may have a
negative impact on the free flow of traffic and highway safety conditions,
having regard to The London Plan Policy 6.13 and Policy DMD 45.

In relation to cycle parking, submitted plans indicate storage facilities to the
rear of each property to provide storage for a single bicycle. In accordance
with Table 6.3 of the London Plan 2 x long stay spaces are required per 2-bed
(or larger dwellings), also it is preferable for such storage to be directly
accessible to the highway. A further 2 x short stay space are required in the
wider surround. While it is clear that existing provision is at odds with
relevant cycle parking standards, it is considered that this can be secured by
condition.

Sustainable Design and Construction

Energy

In accordance with London Plan Policy 5.2 and DMD51 of the Development
Management Document, the application includes an energy strategy for the
development setting out how carbon dioxide emissions will be reduced with



6.6.2

6.6.3

6.6.4

6.6.13

6.6.14

Page 131

an overarching target to reduce carbon dioxide emission by 19% over Part L
of Building Regulations 2013 across the site.

The Policy embeds the principles of the energy hierarchy (be lean, be clean,
be green) and requires strict adherence to the hierarchy to maximise energy
efficiency in development from the ground up, ensuring that the structure of
the energy policies serve to incentivise considered innovative design as the
core value in delivering exemplar sustainable development in accordance
with the Spatial Vision for Enfield and Strategic Objective 2 of the Core
Strategy. Indeed, reflecting the overarching strategic vision for the borough,
the Policy goes further than the London Plan and instils a flexibility in the
decision making process to seek further efficiencies and deliver exemplar
developments within our regeneration areas.

An Energy Statement has not been submitted with the scheme, however, the
D&A indicates that the development will commit to the Code 4 equivalent
energy strategy. This is considered acceptable and is controlled subject to
condition.

Code for Sustainable Homes

Core Policy 4 of the adopted Core Strategy requires that all residential
developments should seek to exceed Code Level 3 of the Code for
Sustainable Homes. DMD50 of the Development Management Document
has updated this target and new residential developments within the Borough
are now required to exceed a Code Level 4 rating. The WMS formally
withdrew the Code for Sustainable Homes and in its transitional arrangement
indicated that the Code would only remain applicable to legacy case. The
scheme is not defined as a legacy case and hence the requirements of the
Code do not apply.

Green Roofs

Policy DMD55 of the Development Management Document seeks to ensure
that new-build developments, and all major development will be required to
use all available roof space and vertical surfaces for the installation of low
zero carbon technologies, green roofs, and living walls subject to technical
and economic feasibility and other relevant planning considerations. Despite
pre-application advice, green roofs have been omitted from the scheme and
while it is acknowledged that the use of photovoltaic panels to the roof may
limit the options for green roof provision, it is not considered that this point
alone is sufficient to omit the requirement. In this regard, it is considered that
further feasibility testing — secured via condition — will be necessary to ensure
that the development maximises the biodiversity and sustainable drainage
benefits in accordance with the DMD and Biodiversity Action Plan (BAP).

Biodiversity

An ecological report has been submitted with the application. The report
indicates that no protected species will be affected by the development
proposals and contains a number of recommendations to enhance
biodiversity in the surrounding area. Several trees are also scheduled to be
lost as a result of works. Whilst there are no objections from the Tree Officer
in relation to the removal of the trees, all developments are required to
enhance the biodiversity of a site and its surround and a condition to secure



6.6.16

6.6.17

6.6.18

6.7

6.7.1

6.7.3

6.7.4

6.8

Page 132

such enhancements will be levied. Consistent with the position of Officers in
relation to the grass verges, the Tree Officer welcomes their retention and
would suggest an enhanced landscaping strategy be extended to these
areas. This may feature as part of a Unilateral Undertaking between the
parties, but is currently in the process of discussion and will be reported as a
late item.

Flood Risk/Sustainable Urban Drainage

The subject site is not within a Flood Zone and hence has a low annual
probability of flooding. In accordance with Policies DMD 59, 60, 61 and 62
the adequate management of surface water-run-off is a key consideration in
the detailed specification of the scheme. To comply with relevant Policy a
condition to secure Sustainable Dranage Systems will be levied to ensure
compliance with the predicted 1 in 1 and 1 in 100 year (allowing for climate
change) and over a 6 hour period. At the time of writing no comments had
been received fro the Council's SUDS Team. This will be reported as a late
item.

Pollution & Air Quality

Core Policy 32 of the Core Strategy and Policy 7.14 of the London Plan seek
to ensure that development proposals should achieve reductions in pollutant
emissions and minimise public exposure to air pollution.

In consultation with Environmental Health no objections have been raised
subject to relevant conditions relating to site contamination and demolition.

S106 Contributions
The application has been submitted on behalf of the Council and relevant
requirements governed by the s106 SPG shall be secured via Unilaterial

Undertaking including but not limited to:

a. Affordable housing provision
b. Education contributions

Affordable Housing

Policy CP3 of the Core Strategy states that ‘[sjome form of contribution
towards affordable housing will be expected on all new housing sites...For
developments of less than ten dwellings, the Council will seek to achieve a
financial contribution to deliver off-site affordable housing based on a
Borough-wide target of 20%.” This is reiterated in Policy DMD2 of the
Development Management Document.

As submitted, the scheme seeks to deliver the 6 market units. A submitted
valuation report from the applicant indicates that £250,601.32 is payable for
affordable housing with a further £36,782.50 payable in education
contributions. The valuation of the resale value of the units is considered to
be realistic given current market conditions and the contributions will be
secured by a Unilateral Undertaking.

Community Infrastructure Levy



6.8.1

6.8.2

6.8.3

7.1

8.1

8.2

8.3

Page 133

As of the April 2010, legislation in the form of CIL Regulations 2010 (as
amended) came into force which would allow ‘charging authorities’ in England
and Wales to apportion a levy on net additional floorspace for certain types of
qualifying development to enable the funding of a wide range of infrastructure
that is needed as a result of development. Since April 2012 the Mayor of
London has been charging CIL in Enfield at the rate of £20 per sgm.

The development will result in 513 sg.m of new floor area equating to a total
of £12,514.44 is payable (as index adjusted).

Enfield’s CIL was formally adopted and came into force as of 1% April 2016.
The development will result in 513 sq.m of new floor area equating to a total
of £37,543.32 is payable (as index adjusted).

Conclusion

The subject development utilises existing and underutilised brownfield sites.
The quantum, mix and tenure of the development taking into account all
relevant considerations is considered to be appropriate to the site and
following revisions responds positively to established character and
appearance of the surrounding area as well as securing the delivery of
housing to the area. In this regard, members are being asked in considering
the officer recommendation to grant planning permission, to also grant
delegated powers to officers to agree the final wording for the conditions
deemed necessary to render the scheme acceptable in planning terms.

Recommendation

That planning permission be to be granted in accordance with
Regulation 3/4 of the Town and Country Planning General Regulations
1992 subject to conditions

That officers be granted delegated authority to finalise the precise
wording of the conditions to cover the issues identified within the report
and summarised below.

Conditions in summary

C60 — Approved Plans

CO7 — Details of Materials

C09 — Details of Hard Surfacing

C10 — Details of Levels

C11 — Details of Enclosure

C13 — Details of Loading/Unloading/Turning Facilities

C16 — Private Vehicles

C19 — Details of Refuse Storage & Recycling Facilities

C21 — Construction Servicing Area

10. C22 — Details of Const. Vehicle Wheel Cleaning

11. C25 — No additional Fenestration

12. C41 — Details of External Lighting

13. C59 — Cycle parking spaces The development shall not commence until
details of the siting, number and design of covered cycle parking spaces
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The facilities shall be provided in accordance with the approved

©CoNoU~®WNE



14.
15.
16.
17.

18.

19.

Page 134

details prior to occupation of any part of the development and shall
thereafter be permanently retained for cycle parking.

Reason: To ensure the provision of cycle parking in line with the Council's
adopted standards.

RSC3 — Servicing Management Plan

RSC4 — Submission and compliance with construction logistics plan
RSC17 — Restriction of PD

No works or development shall take place until full details of both hard
and soft landscape proposals have been submitted to and approved by
the Local Planning Authority. The landscape details shall include:

e Planting plans

e Written specifications (including cultivation and other operations
associated with plant and grass establishment)

e Schedules of plants and trees, to include native and wildlife friendly
species and large canopy trees in appropriate locations (noting
species, planting sizes and proposed numbers / densities)

o Full details of tree pits including depths, substrates and irrigation
systems

e The location of underground services in relation to new planting

e Implementation timetables.

e Biodiversity enhancements with relevant ecological (value)
assessment to show a net gain in the ecological value of the site in
accordance with the Biodiversity Action Plan

e Specifications for fencing demonstrating how hedgehogs and other
wildlife will be able to travel across the site (e.g. gaps in appropriate
places at the bottom of the fences)

Reason: To ensure the provision of amenity, and biodiversity
enhancements, to afforded by appropriate landscape design, and to
increase resilience to the adverse impacts of climate change the in line
with Core Strategy policies CP36 and Policies 5.1 — 5.3 in the London
Plan.

All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with
the approved details and to a reasonable standard in accordance with the
relevant recommendations of appropriate British Standards or other
recognised Codes of Good Practice. The works shall be carried out prior
to the occupation of any part of the development or in accordance with the
timetable agreed with the Local Planning Authority. Any trees or plants
that, within a period of five years after planting, are removed, die or
become, in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority, seriously damaged
or defective, shall be replaced as soon as is reasonably practicable with
others of species, size and number as originally approved, unless the
Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

Reason: To ensure the provision, establishment and maintenance of a
reasonable standard of landscape in accordance with the approved
designs.

No demolition, construction or maintenance activities audible at the site
boundary of any residential dwelling shall be undertaken outside the hours
of 08.00 to 18.00 Monday to Friday and 08.00 to 13.00 Saturday or at any



20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

Page 135

time on Sundays and bank or public holidays without the written approval
of the Local Planning Authority, unless the works have been approved in
advance under section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act 1974.

Reason: To minimise noise disturbance.

No impact piling shall take place without the prior written approval of the
Local Planning Authority and shall only take place in accordance with the
terms of any such approval.

Reason: To minimise noise disturbance.

Deliveries of construction and demolition materials to and from the site by
road shall take place between 08:00 — 18:00 Monday to Friday & 08:00 -
13:00 on Saturday and at no other time except with the prior written
approval of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To minimise noise disturbance.

No development shall take place until Construction Management Plan,
written in accordance with the ‘London Best Practice Guidance: The control
of dust and emissions from construction and demolition’ or relevant
replacement detailing how dust and emissions will be managed during
demolition and construction work shall be submitted to the local planning
authority for approval. Once approved the Construction Management Plan
shall be fully implemented for the duration of any demolition and
construction works.

Reason: To minimise the impact of the development upon air quality.

The development shall not commence until a scheme to deal with the
contamination of the site including an investigation and assessment of the
extent of contamination and the measure to be taken to avoid risk to
health and the environment has been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. Remediation shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved scheme and the Local Planning Authority
provided with a written warranty by the appointed specialist to confirm
implementation prior to the commencement of development.

Reason: To avoid risk to public health and the environment.

A landscape management plan, including long term design objectives,
management responsibilities and maintenance schedules for all
landscape areas, other than small, privately owned, domestic gardens,
shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior
to the occupation of the development or any phase of the development,
whichever is the sooner, for its permitted use. The landscape
management plan shall be carried out as approved.

Reason: To provide for the maintenance of retained and any new planting
in the interests of preserving or enhancing visual amenity.

Following practical completion details of the internal consumption of
potable water have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. Submitted details will demonstrate reduced



26.

27.

28.

Page 136

water consumption through the use of water efficient fittings, appliances
and recycling systems to show consumption equal to or less than 105
litres per person per day for the residential uses.

The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the
details so approved and maintained as such thereafter.

Reason: To promote water conservation and efficiency measures in all
new developments and where possible in the retrofitting of existing stock
in accordance with Policy CP21 of the Core Strategy, Policy 5.15 of the
London Plan.

The development shall not commence until details of a rainwater recycling
system have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The details submitted shall also demonstrate the
maximum level of recycled water that can feasibly be provided to the
development.

The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the
details so approved and maintained as such thereafter.

Reason: To promote water conservation and efficiency measures in all
new developments and where possible in the retrofitting of existing stock
in accordance with Policy CP21 of the emerging Core Strategy, Policy
5.15 of the London Plan.

The development shall not commence until details of surface drainage
works have been submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The details shall be based on an assessment of the potential
for disposing of surface water by means of a sustainable drainage system
in accordance with the principles as set out in the Technical Guidance to
the National Planning Policy Framework and shall be designedtoa 1 in 1
and 1 in 100 year storm event allowing for climate change. The drainage
system shall be installed/operational prior to the first occupation and a
continuing management and maintenance plan put in place to ensure its
continued function over the lifetime of the development.

The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the
details so approved and maintained as such thereafter.

Reason: To ensure the sustainable management of water, minimise flood
risk and to minimise discharge of surface water outside of the curtilage of
the property in accordance with Policy CP28 of the Core Strategy, DMD61
of the Development Management Document, Policies 5.12 & 5.13 of the
London Plan and the NPPF..

Reason: To ensure the sustainable management of water, minimise flood
risk and to minimise discharge of surface water outside of the curtilage of
the property in accordance with Policy CP28 of the Core Strategy, Policies
5.12 & 5.13 of the London Plan and the NPPF.

All areas of hedges, scrub or similar vegetation where birds may nest
which are to be removed as part of the development, are to be cleared
outside the bird-nesting season (March - August inclusive) or if clearance
during the bird-nesting season cannot reasonably be avoided, a suitably



29.

30.

31.

32.

Page 137

qualified ecologist will check the areas to be removed immediately prior to
clearance and advise whether nesting birds are present. If active nests
are recorded, no vegetation clearance or other works that may disturb
active nests shall proceed until all young have fledged the nest.

Reason: To ensure that wildlife is not adversely impacted by the
proposed development in accordance with national wildlife legislation and
in line with CP36 of the Core Strategy. Nesting birds are protected under
the Wildlife and Countryside Act, 1981 (as amended).

No development hereby permitted shall commence until details of
biodiversity enhancements, to include 6 bird and 6 bat bricks/tubes/tiles
designed and incorporated into the materials of the new buildings, has
been submitted and approved in writing by the council.

Reason: To minimise the impact of the development on the ecological
value of the area and to ensure the development provides the maximum
possible provision towards the creation of habitats and valuable areas for
biodiversity in accordance with Policy CP36 of the Core Strategy, the
Biodiversity Action Plan and Policy 7.19 of the London Plan.

The development shall not commence until a feasibility study for the
provision of green/brown roof(s) shall be submitted and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The green/brown roof shall not be used for any recreational purpose and
access shall only be for the purposes of the maintenance and repair or
means of emergency escape. Details shall include full ongoing
management plan and maintenance strategy/schedule for the
green/brown roof to be approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the
details so approved and maintained as such thereafter.

Reason: To minimise the impact of the development on the ecological
value of the area and to ensure the development provides the maximum
possible provision towards the creation of habitats and valuable areas for
biodiversity in accordance with Policy CP36 of the Core Strategy, the
Biodiveristy Action Plan and Policies 5.11 & 7.19 of the London Plan.

Following the practical completion of works a final Energy Performance
Certificate with associated Building Regulations Compliance Report shall
be submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Where applicable, a Display Energy Certificate shall be submitted within
18 months following first occupation.

Reason: In the interest of sustainable development and to ensure that the
Local Planning Authority may be satisfied that CO, emission reduction
targets are met in accordance with Policy CP20 of the Core Strategy,
Policies 5.2, 5.3, 5.7 & 5.9 of the London Plan 2011 and the NPPF.

The development shall provide for no less than a 19% reduction on the
total CO, emissions arising from the operation of a development and its



33.

34.

Page 138

services over Part L of Building Regs 2013 as stated in the accompanying
energy statement.

The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the
energy statement so approved and maintained as such thereafter.

Reason: In the interest of sustainable development and to ensure that the
Local Planning Authority may be satisfied that CO, emission reduction
targets are met in accordance with Policy CP20 of the Core Strategy,
Policies 5.2, 5.3, 5.7 & 5.9 of the London Plan 2011 and the NPPF.

The renewable energy technologies (photovoltaics), shall be installed and
operational prior to the first occupation of the development. The
development shall not commence until details of the renewable energy
technologies shall be submitted and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The details shall include:

a. The resulting scheme, together with any flue/stack details,
machinery/apparatus location, specification and operational details;

b. A management plan and maintenance strategy/schedule for the
operation of the technologies;

c. (if applicable) A servicing plan including times, location, frequency,
method (and any other details the Local Planning Authority deems
necessary); and,

Should, following further assessment, the approved renewable energy
option be found to be no-longer suitable:

d. A revised scheme of renewable energy provision, which shall provide
for no less than 20% onsite CO, reduction, shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to any
superstructure works commencing on site, the details shall also

include a response to sub-points a)toc) above. The final agreed

scheme shall be installed and operation prior to the first occupation of
the development.

The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the
details so approved and shall be maintained as such thereafter.

Reason: In the interest of sustainable development and to ensure that the
Local Planning Authority may be satisfied that CO, emission reduction
targets by renewable energy are met in accordance with Policy CP20 of
the Core Strategy, Policies 5.2, 5.3, 5.7 & 5.9 of the London Plan 2011
and the NPPF.

The development shall not commence until a Green Procurement Plan
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The Green Procurement Plan shall demonstrate how the
procurement of materials for the development will promote sustainability,
including by use of low impact, locally and/or sustainably sourced, reused
and recycled materials through compliance with the requirements of
MAT1, MAT2 and MAT3 of the Code for Sustainable Homes and/or
relevant BREEAM standard. The Plan must also include strategies to
secure local procurement and employment opportunities. Wherever



35.

36.

37.

Page 139

possible, this should include targets and a process for the implementation
of this plan through the development process.

The development shall be constructed and procurement plan
implemented strictly in accordance with the Green Procurement Plan so
approved.

REASON: To ensure sustainable procurement of materials which
minimises the negative environmental impacts of construction in
accordance with Policy CP22 and CP23 of the Core Strategy and Policy
5.3 of the London Plan.

The development shall not commence until an undertaking to meet with
best practice under the Considerate Constructors Scheme and achieve
formal certification has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the implementation of the development does not
adversely impact on the surrounding area and to minimise disruption to
neighbouring properties.

The development shall not commence until a Site Waste Management
Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The plan should include as a minimum:

a. Target benchmarks for resource efficiency set in accordance with best
practice

b. Procedures and commitments to minimize non-hazardous construction

waste at design stage. Specify waste minimisation actions relating to

at least 3 waste groups and support them by appropriate monitoring of

waste

Procedures for minimising hazardous waste

Monitoring, measuring and reporting of hazardous and non-hazardous

site waste production according to the defined waste groups

(according to the waste streams generated by the scope of the works)

e. Procedures and commitments to sort and divert waste from landfill in
accordance with the waste hierarchy (reduce; reuse; recycle; recover)
according to the defined waste groups

oo

In addition no less than 85% by weight or by volume of non-hazardous
construction, excavation and demolition waste generated by the
development has been diverted from landfill

Reason: To maximise the amount of waste diverted from landfill
consistent with the waste hierarchy and strategic targets set by Policies
5.17, 5.18, 5.19, 5.20 of the London Plan and the draft North London
Waste Plan.

That development shall not commence until a construction methodology
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The construction methodology shall contain:

a. a photographic condition survey of the roads, footways and verges
leading to the site;



38.

39.

Page 140

b. details of construction access and associated traffic management to
the site;

c. arrangements for the loading, unloading and turning of delivery,
construction and service vehicles clear of the highway;

d. arrangements for the parking of contractors vehicles;

e. arrangements for wheel cleaning;

f. arrangements for the storage of materials;

g. hours of work;

h. A construction management plan written in accordance with the

‘London Best Practice Guidance: The control of dust and emission
from construction and demolition’ or relevant replacement.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
construction methodology unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the implementation of the development does not lead
to damage to the existing highway and to minimise disruption to
neighbouring properties and the environment.

Development shall not commence until and Employment and Skills
Strategy to accord with the provisions of the s106 SPD has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The development shall be implemented in accordance with the strategy
and verification of compliance with the approved details shall be submitted
for approval prior to first occupation.

Reason: To accord with the s106 SPD and secure local employment and
training opportunities.

C51A Time Limited Permission



PoseR S4B 0 TRy 19908 14 b

v0d

hed dvd

on shwea

ONINNYId

suas

Wi Tws

T %® | NOWVAIT3 =T 3US

Tw e

NOGNOT
Qavod MOLSavd
e

(T34N3 40 HONOHOB

»»»»»»

ZEBXI2M NOONCT PRy w80z lup) €44

SLOFLIHDONYY

¥3guve ¥aLad

xxxx

Page 141

VG 40 3! L8
100 srae

Mg s s

s
SISSTN 8 CEVAH O CHOIC SO 909 404

CNVId A

m*:»lﬁﬁ’E
—1
xoaﬁﬁ’E
1

% g6

e — B
nlallia ETET
— HHT R HEN
- Ol H
1] ] 1 A= H
NOILYA3T3 INO¥4 ¢ 3LIS -av0y gohm%\,u ,a—ﬂu
- Hdl= H]




Page 142

J

=======

SITE 3: ELEVATION 1 & 2
e — e
PLANNING



PONSOR QUBY 1D TR 19908 P4 bIOZ

£0d 01¢ d avd DNYId A
- oo
ONINNYId
e 4] m— 120
W Wi L0r— 110

T %® | NOWVAFT3 -} 3US
Tw e

NOGNOT

Qavod MOLSavd

e

i (e
NOIIVAZT3 INOH } 3115 \av0s MOLSAvd\ 20/

QT3N3 40 HONI

SLOFLIHDONYY
¥3guve ¥aLad
0 [ ]
NG 803 3T L YRS 10
UG 404 3081 L0 STaTE 204

SEREEE -

Page 143

— Hlj= HlI




Page 144

ooy Bl 1 DI 9906 114 9107 @

G0d 060 d~avd
ININNYTd
mew

1980071795

NV1d 3LS 0350d0¥d

T o

NOONO1T
Qv0d MOLSQvd
o084

13N 40 HONOWOE
b

SLOTLIHONY

Z80 X191 NOGNCT PO weaio DI 621

u3sdvaE waLad

xxxxx

10 LOIKDY L 10 LS O TRKEHD 3 1SN SOSIENI T

uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu e

HOLTWHITE'S HILL

€ 31IS

s 00 E
047 @ @ @ _W_ /\
kil et | || gn A fp A Tu e S
2/1 E,. e .
_u g @ﬂw Ag: ﬁ
v ALIS
[ —
8¢€
'A 2l
avoyd MoLsavd o1
1 3J1IS
) [ [ [ [T o
= =
—] _M_Qp -
SRR -
.
— 8e
\T\ 01 gl




145

=

b 1 [ ]| ) sk 1

PADSTOW ROAD

&

KEY

HNEEEEEEE R
EEEEEEE

eV o oescaPnon

PETER BARBER
ARCHITECTS

178 Kings Grass Road LONDON WE1X 82
& ifoQ@psiesarsearghiscis com.
1020 7833 4489

aan
BOROUGH OF ENFIELD
PROECT

PADSTOW ROAD
LONDON

DRANNG TILE

SITE 1: GROUND FLOOR GA

e W Al

smns,
PLANNING

oG N e

PAD_P_100 P09

T ETR Poer Bt s o s v




| L0l d " avd

ONINNY1d
suns

sy oot s

YO ¥0074 ONNO¥D T 3LIS
gggggg

NOONOT

Qv¥0y MOLSAvd

L3044

13N 40 HONOWoE
i

‘oov sez 02051
woo S eq R medDopy 8
700 X101 NOGNO' oo eei e0uD) €21

S103LIHOHY

]
]
]

\ ASJJ

Page 146
:ﬂw @
3\ B
B3t
7]

.

@
M_WkLDLJﬂ.l

avod MOoLsavd




PADSTOW ROAD

]

Page 147

Il -
It

JW -
EEE

-

-

PETER BARBER
ARCHITECTS

173 Kings Graas Road LONDON WE1X 682

= info@peterbarerarhiioois com

£:020 7833 4499

e
BOROUGH OF ENFIELD
PRI

PADSTOW ROAD
LONDON

DRANG TILE

SITE 3: GROUND FLOOR GA

oz R
PLANNING
PAD_P_102 P06

T ETE Feler Borter e o g e



[ e O]

03 \PADSTOW ROAD: SITE 1 REAR ELEVATION
§§:§

Page 148

(0A"\PADSTOW ROAD: SITE 1 SIDE ELEVATION

PADSTOW ROAD: SITE 1 SIDE ELEVATION
)

_l |_ KEY PLAN

04 05

RAFT SUE FOR REVEN

o foR
DRAFT SLE FOR REVEN

172 Kinga Grose Road LONDON WG1X 882
o Inoosisrotrberarchiioca com

e
BOROUGH OF ENFIELD
PROUECT

PADSTOW ROAD
LONDON

oG e

SITE 1: ELEVATION 3, 4 & 5

o 100 A
PLANNING
PAD_P_311 P07




Page 149

1¢0

<0
—

@e L . \
é g \\C:; , £
i S
2 Lo
=
5
4
&
N
o
R
m
2
1
1
!
g 4 IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII|||||
: H
H H NI
H g
H H
1
!

60 IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII|||||
S NI
g8

g

g 1

5 !

2

N !

N

(%23

g (I
m

£

0

——18
gEEQ:«
g
iz

I 1o

NYld AX

.

o s

ONINNY1d

s

£18 4 avd
B

pounta: SUBL 0 R 206 4 Yz @

£l

¥0d

VB EDEmE| zes V(B 2 g HED
SE|2283%| 838 m|c = HELS
HEELE] H N HE
HEER-RE - = tee
MAl2g g m o 2E8
- Ed Ei' o 52 z EEH
B | 3 { B2
g g = I < i
= 5 o E>>Z ® a'§
S = o >m g
= = Eéﬂw & ER
< E g2 on EH
- § == 2 3
& s - H
i En = :
9 ° H

H

“ |glzzna g

HEEER] v




PUaq BupINg

puiaa Buiping

Pag

e 150

oora (e

NOILVA313 34IS € 31IS ‘av0d MOLSavd\ 50

i E
g
=
&
a3
-
S
z
ar 15
=4 — 1R
S
&
80 g|lo & W E|L UEWDE| mas v |3 g z slse
ZICIE H1|22828 8 o) go 3 S
Sz 8 HERRE AR A £ M i
I0°E | «dilgg £ |84 - e i
L o Y 52 z =TT 552
Ho 5] =z o w% | o5
7= = o I L
glon 3 s H > & sl 32
H 5 z SE ny ]
M = 5 E‘x',,w . 82
E o g §§0m & :
i - § = e b
H = s = = g
o o o Tl H
o & 3
= g
s B o |g 7
53 : L = B
= g HEEEEN]




Page 151

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date : 26™ April 2016

Report of
Assistant Director, Planning,
Highways & Transportation

Contact Officer:
Andy Higham
Sharon Davidson
Mr Patrick Brennan

Ward:
Chase

Ref: 15/05117/FUL

Category: Full Application

LOCATION: Conservative Club, 278 Baker Street, Enfield, EN1 3LD

PROPOSAL: Replacement telecommunications monopole to a maximum height of 15.20m
(including 6 antennae) with 1 equipment cabinets at base.

Applicant Name & Address:
Vodafone Limited And CTIL
The Connection

Newbury

Berksire

UK

RG14 2FN

Elanor Jacques
Phoenix House
Pryford Road
West Byfleet
Surrey

UK

KT14 6RA

Agent Name & Address:

RECOMMENDATION: Itis recommended that the application is approved subject to

conditions.

Note for Members: Although an application of this nature would normally be determined
under delegated powers the application is reported to Planning Committee at the request of
Councillor Vicki Pite, due to public objection.




Page 152

North

®

Scale 1:1250

y

of Ordnance Surve
on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and

Reproduced by permission

ed.
number 100019820

right 2013. All Rights Reservi

Survey License

Ordnance

database

Ref: 15/05117/FUL LOCATION: Conservative Club, 278 Baker Street, Enfield, EN1 3LD

ENF!ELI?&
Council




11

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

3.1

4.1

41.1

4.1.2

4.2

42.1

Page 153

Site and Surroundings

The subject site is on the west side Baker Street and features a variety of buildings
ranging from 1-2 storeys in height which are occupied by the North Enfield
Conservative Club. This proposal relates to the modern two-storey addition to the
original building towards the rear of the site.

The character of the surrounding area is mixed, with a car dealership located directly
to the south and flatted developments to the north. The surrounding area is
otherwise predominantly residential in character.

The subject site is not within a Conservation Area, however, the main building
heralds from circa 18th Century and is a Locally Listed Building.

Proposal

The application seeks planning permission for replacement of a telecommunications
monopole on the southern elevation of the existing Conservative Club to a maximum
height of 15.20m (including 6 antennae) with 1 equipment cabinet at the base.

In comparison with the existing telecommunications monopole, the proposal would
be almost identical, however would be 1.35m taller than the existing structure which
has a height of 13.85m.

Relevant Planning Decisions

The following planning history is considered to be relevant:

Reference Proposal Decision Date

PA/10/0025 | Installation of a Details / Prior | 23 September 2010
telecommunications monopole | Approval not
to a maximum height of required

13.85m with antennas and
cabinets attached to south
elevation from first floor level

Consultations

Statutory and non-statutory consultees
External

None

Internal

None.

Public response

Letters were sent to 36 adjoining and surrounding properties and in response five (5)
objections were received. The grounds of objection can be summarised as follows:

e Too close to residential buildings.




4.2.2

423

4.3

431

6.1

6.2

Page 154

Height.

Visual impact.

Health impacts.

Impact on character.

Impact on surrounding property value.

It is noted that concerns relating to the impact of the proposal on the value of
surrounding properties is not a material planning consideration and cannot be
considered as part of the assessment of this application.

The remaining matters listed above are addressed in the assessment section of this
report.

Councillor involvement
This application has been called-in to Committee by Clir Pite.

Relevant Policies

London Plan

Policy 4.1 Encouraging a connected economy

Policy 7.4 Local character

Policy 7.6 Architecture

Core Strateqgy

Policy 30 Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open

environment

Development Management Document

DMD 37 Achieving high quality and design-led development
DMD 44 Conserving and enhancing heritage assets

Other Relevant Policy Considerations

National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Policy Guidance

Analysis

The proposal consists of the replacement of an existing telecommunications
monopole on the southern elevation of the existing Conservative Club to a maximum
height of 15.20m (including 6 antennae) with an associated equipment cabinet at the
base. The proposal is required to provide new and enhanced telecommunications
coverage within Enfield.

The proposal would be largely identical to the existing structure, however would be
1.35m taller than the existing monopole, which has a maximum height of 13.85m.



6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

Page 155

It should be noted that permitted development regulations allow for the construction
of telecommunications apparatus up to a height of 15m above ground level without
the need for planning permission. The current proposal would therefore be only
200mm higher than what could be constructed under permitted development (subject
to prior approval).

Having regard to the nature of the proposal and applicable planning policy, the key
considerations in the assessment of this application relate to:

e Impact on the character of the surrounding area; and
¢ Impact on neighbours’ amenity.

An assessment in relation to each is provided below.

Impact on the character of the surrounding area

The character of the site’s immediate surrounds is mixed and features both
commercial and residential buildings in a variety of forms.

The proposed monopole would be located on the southern elevation of the two-
storey extension to the original building, and would be set back significantly from the
highway. The adjoining property to the south is occupied by a car dealership with a
large hardstand area at the front used for the display of vehicles, and therefore the
southern elevation is somewhat exposed to the highway.

While it is acknowledged that the proposed mast will be visible from the public
highway and, to a lesser extent, from other surrounding public vantage points due to
its projection above the ridge of the roof, the proposal would be significantly recessed
from the public highway and the majority of the structure and associated cabinets
would remain below the ridgeline and largely screened from view by existing built
form.

It is considered that any impacts on the appearance of the building associated with
an additional 1.35m in height would be negligible and would not cause any
discernible adverse impacts on the character of the surrounding area when
compared with the existing structure.

Policy DMD 44 also requires consideration of the impact of the proposal on the
locally listed building. In this regard, it is noted that the structure would be erected in
the same location on the modern addition to the building as the existing monopole,
and as noted would be only marginally taller, having a minimal additional impact on
the heritage asset. It is, therefore, considered that the proposal would not materially
impact the special architectural and historic interest of the original building.

Impact on the neighbours’ amenity

The primary amenity considerations with respect to this proposal relate to the
potential visual impact of the proposed structure.

However, it is noted that with telecommunications applications, residents are often
also understandably concerned with the potential health impacts of such structures,
and indeed, a number of objections have identified this as a concern.



6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

6.17

6.18

7.1

Page 156

While these concerns are acknowledged, the impacts of such proposals are
controlled under separate legislation and it is beyond the role of the Council to further
consider concerns relating to health impacts.

That said, the NPPF (Para 45) requires that such proposals be supported by
evidence that, among other things, the cumulative exposure will not exceed the
guidelines of the International Council on Non-lonizing Radiation Protection
(ICNIRP). The applicant has provided a declaration that the proposed mast meets
with these guidelines.

The application material also includes a statement which addresses the potential
health impacts as follows:

‘We recognise that the growth in mobile technology has led, in some cases, to public
concern about perceived health effects of mobile technology and development, in
particular about siting masts close to local communities. Quite naturally, the public
seeks reassurance that masts are not in any way harmful or dangerous.

We are committed to providing the latest independent peer-reviewed research
findings, information, advice and guidance from national and international agencies
of radiofrequency (RF) electromagnetic fields.

Vodafone and Telefonica ensure that our radio base stations are design, built and
operated so that the public are not exposed to radio frequency fields above the
guidelines set by the International Commission on Non-lonising Radiation Protection
(ICNIRP). In fact, radio base stations operate at low power and emit low levels of
radiofrequency fields, typically hundreds of thousands of times lower than the
ICNIRP general public guidelines’.

Notwithstanding the above, the perception of harm can be a material consideration in
the assessment of such applications.

In this regard, it is considered that given the separation of the proposed mast of at
least 35m to the boundary with the nearest residential property, and that the proposal
would only be marginally taller than an existing similar structure, the proposal would
not result an increase in amenity impacts to surrounding properties. As previously
noted, it is considered that any visual impacts as a result of an increase in the height
of the structure by 1.35m are considered negligible and would not give rise to any
additional adverse amenity impacts which would have a material impact.

With respect to other material considerations, given the nature of the proposal, there
would be no impacts on neighbouring amenity with respect to overlooking or privacy,
and the proposal would not cause any additional shadows which would be
considered to have a material impact.

Conclusion and Recommendation

Having regard to the above assessment, it is recommended that the application is
approved subject to the following conditions:

C60 Approved Plans
Non-Std Removal of structure after no longer required
C51 Time Limited Permission

Informative



Page 157

The applicant is reminded that the proposed mast, base station and associated
equipment must fully comply with the guidelines set by the International Commission
on Non-lonising Radiation Protection (ICNIRP).



Iﬁm:_:‘-; .
&l

Nz

Vs @
1

! O

/]

7~ & T[]

o\
SIS IS =T S




SIL0T0 EL SLLOT0 L
v meg DD weg Aveng
— [ 000
) 85 g pEuibug g pekanng
00z
Jaquiny Bumelq |
ONINNYTd
___:onss|jo asoding |
NId WS ONULSDE
soqy) Bupaig
i UE]
NOONOT
a3N3
13341 438 BLT
s|ielaq 198ju0) / SS2IppY NS
€6CLL 2060Y0 8LEG¥L
ET EETH p[TE]
ON a1 1122
— | @m0 INIVANISNDD QT3N3 HINON
€0 3uien 180
11D

g3izzz sovilo) yy+ 3 ZALEZZ GOrIC) vhe TEL
20131 - SHIHSHILSIOET - AT TAINIH - AZAT0M

Liiplolije
._._wh\m.__ )

Y —

Vg |HO| A8 NOLLYDLAaON A3y

SIUITAMIN NI SNOISNIWId TV

001:L — €V ly IWOS TYNIOIO

[
00001

[ STro0 | Y

SYNNIINY OL S§S3DIV ¥IHIId AMMIHD -
SA3M 3LNS INOIWIOA —
'S3LON

on [ a3uinD3y NOISSIONOD

06961 ‘N +g6Css 3 |¥ON

Uﬂ!ﬂuxsgmmmg:.iz_ngoﬁidﬂ

0008 0 0095 NYId 3LS ONILSIX3

ONIONVLSHN LIHINOD/ HIHE

§ o )
1 NO I3NIEYD HILIN 431 ONILSINE

ONGTIY S
Q3ISINVATYS. NIHLIM T
ONIGTING <N S35 LINIEWD H3LIN
WOH3 378¥D NIYH-8NS ONILSIX3

ININING3 SNMCD2
iy QILNNOW TIYM ONILSIXS

1INIBYD LNIWEIND3 OL L3NIEVD
H3LIN WOHEd NIVIW-BNS Avdl
EvD IQIM Wwoal 9NISIK3

ININIONYHEY
WHOMTIILS NO JUNSOIINT
ASH 4A/43L ‘ONt ONLLSIX3

ININEONYHEY FHOMTIILS NO SIINTOK
X134 807 4A/43U0N 9 ONUSIK

ANOALVId T33LS OING Q34 ONY TTVM F18v0
SNITTINE OL O3XI4 "SYNNILNY JA/43L "ONE w2
'NWMIOD OC8 H3LNT DMIMIINIONI NOSNIHILNH

Q3ldvay HOH Wyd'Dl INDAVA0A ONISIX3

woo 0+

NOILYAZT3 3LS

/

ANDOTYE

Tem HHEE DNILSIXT

“TIATT J00H HIMDT
0L SS320% MOTIV OL
§30aYT SS300V ONILSIXI

1oy we'z+ T3AT
400M 1¥14 ONISIX3
S

SNITIYHONYH
wiugoL L ONUSIXS

#4000 3dvDs3
Fui4 ONILSIXT

Sd31S 3dv053
3414 ONILSING

Tivm. ADIHE
HOIH Wupor L

ONLLSIX3

S3HOLS ONUSIK3

INTNIONVEEY HEOMTIALS NO
[3NIEYD ININGINO3

E[EEE
INILSIXE

A/ 431 "ONL




ummwmmummmmmmm

N.G.R]

E: 532984 N: 197690

CONCESSION REQUIRED

025775 |

BY |CH| DATE

Gall ifq\rdT rys

Fl
fg

VOLVEY - HINCKLE
Tel' »44 (0)1 255 222702 Fax +

pt.

CTIL
Cell Name

NORTH ENFIELD CONSERVATIVE CLUB

Cell ID No

2
5 & e
N
(']
o
- |5[E
c
i 8 [S|=2
sg%g
= 2
O o~
e If
o
§ 2 [
-+

PLANNING

PROPOSED SITE PLAN

201

Dt
02.07.15

Al

Checkod:
uF

02.07.15

'Dﬂl

Drmwr

!F_TM—RTJ aa

[CAR PaRK |

EQUIPMENT CABIN

REMOVED AND R

EXISTING 1No.

STORES

EXISTING

1
& w g
& =47
T4 &p
st i
= E = diny
EEx ER
wads §F
< <0
Wem OG0

ON STEELWORK

ARRANGEMENT

TING 1No, TEF/VF Jsc
SURE

ENCLO

Exi

EXISTING FIRE

ESCAPE DOOR

TING 100mm WIDE CABLE
SUB—MAIN FRO!

)(I
TRAY
CABINET TO EQUIPME

FLAT ROOF

LEVEL +2.8m AGL

~

EXISTING

1z
i

NT

EXISTING WALL MOUNTED Alf
JIPMEN

COOLING Eqt

g

{/
{7
e

“ay,
Vo %
/'fl '/'ﬂ'?{'z’?

INCDY
/";53}"'1'%"#/:
_',?! Wy,
TR
Tttt
08y N o

ol

Y

Gy
0, LRl il
L a0, 7

PROPOSED CHERRY

PICKER LOCATION

Wi 00,
‘7 *‘{l’: 5;,,,’ L
iy
o el
Ve
figf’?;’ 07 Wt
9
b,
4 f';"'g’?g#,

0y
7

/]

MAIN GROUND LEVEL
+0.00m

SITE ELEVATION

Whg 00

W,
i

7|
{f /.
i, 0?

o)
Wy,

DING
CALVAMISED

UP BUIL
TES ALONG

o

PROPOSED SITE PLAN

(1:100)

ALL DIMENSIONS IN MILLIMETRES

ORIGINAL SCALE AT A3 — 1:100

d ICNIRP guidelines.

ply with CTIL Beacon Standar
CTIL Beacon documents: SDNDOOS & SDN000S 'ICNIRP Compliance Summary’

The drawings com
Designed in accordance with




s g 190Ug B0

511070 _ g _
e R =]
£y 00

0ot

ONINNYd
2o 0 esoding |

NOUVAIT3 3US ONLISIXI
oL Bupaiq

SIE}BQ 19EIUGD ] SSAIPPY NS

£6CLL ¢060v0 BLESHI

ET J3L RE]

ON al 132

— [ 80 JNUYAYISNOD (T3IINT HIHON

1do SWwen (180

LD

Ll

=Y

ZTT SErLO) bre flolL
ATTHONH « AZA0M

BELIZT SEvii) pre @S
ArE 04T - IYHSYAUSS

Ki1plosije
._._wh\*.__ D

o[ A8
[ GIZ00 | 30 A

3va NOUYILAIO0N A3d
Y

IOhGIDy J3] pants|

‘S3I0N

o | a3uInb3y NOISSIONDD

069.61 N #862£S 3 |WON

FSIMHIHLO T3LON SSIINN W NI 3HY SNOISNIMO TV

SIYLINMUN NI SNOISNIWIG TV

0017k — €V Ly ITWOS TWNIDIHO

[
00001

SINBYD I3 ONINOINI
AR Q3SALN INIWIOYNYH 378¥D O3LNNON
4008 30N WWO0L A/ 431 ONUSKE

ANINIONVEEY MHEOMI3ILS N
JHNSOTONT 5P 447431 "ONL ONUSIX3

INTNIONVHYEY MHOMTIILS NO
SIINAOW B33 807 431 "OND INILSIX3

WHO4IYd T331S

DIND O3xid ONv TV JTEYS ONIOTINE 0L
3Xi4 'SYNNILNY 4A/43L "ONE M/D 'NANTDD
0SE HAUNr ONIMIINIONT NOSNIHILNH
G31dVOY HIIH W01 INCAVTON SNLLSET

g3l

T 1 I I I 1
0 000S

{001:4)

NOILVAT13 3LIS

W

19 W00+

(&

| ]

-

Tov wa'g+ 13A30

4004 1vid

ONILSIX3

NN

|||||||| T A

oY WOE'E+ TIATT 300N J00M

TOF WER'E|+ NANTOD SMILSIX3 40 400

oM WegLL+

Ty WEeZ L+

oy wegEl+

TIVM HOIHMB ONUSIX3

ONMIVHONYH
Wwop Ll ONILSIXI

INIWIONYHEY HE0MTILS
NO LINIBYD IN3W-IN03

H3IHEYH AA/43L ONL ONILSIX3

................ ey

SYNNILNY 447431 DNUSIX3 40 5/N
——————— e

SYNNILNY JA/43L ONILSIXT 40 /2

................... =

SYNNIINY 4A/431 ONIISIXI 40 dOL




L1y ] 4ra SILrIn A

v i = St i b Juewwing eoueydwod JNINDI, 6000NGS B 2000NAS P 8 711LLD Y souep uj paufy
= = S3YIINITIN NI SNOISNIWIG TV 00L:k — €V Ly WIS TYNIDINO "SOUIIBPING JNIND| PIEPUBIS UOSEag 11D Yim A|dwod sBuimelp ay ._.
=S| _Tswes it 5d puiailrg M T T T T T T 1
log 0000} 000S 0 0005
Joguiny Bupwa) |
ONINNYd
“ongs) jo esoding
NOLYAIT3 3US 3S0d
o oL Bupmesg
a1 IN3
NOANOT
Q13LN3
1334IS ¥VE BLT
S|IE}2Q JOBIUOD / SSBIPPY 9IS
£62LL 2060%0 BLEGHL (001:4)
) FEn §ITE) NOILYAFT13 31IS d3S0d40¥d
ON Q1 1122
= | 8N NLVAYISNOD QT3IANT HINON
9o SWEN (19D
== B =1
7o Wono+ = 5 ===
==
2 O I TIWM HIIEE ONILSIKI
3‘.. | - J |..—.u .—
¢ AIAID — INMIYEONYH
Wwooi | ONLSIXI
v
b ._.Eou____m .
S318YD 234 ONINOINI i
8 035N ININIDWNYW 318vD 0 100
| N TRl R ao L g @] : INGIGONVINY UONTZALS NO
ININFONVENY AHOMTIALS NO - Eﬁnﬂh&xﬁ@:‘&gﬁ
v |Hoas NOLLYOLACON = FUASOIING " USP-2A/43L ONL DNUSIXS HIWYVH AL 'ONL ONUSDG
[ STIo70 | ININIONVEEY MHOMTIALS NO vy 2 z-
MOVdIV1d SEY4ITY 'ON| 03S0d0Nd OL Q3LVO0T3d ~ o)
38 OL SIINGON X134 807 431 'ONG ONULSIX3 S s
WH041¥1d TIAUS OINO Q3xXid ONV TIvM 378v9
ONIOTING INUSIX3 0L 03XI4 NANMIOD %OVLS vnd E Sees
WHVI3 340dS38 HUM Q30¥1d34 ONV QIAONIY =3
38 OL NNMI0D 08 H3LdNr ONINIINIONI S
NOSNIHOLNH HOIH W90l Q3LdWOY ONLSKI / B
A ~
T WoRE 3A3T 30018 400
9V WOL'L L+ SYNNILINY 03S0d0¥d 40 s/n
B S L e e
79Y WoyZi+ SYNNIINY O3SOJO¥d 40 1/9
._Q,.__IE& €1+ SYNNILNY 03SOdO¥d 40 dOL
. -
._9__ Ecmn_+ SYNNALNY 0350d0¥d .._O wh\
._9__ Woe'vi+ SYNNILNY J3S0d0¥d 40 "m
||||| et e e == 10V WOO'S1+ SYNNAINY Q350dONd 40 0T~
30v¥9dN 3S0d0Hd ¥04 ALMIEYLNS IV WOZ'SL+ NWMI0D 0350d0dd 40 doL
B ALUDVAYD TVHNLONYIS ¥04 QINIFHD
38 OL YHOMTIILS 140ddNS WNNILNY ONUSHA
TIWMOIY NOUVREENDS
on | 03uino3s NOISSIONOD
069461 ‘N +86Z¢5 3 |YON
ISIMEIHLD QILON SSTTNN W N 3uY SNOISNINIG TV




x Page 163 15/ 05059/ PAT

«+» Waldon Telecom Ltd Telephone Email
Phoenix House 01932 411 011 eng@waldontelecom.com
Pyrford Road Facsimile Website
West Byfleet 01932 411 012 waldontelecom.com

Surrey KT14 6RA

Our ref: CTIL_145378

The Chief Planning Officer
London Borough of Enfield,
Civic Centre,

Silver Street,

Enfield

EN1 3XA

4\ \\ gjﬁc C{ BY RECORDED DELIVERY

3 November 201 5

Dear Sirs,

PROPOSED UPGRADE TO BASE STATION INSTALLATION AT CTIL_145378, TEF_40902,
VF_77293 AT NORTH ENFIELD CONSERVATIVE CLUB LIMITED, 278 BAKER STREET, ENFIELD
EN1 3LD (NGR: 532984,197690).

This is a full planning application, and notice in accordance with the electronic communications code
under the Telecommunications Act 1984 Schedule 2 as amended by the Communications Act 2003, for
permission for the development of:

The removal and replacement of a 10.64m wall mounted pole with a new 12m wall mounted pole
supporting 6no. antennas, the replacement of 1no. cabinet and development ancillary thereto at
North Enfield Conservative Club Limited, 278 Baker Street, Enfield EN1 3LD (NGR:
532984,197690).

Telefénica UK Limited has entered into an agreement with Vodafone Limited pursuant to which the two
companies plan to jointly operate and manage a single network grid across the UK. These
arrangements will be overseen by Cornerstone Telecommunications Infrastructure Ltd (CTIL) which is
a joint venture company owned by Telefénica UK Limited and Vodafone Limited.

This agreement allows both organisations to:

e pool their basic network infrastructure, while running two, independent, nationwide
networks

® maximise opportunities to consolidate the number of base stations

. significantly reduce the environmental impact of network development

This application is submitted for and on behalf of CTIL and Vodafone Ltd:

The application comprises:

Planning application form and certificates

Planning drawings - Ref. No's: 100A,200A,201A,300A,301A
Prescribed fee - £385 (Cheque made payable to the Local Authority)
General Background Information for Telecommunications Development
Site Specific Supplementary Information

Health and Mobile Phone Base Stations document

Design and Access Statement

ICNIRP declaration & clarification statement

“GTIL:CTHL:145378 Planning Full-Rianning-Application Letter{(England) v.5 (1)2013 CTIL
03/11/2015



Page 164

This application has been prepared in accordance with the Code of Best Practice on Mobile Network
Development (July 2013)

The enclosed application is identified as the most suitable site option and design that balances
operational need with local planning policies and national planning policy guidance.

Furthermore we would like to assist the council and would like to arrange a presentation or meeting
with your officers and members to discuss the issues if appropriate.

We are committed to maintaining a positive relationship with all Local Planning Authorities and we
would be happy to provide any additional information in relation to this application.

We look forward to receiving your acknowledgement and decision in due course.

Yours faithfully

@/

Eleanor Jacques
Waldon Telecom
(for and on behalf of CTIL and Vodafone Ltd)

Tel: 01932 411011
E-mail: Eleanor.jacques@waldontelecom.com

CTIL CTIL_145378 Planning Full Planning Application Letter (England) v.5 (1)2013 CTIL
03/11/2015



Page 165

DESIGN AND ACCESS STATEMENT

This Design and Access Statement is provided in conjunction with the Supplementary Information
Template, drawings and supporting material that was submitted with this planning application.

In accordance with the Code of Best Practice on Mobile Network Development and published
Government guidance, this proposal was drawn up having regard to the need for good design.

In particular:

e Considerations of design and layout are informed by the context, having regard not just to any
immediate neighbouring buildings but the townscape and landscape of the wider locality. The
local pattern of streets and spaces, building traditions, materials and ecology all help to
determine the character and identity of the development.

e The scale, massing and height of proposed development have been considered in relation to
that of adjoining buildings; the topography, the general pattemn of heights in the area; and
views, vistas and landmarks.

The following general design principles have been taken into account in respect of this proposed
telecommunications development:

o A proper assessment of the character of the area concerned.

e That the design shows an appreciation of context,;

SITE CONDITIONS, TECHNICAL CONSTRAINTS, LANDSCAPE FEATURES AND CAPACITY
REQUIREMENTS

Introduction

It needs to be borne in mind that the proposed development is for a mobile telecommunications
installation. Hence, access is deliberately restricted, where appropriate, for the security of the
installation.

Pre Application Discussions and Negotiations

The site and proposal were assessed against the traffic light model contained within the Code of Best
Practice on Mobile Network Development and assigned amber rating. Consultation was undertaken with
letters outlining the proposal and inviting comment issued o the representatives of the Chase Ward and
Town Ward as well as Rt Hon Joan Ryan MP.

A copy of the consultation letters can be provided upon request.

Documentation Submitted with Application

e Plans and elevations
e Supporting statement

CTIL Design and Access Statement (England) v.2
2013 CTIL



Page 166

Design Component

Access

Use proposed: The proposal is for an upgrade to an existing joint development by mobile
operators Telefénica UK Limited and Vodafone Limited in order to provide new and enhanced
coverage within Enfield.

Amount; The proposed upgrade consists of the removal and replacement of a 10.64m wall
mounted pole with a new 12m wall mounted pole supporting 6no. antennas, the replacement of
1no. cabinet and development ancillary thereto located at Enfield Conservative Club. The
amount of necessary equipment has been minimised through the sharing of infrastructure.
Layout: The pole is sited and wall mounted on the south side of Enfield Conservative Club
building, with the equipment housing located at the base of the pole. The development would
occupy a very narrow footprint.

Scale: The total height of the proposed wall mounted pole structure is 12 metres. The
proposed antenna heights of 14.30 metres and 12.40 metres (to the centre) are required in
order that the signal from each set of antennas is able to clear surrounding trees and other
“clutter” in the area and that they are able to extend from the application site to cover the whole
of the intended target areas. Dimensions for the proposed equipment cabinets are 1898mm Xx
798mm x 164mm (h).

Landscaping: Given the nature of the proposed development, landscaping measures were not
considered appropriate.

Appearance: The proposal has been designed with the aim of achieving a balance between
minimising visual impact and achieving the technical requirements of the two operators since
the upgrade replicates the existing pole.

Access to the development is by definition limited to the operator and its authorised agents. Those who
access the equipment in regard to both construction and maintenance visits will be industry workers
who have been trained to access the site safely and will be wearing appropriate PPE. Appropriate
waming signage will be displayed.

Access arrangements will not change following construction. All operators have a site database, which
is accessed prior to construction and prior to site maintenance visits. In terms of access, the database
gives directions to the site and dictates where parking is to be undertaken.

CTIL Design and Access Statement (England) v.2
2013 CTIL



Page 167 A

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date : 26™ April 2016

Report of

Assistant Director, Planning,
Highways & Transportation

Contact Officer:

Andy Higham
Sharon Davidson
Mr Brian O'Donovan

Ward:

Turkey Street

Ref: 16/00103/HOU

Category: Householder

LOCATION: 64 ElImhurst Road, Enfield, EN3 5TB,

PROPOSAL: First floor rear extension with flank window.

Applicant Name & Address:
Mr Jermaine Gordon

64 Elmhurst Road

Enfield

EN3 5TB

United Kingdom

Agent Name & Address:
Mr Amir Faizollahi

6 Bournwell Close
London

EN4 0JX

United Kingdom

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the application is approved subject to conditions.

Note for Members: A planning application of this nature would normally be determined under
delegated authority. However, the agent occasionally works for the Building Control team within

Development Management and in accordance with the scheme of delegation, the application is

reported to Planning committee for consideration.




Page 168

Ref: 16/00103/HOU LOCATION: 64 Elmhurst Road, Enfield, EN3 5TB,

il

e
ettt
o
e
e
€ o e
o
A
ettt
R
- GROVE ROAD WEST

’
gy
L= =
Feli ez
| e e

ELMHURST ROAD
0#@? lll“lll
ﬁh a
b |

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey Scale 1:1250 North
beh f

on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and
database right 2013. All Rights Reserved. @
ENFéELD?& Ordnance Survey License number 100019820
ounci




Page 169

1. Site and Surroundings

1.1  The subject site is a two-storey semi-detached property located to the southern side
of Elmhurst Road.

1.2 The surrounding residential street is defined by two-storey semi-detached and
terraced properties.

1.3 The site is located within an established residential area. It is not located within a
conservation area and does not contain a listed building.

2. Proposal

2.1 The application seeks planning permission to construct a first floor rear extension
above existing ground floor extension. The proposal would extend to a maximum
depth of 3.05m, including bay window. The proposal would include a width of 2.85m,
with an eaves height of 5.5m and a maximum height of 6.75m. An obscure glazed
and non-openable window is to be included to the original flank elevation of the

property.

2.2 The extensions will be constructed out of matching materials.

3. Relevant Planning Decisions
Reference | Proposal Decision Date
16/00106/CEA Rear Dormer Granted 09.03.2016
(Certificate of
Lawfulness - Permitted
Development for
Householders)
16/00136/PRH  (Prior | Single-storey rear No Objection 23.02.2016
Approval  Notification | extension (6m deep) Prior Approval
for Larger Residential Not Required
Extensions)

4, Consultations

4.1 Statutory and non-statutory consultees

External
4.1.1 None

Internal
4.1.2 None.

4.2 Public response

4.2.1 There were 2 neighbouring properties consulted with regard to the application, with
the neighbourhood consultation period ending on 17" February 2016.No responses
were received.



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

Page 170

Relevant Policies

London Plan

Policy 3.14 Existing housing

Policy 7.4 Local character

Policy 7.6 Architecture

Core Strategy

Policy 4 Housing quality

Policy 30 Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open

environment

Development Management Document

DMD 6 Residential character
DMD 11 Rear Extensions
DMD 37 Achieving high quality and design-led development

Other Relevant Policy Considerations

National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Policy Guidance

Analysis

The adopted policies encourage the maintenance and enhancement of existing
housing stock. However, proposals must also be assessed in relation to material
considerations such as impact on the character of the surrounding area and impact
on the neighbours’ amenity.

In particular, DMD 11 is of relevance to this application. The provisions of DMD 11
seek to mitigate the form and scale of rear extensions to protect the character of a
dwelling as well as the amenity of neighbouring properties. To this end, first floor rear
extensions should not exceed a line taken at 30 degrees from the mid-point of the
nearest original first floor window to any of the adjacent properties; and where
appropriate, secure a common alignment.

Impact on the neighbours’ amenity

It is considered that there are only two neighbouring properties which could be
impacted upon by the proposed rear extension, No’ s 62 and 66 EImhurst Road.

In relation to the adjacent property to the west, No.66 ElImhurst Road, it should be
noted that the subject site (N0.64 ElImhurst Road) is positioned approximately 4.2m
forward of No. 66 ElImhurst Road with regard to building lines. The proposed first
floor rear extension would not extend beyond the rear elevation of the adjacent
property to the west, and the only flank fenestration located to the eastern side of No.
66 Elmhurst Road is an obscure glazed bathroom windows. Regardless, the
development would not breach a 30 degree angle from this obscure glazed window



6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

Page 171

(this will be secured by way of condition), or any habitable room window for that
matter and thus, would be deemed to be in accordance with Policy DMD11.

With regard to the adjoining property to the east, No.62 Elmhurst Road, the first floor
extension would extend to a maximum depth of 3.05m in depth. The proposed
feature would extend to a depth of 2.3m and would then be set-in 0.5m from both
sides to create a bay window which would extend to a depth of 0.75m, creating the
cumulative depth of 3.05m. The proposal would be set-in 2.8m from the shared
boundary to the east and it would be set-back approx. 3.3m from the centre-point of
the closest first floor window at No. 62 ElImhurst Road.

The proposed extension would be marginally intercepted when a 30 degree line is

taken from the closest first floor window at No. 62 ElImhurst Road. However, the 30
degree line would clear the main section of the extension and would be marginally

intercepted by the bay window.

In this instance, when having regard to the substantial set-back of the proposal from
the adjacent property and closest first floor window, the marginal extent of the 30
degree breach (approx. 250mm) and the fact that the bay window would angle away
from the adjacent property to the east, it is considered the any impacts upon No. 64
Elmhurst Road would be negligible.

Furthermore, it is noted no objections have been received from the neighbour of 164
Elmhurst Road in this regard. As such, on balance it is considered the impacts on
this neighbouring property are acceptable. In relation to the proposed first floor flank
elevation, it is considered that as it is to be obscure glazed and non-openable, will
not impact on any neighbouring properties amenity.

Overall for the rationale set out above, the proposed extension is of an appropriate
scale which maintains the amenity of both the original building and adjoining
neighbouring properties, as such it is considered the proposal is consistent with DMD
11.

Impact on the character of the subject site and surrounding area

DMD 6 and DMD 37 state that development will only be permitted if it is of a scale
and form appropriate to the existing pattern of development having regard to the
character typology. Whilst the extension will be new, it is considered that it would
subservient with regard to the host property and surrounding properties; it will not
have an undue impact on the character and appearance of the host building, the
adjoining semi-detached dwelling or surrounding dwellings. Whilst the proposal
would be visible from Grove Road, a number of the properties upon the street benefit
from original two-storey rear additions. It will not be an incongruous addition to the
rear of the property and would not have a detrimental impact upon the character of
the immediate and surrounding environment.

As such, it will not have an undue impact on the surrounds nor will it detract from the
overall character and appearance of the residential surrounds, with regard to DMD6
and DMD37.

Community Infrastructure Levy

As of April 2010, new legislation in the form of Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
Regulations 2010 (as amended) came into force which allow ‘charging authorities’ in
England and Wales to apportion a levy on net additional floorspace for certain types
of qualifying development to enable the funding of a wide range of infrastructure that
is needed as a result of development. Since April 2012, the Mayor of London has
been charging CIL in Enfield at the rate of £20 per sgqm. The Council is progressing
its own CIL but this is not expected to be introduced until spring / summer 2014.



6.13

6.14

6.15

7.1

Page 172

The proposed alterations and additions are not CIL liable.
Others Matters

Members are informed that the applicant has sought consent for a number of
extensions to the building seeking to take advantage of opportunities to enlarge the
property. Many of these do not require formal planning consent from the Council,
however there are potentially phasing issues that will impact in due course on what
can, cannot, be built.

The applicant is advised that the ground floor rear extension under Prior Approval
Ref. 16/00136/PRH (if it adheres to Class A of the GPDO) would need to be
complete before works for the first floor rear extension can be carried out. The
applicant is also advised that if works on the rear dormer roof extension granted as
per Certificate of Lawfulness Ref. 16/00106/CEA are to be carried out, then this
would materially affect the first floor rear extension propsoal determined in this
application and would require a re-submission of planning permission to be
determined accordingly.

Conclusion and Recommendation

Having regard to the above assessment, it is recommended that the application is
approved subject to the following conditions:

Conditions

The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than the
expiration of three years beginning with the date of the decision notice.

Reason: To comply with the provisions of S.51 of the Planning & Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved plans, as set out in the attached schedule which forms part of this notice.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

The external finishing materials shall match those used in the construction of the
existing building and/or areas of hard surfacing.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 2015, or any amending Order, no external windows or doors
other than those indicated on the approved drawings shall be installed in the
development hereby approved without the approval in writing of the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: To safeguard the privacy of the occupiers of adjoining properties.

The glazing serving the western flank elevation of the development indicated on
drawing No 002; shall be fixed shut and in obscured glass with an equivalent
obscuration as level 3 on the Pilkington Obscuration Range. The glazing shall not be
altered without the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.



Page 173

Reason: To safeguard the privacy of the occupiers of adjoining and neighbouring
properties.

Informatives:

1. The applicant is advised that the ground floor rear extension under Prior Approval
Ref. 16/00136/PRH (if it adheres to Class A of the GPDO) would need to be
complete before works for the first floor rear extension can be carried out.

2. The applicant is advised that if works on the rear dormer roof extension granted
as per Certificate of Lawfulness Ref. 16/00106/CEA are to be carried out, then
this would materially affect the subject first floor rear extension and would require
a re-submission of planning permission to be determined accordingly.



Page 174

o wi
T%. 0521} NV1d NOILYDO1 NOILVAZT3 ¥0vE ONILSIX3 NOILVAST3 INO¥4 G3SOdO¥d/ONILSIXT

u%n I

51V

=1=

Voumnabupes

Jsauibu3 Buipjing pasapey)

! !
| i =
_ W a
B ———— 7 i L &
i o -
00Z:1 NY1d %0018 H__H= f | | =
R | i i S
i r 1 : : , ]
r , 1 f [F=======: .
P | 0o ﬁ | aq
I _ ! , =)
| | B ! V —
, I f | f m
” ﬂ 5 L satLaws. ? V T p
| | o g
I | =
| [ | s
_ ” | 40074 ANNOYO d3SOdOUd/ONILSIXT W
| _ | | | -
| w1 e ! &3
| o §00T [SHAONISha | f o\ f g
| NOILVAZTE 3015 ONILSHA ﬁ f — |2 2
| _ = — | Hoou s | wh 3
R | | f - | 57
| | , | ! gz
| | | , b | *a
j ,, snooncan f L | g
/ i g
ﬂ | | m
_ _ %\\w [ ﬁ NEHOL W
P — — i =
i , | : , % 13
” ” o ) W f e z
Le——————— Zwoouaze ] [ o
1 enoososa W m s = &
-
) =
— NI , P— oo g
0L -
! ; Z
I | =
g ——= | m
1 By =
_
,




Page 175

[
NOILYATT3 %OVE 03S0d0¥d
- oo <

NOILYA3T3 3AIS 03S0dO¥d

Nowoug Buseg

Ql
2!
8
o
@
&
@)
<
=
S
a
my
g
=l
2
1

>
-t
()
-
=
®
@)
—
e
l
o)
i
)
(4]
97]
—-

i
i

o
|
|

B

o0k

NY1d 4004 03S0dOdd

oo Buce

= seiL aels

uopuoT ud

ook

|
I 00 15914 03504084
|
|
|
”
|
|
|
|
ﬁ
|

1

ookt

NOILYA313 3AIS 03S0d0¥d

1 noouaz

7

SN0 [peAW@OIUL

X[0 7N ‘Poom £3[peH ‘as0[D [PMUINOg 9 1y 900999 6£60 L

_u 14sumn iy Hoowve 2noosaza
oceiado s e om0

yugy
aeuado uou pue aisa

Sowopuq Buse

e —




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PLANNING, HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION  (REPORT NO. 232)
	5 P13/03636PLA - 36 WALSINGHAM ROAD, ENFIELD, EN2 6EY
	6 15/04043/FUL - KEBLE PREPARATORY SCHOOL, WADES HILL, LONDON, N21 1BG
	4.2  Public response

	7 15/04736/FUL - 2A/2B PARK AVENUE, LONDON, N18 2UH
	1. Site and surroundings
	2. Proposal
	4. Consultation
	Internal

	5. Relevant Policy
	6. Analysis
	6.3 Density and Scale
	Density
	6.3.1 Density assessments must acknowledge new guidance outlined in the NPPF and particularly the London Plan, which encourage greater flexibility in the application of policies to promote higher densities, although they must also be appropriate for t...
	6.3.2 Policy 3.4 (Table 3.2) of the London Plan sets standards for appropriate density levels with regards to location, existing building form, massing, and having regard to the PTAL (Public Transport Accessibility Level) score. From assessing the pla...
	6.3.3 Therefore these results show that from a density perspective this proposal would be slightly in excess of the recognisable density threshold for an urban area.
	6.3.4 However, it must be noted that the criteria of density would not be a singular element and would be assessed alongside other planning requirements such as suitability of the site, scale of building/s and standard and quality of accommodation pro...
	6.4 Scale, Design Character and Impact on the Surroundings
	6.4.1 As referred to earlier the building is proposed as part 3, part 4 storey in height. It is 26.5m wide and 16.5m deep. It would be set against the existing hostel building which is 2 storey in height and the building would back onto single storey ...
	6.4.2 Similar to the previous submission P15-02002-FUL from the perspective of scale it is considered that the principle of a part 3, part 4 storey is acceptable on the site. This would largely replicate the scale and height of the scheme that has bee...
	6.4.3 There were a number of issues that were raised as concerns on the previous application, mainly in relation to the bulk, scale and prominence of the fourth floor and the lack of fenestration and orientation of the scheme onto Park Avenue.
	6.4.4 On this submission the proposed 4th floor is recessed in approximately 2m behind the main parapet wall on all elevations particularly so on the front and side elevations which are most prominent on the Park Road and Park Avenue. This has been ac...
	6.4.5 In addition due regard should be given to the permission granted on the opposite side of Park Road at Number 10 and having assessed this proposal in line with that permission it is considered that both developments would complement each other. I...
	6.5 Neighbouring Amenity
	6.5.1 From the perspective of neighbouring amenity, it is considered the proposal should be assessed against the following properties,
	 Houses opposite on Park Avenue.
	 Adjacent Hostel at Number 2A.
	 New Development opposite on Number 10 Park Avenue.
	 Industrial premises to the rear
	Houses opposite on Park Avenue
	6.5.2 The site sits directly opposite to Numbers 27 to 37 Park Avenue which would be most affected by the development proposals. The proposed building is set hard on the eastern edge of the site (back of the public footpath) and therefore the proposed...
	6.5.3 With respect to distancing standards it is recognised that this is below the requirements of DMD 10 which in such circumstances would specify a distance of at least 25m. However this refers to rear windows and in this case it must be acknowledge...
	Adjacent Hostel at 2A
	6.5.4 As referred to earlier there is a hostel directly adjacent the application site. It sits directly west of the site between the western boundary and the railtrack further west.
	6.5.5 From the perspective of neighbouring amenity it is considered the proposed development will have an acceptable impact onto the adjoining hostel. At present to the front the two storey warehouse building sits approximately 6m forward of the build...
	6.5.6 In addition to the rear of the hostel, it should be noted that the neighbouring amenity situation would improve with the demolition of the existing rear two storey warehouse building to be replaced by rear gardens.
	New Development opposite on Number 10 Park Road.
	6.5.7 A planning application has been granted at Number 10 Park Road opposite under 14/02467/FUL. This development granted consent for 18 flats within a 4 storey building. From assessing the proposed plans the distance between this scheme and that gra...
	Industrial Premises to the rear
	6.5.8 To the rear of the site lies a car mechanics yard and industrial buildings. Having assessed the proposal against these buildings it is not considered that there would not be any neighbouring amenity impacts. The premises are business uses with n...
	6.5.9 It is recognised that the proposed site with the rear facing windows could have potential implications for development on the site to the rear in the future, however this is not considered to be a sufficient reason to refuse this current applica...
	6.5.10 In conclusion all factors considered the proposal has an acceptable impact in terms of neighbouring amenity to all adjoining occupiers.
	6.6 Standard of Accommodation and Proposed Mix of Units.



	8 16/00349/RE4 - GARAGES ADJACENT TO 1, 13, 24 & 38 PADSTOW ROAD, ENFIELD, EN2 8BU
	4.2  Public response

	9 15/05117/FUL - CONSERVATIVE CLUB, 278 BAKER STREET, ENFIELD, EN1 3LD
	10 16/00103/HOU - 64 ELMHURST ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 5TB



